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Listing Rules Implications

Yangxi Electric is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Guangdong Huaxia Electric, which is owned and
controlled by, through various intermediaries, Mr.
Zhu Yihang, the brother and associate of Mr. Zhu
Weihang, the Director and one of the substantial
shareholders of the Company and is therefore
a connected person of the Company under
Rule 14A.07(4) of the Listing Rules. The above
transaction is entered into on normal commercial
terms.

The annual caps for the continuing connected
transactions under the Yangxi #1-#2 Facilities
Asset Transfer of Desulfurization and
Denitrification Projects Agreement for the three
years ending 2025 were approved by the
Independent Shareholders at the EGM held on
29 December 2023. For details, please refer to
the Company’s announcement dated 27 October
2023 and circular dated 12 December 2023.

4. Yangxi #1-#6 Coal Conveying System and Dock System P79 -

Project

On 29 December 2023, Beijing Bogi Yangxi Branch
entered into Yangxi #1-#6 coal conveying system and
dock system maintenance service agreement with
Yangxi Electric (the “Yangxi #1-#6 Coal Conveying
System and Dock System Maintenance Service
Agreement’).

Parties: Beijing Bogi Yangxi Branch (as
contractor and service provider)
Yangxi Electric (as contract-issuing

party)

iR ARRE
GHRENARREES INEEN
BAm EREETEHHBEMNE
EREBEREZ —KREMEENR
BRBEAR—MAEBBEZRT
NARVEER RIEH - LR £
HAIE14A.07(4) & - BHREN A
RABNEEAL - A EXH TR
EREZERIRETAL o

1-25R G PRaR e AR AR A I T B B
ERREENREHERINER
2025 F F=AFEMFELRE
M2023F 12 A29 B BITHRERE
BIRE FEB R EIE - BRI
B BLHEAQAT BB AE2023F
10R27HMAE R BER20234F
1212 BHE K °

1-6 G R R AR IGEXAEE

R2023F 128298 L RBHFERE S A
RIEGRE NI 1-6EEARERRR
ARG HEERG W ([1-65EB ERIE
HEAGRBEAGEERKGZR])

FIK7T - AREEHBAS AR (AR
77 BRI ER)
BEEN (ER%EER)



Term of the
agreement:

Services to be
provided:

Service fee:

50 months, including (i) 12 months for
the first phase; (ii) 12 months for the
second phase; and (iii) the remaining
months for the third phase.

In the event that the standard of Yangxi
#1-#6 Coal Conveying System and
Dock System maintenance fails to pass
the assessment by Yangxi Electric in
a particular stage, Yangxi #1-#6 Coal
Conveying System and Dock System
Maintenance Service Agreement
shall be automatically terminated
after completion of that stage without
proceeding to the next stage.

Provision of operation and maintenance
services of coal conveying system and
dock system (including pipe gallery,
coal containing wastewater treatment
system, all equipment at the dock,
excluding air conditioning, firefighting,
and lifting equipment within the bid
section) in respect of the Yangxi #1-#6
coal-fired facilities by Beijing Bogi.

Subject to adjustment (Please refer to
the Company’s announcement dated
27 October 2023) that may be made in
accordance with the Yangxi #1-#6 Coal
Conveying System and Dock System
Maintenance Service Agreement,
the total service fee is approximately
RMB84.9 million. For details, please
refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 27 October 2023 and circular
dated 12 December 2023.
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Payment
obligation:

Monthly payment:

Beijing Bogi Yangxi Branch shall
submit the payment application
form for service fee incurred for
the previous month before the
10th of each month to Yangxi
Electric. Yangxi Electric shall
pay Beijing Boqgi Yangxi Branch
90% of the total payment for the
previous month as approved by
Yangxi Electric and the remaining
10% will be withheld by Yangxi
Electric as maintenance warranty
(the “Maintenance Warranty”).
The last monthly payment will be
made after the parties settle the
Yangxi #1-#6 Coal Conveying
System and Dock System
Maintenance Service Agreement.

Refund of the Maintenance
Warranty:

Yangxi Electric shall refund
routine maintenance warranty
(interest-free) annually after the
expiration of the annual routine
maintenance period and within
30 days after Yangxi Electric
confirms that the facilities have
no maintenance quality issue.
The last refund for the routine
maintenance warranty will be
made after the parties settle
Yangxi #1-#6 Coal Conveying
System and Dock System
Maintenance Service Agreement.
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Performance
guarantee:

Beijing Boqi Yangxi Branch shall
provide an unconditional, irrevocable,
and pay-on-demand bank performance
guarantee (in the form and content as
agreed by Beijing Bogi Yangxi Branch
and Yangxi Electric) (the “guarantee”)
in favor of Yangxi Electric with an
amount equivalent to 10% of the annual
routine maintenance fee. The guarantee
will be refunded without interest
within 30 days after the expiration or
termination of the Yangxi #1-#6 Coal
Conveying System and Dock System
Maintenance Service Agreement.

Upon receiving the guarantee, Yangxi
Electric will refund the tendering
deposit of RMB800,000.

If Beijing Bogi Yangxi Branch fails to
complies with the Yangxi #1-#6 Coal
Conveying System and Dock System
Maintenance Service Agreement,
Yangxi Electric has the right to
unilaterally terminate the Yangxi #1-
#6 Coal Conveying System and
Dock System Maintenance Service
Agreement, and deduct all of the
guarantee. For the avoidance of doubt,
the guarantee co-exists with Beijing
Boqgi's other responsibilities and
liabilities under the Yangxi #1-#6 Coal
Conveying System and Dock System
Maintenance Service Agreement.

Listing Rules Implications
Yangxi Electric is a wholly-owned subsidiary of

Guangdong Huaxia Electric, which is owned and

controlled by, through various intermediaries, Mr.

Zhu Yihang, the brother and associate of Mr. Zhu

Weihang, the Director and one of the substantial

shareholders of the Company and is therefore

a connected person of the Company under
Rule 14A.07(4) of the Listing Rules. The above
transaction is entered into on normal commercial

terms.
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The annual caps for the continuing connected
transactions under the Yangxi #1-#6 Coal
Conveying System and Dock System
Maintenance Service Agreement for the three
years ending 2025 were approved by the
Independent Shareholders at the EGM held on
29 December 2023. For details, please refer to
the Company’s announcement dated 27 October
2023 and circular dated 12 December 2023.

o Chongqing Chuanwei EPC Contract 54T ©

Date of the contract: 14 September 2018

Date of signing: Chongging Chuanwei
Petrochemical Engineering
Company Limited of the Sinopec
Group (“Chongqing Chuanwei”)
(contract-issuing party) and
Beijing Bogi (Contractor)

Scope of work: Engineering of ultra-low
emission upgrade project of
coal-fired boiler; denitrification,
desulfurization and dust removal
except upgrade of boiler itself;
procurement and supply of
relevant equipment; construction
(including building, installation,
removal and transportation of
structures related to the project)
and subsequent testing and
performance evaluation.

Contract value: RMB205,880,000 (tentative
estimate of the total value)
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Reasons for and
the benefits of the
transaction:

Chongging Chuanwei EPC Contract
is in line with the business
development strategy and
operation structure adjustment
of the Company, which began
in late 2016 to explore markets
for petrochemicals and steel
industries. The Company believes
that the transaction will enhance
the desulfurization, denitrification
and dust removal business of the
Group. It is expected to expand the
business opportunities between the
Group and Sinopec Group and gain
considerable project experience,
which allows the Company to
further expand the market and offer
similar services to more market
participants of the petrochemical
industry in the near future.
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For details of the terms of the Chongging Chuanwei
EPC Contract, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 14 September 2018 and circular
dated 31 October 2018. In accordance with the
Chongging Chuanwei EPC Contract, the completion of
the Chongqging Chuanwei EPC Project would be October
2020. The schedule of the Chongqging Chuanwei EPC
Project has been postponed and interrupted because
of the COVID-19 outbreak. Although Beijing Bogi has
submitted an application in 2022 to start the auditing
of the settlement of the Chongqging Chuanwei EPC
Project, but Chongqing Chuanwei needs three rounds
of auditing before it can be approved, hence the date
of the Completion is currently uncertain. Save for the
deferral of the schedule of the Chongging Chuanwei
EPC Project, as well as the consequential deferral of
the final accounting and auditing, all the material terms
of the Chongqging Chuanwei EPC Contract remain
unchanged. Based on the confirmation dated 27
October 2023 signed by Beijing Bogi and Chongging
Chuanwei, the final accounting and auditing of the
Chongging Chuanwei EPC Project shall be completed
by 2023 and all the material terms (including the pricing
and payment terms) of the Chongging Chuanwei EPC
Contract remain unchanged. For further details, please
refer to the Company’s announcements dated 23
August 2021, 28 June 2022 and 27 October 2023.

Listing Rules Implications

Chongging Chuanwei, is indirectly wholly owned by
China Petrochemical Corporation through Sinopec
Group Asset Management Co., Ltd. (Sinopec Group
Asset Management Co., Ltd. and China Petroleum &
Chemical Corporation are both subsidiaries of China
Petrochemical Corporation, and China Petroleum &
Chemical Corporation wholly owns Sinopec). Since
Sinopec is one of the substantial shareholders of
the Company, and both companies are therefore
a connected person of the Company under Rule
14A.07(4) of the Listing Rules. The above transaction is
entered into on normal commercial terms.
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ESGRE ()
ANNUAL CAP FELR
Yangxi Electric-related: BARBEEED :
2023: Actual
2023: Transaction
Annual Caps Amounts
20234 : 2023%F :
Continuing Connected Transactions BEBRERS FELR BEEXZEHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T
1 Provision of Services — O&M Project 1 IRMERG —1-25 5 R EE 114,350 08,834
for Flue Gas Desulfurization and R EERTEE
Denitrification of Yangxi #1-2
2 Provision of Services — O&M Project 2 RHERE —3-45GARMEE 134,550 131,023
for Flue Gas Desulfurization and R EERTEE
Denitrification of Yangxi #3-4
3 Provision of Services — O&M Project for 3 1RHEIRA —5-657F5 Fa R /& 6,100 5523
Flue Gas Desulfurization, Denitrification R EERTEE
and Wastewater Zero-discharge System
of Yangxi #5-#6
4 Provision of Services — Equipment 4 RERE —1-65GA RS 7,700 6,978
Maintenance Project for Yangxi #1-#6 EIEE (R EMREREER
(maintenance service for coal conveying FOS RS HAEEIRTE)
system and dock system of the whole
plant)
5 Ancillary Charge of Yangxi #1-4 5 1-45%I5 PR EM N2 81,500 71,940
Chongqing Chuanwei EPC Contract: EEJII#EPCEE :
2023: Actual
2023: Transaction
Continuing Connected Transactions BERERS Annual Caps Amounts
20234 : 2023%F :
FELR BEEXZEHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTT ARBT T
1 Provision of Services 1 RERS 8,400 7,618
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CONFIRMATION BY INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed each
of the above mentioned continuing connected transactions
and confirmed that:

The transactions stated in the section headed “Connected
Transactions — Continuing connected transactions” in this
annual report have been generated during the Group’s
ordinary and usual course of business on normal commercial
terms (or more favorable than normal commercial terms
available for the Group), and that the terms of such
transactions are fair and reasonable, and are in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole; and

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has
complied with the disclosure requirements prescribed in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions entered
into by the Group during the year under review.

AUDITOR’S LETTER

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board
engaged the auditors of the Company, Ernst & Young, to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with the Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Based on its work, Ernst & Young have provided
the Board with a letter confirming that, with respect to the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions:

(1) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes
the auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have not been approved by the
Company’s board of directors;
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(2) for transactions involving the provision of goods
or services by the Group, nothing has come to the
auditor’'s attention that causes the auditor to believe
that the transactions were not, in all material respects,
in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company;

(3) nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes
the auditor to believe that the transactions were not
entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing such transactions;
and

(4) with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the
continuing connected transactions set out above,
nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes
the auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap
as set by the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Please refer to note 42 to the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report for details of the significant related
party transactions pursuant to IFRSs. For the connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules, please refer to the
disclosure as set out in the above section headed “Connected
Transactions” in this report of Directors. Except for those
disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in
this report of Directors, the other related party transactions
as disclosed in note 42 are not considered as connected
transactions. The Company has complied with the disclosure

requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REVIEW OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Company established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. As at
the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee comprises
three members, namely Dr. Xie Guozhong, Mr. Zheng Tony
Tuo and Ms. Zhang Fan. Dr. Xie Guozhong is the chairman of
the Audit Committee.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial
statements of the Group for the 2023 financial year. The Audit
Committee has also discussed matters with respect to the
accounting policies and practices adopted by the Company
and the internal control with senior management members and
the external auditor of the Company, Ernst & Young. Based
on this review and discussion with the management, the Audit
Committee was satisfied that the Group’s audited consolidated
financial statements were prepared in accordance with
accounting standards and fairly present the Group’s financial
position and results for the 2023 financial year.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of
the Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability. The Board has adopted the principles and the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code contained
in Appendix C1 to Listing Rules to ensure that the Company’s
business activities and decision making processes are
regulated in a proper and prudent manner.

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, the Company had
complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code
during the Reporting Period. The Company will continue to
review and enhance its corporate governance practice to
ensure compliance with the CG code.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital, the prescribed minimum percentage
of public float approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted
under the Listing Rules, are held by the public at all times as
of the date of this annual report.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023 have been audited by Ernst & Young,
Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young will retire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming AGM. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Ernst & Young as the Company’s auditor will
be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

The Company has not changed auditor for the past three
years.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Group was not involved in any material legal proceeding
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has
been in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Company.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

As an environmental protection service provider, the Group
strictly abides by the laws and regulations relating to its
business, including provision of services of environment
protection and energy conservation, inspection of the
pollutants and flue gas generated by coal-fired power plants.
The Group is committed to protecting the environment and
giving back to community and achieving sustainable growth.
The achievements of the Group are based on constructing
the mutual beneficial relations with our clients and employees
and maintaining coexistence with ecological and social
environment. The Group will continue to commit to its social
responsibilities and exert its advantages as an environmental
protection enterprise and make consistent efforts to forage an
environment with blue sky and white clouds.

Details of the environment, social responsibilities and
governance of the Company are set out in the ESG Report in
this annual report.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM will to be held on Friday, 31 May 2024. A notice
convening the AGM will be published and dispatched to the
Shareholders in the manner required by the Listing Rules in
due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine the entitlement to attend and vote at the
AGM, the register of members will be closed from Tuesday,
28 May 2024 to Friday, 31 May 2024, both dates inclusive,
during which period no transfer of share will be effected. In
order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company's share registrar and
transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 pm on Monday, 27
May 2024. The record date for such purpose is Friday, 31 May
2024.

In order to determine the entitlement to the proposed final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023, the transfer
books and register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 17 June 2024 to Wednesday, 19 June 2024,
both days inclusive. During the above period, no transfer of
shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the entitlement
to the proposed final dividend, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F,
Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong before
4:30 p.m. on Friday, 14 June 2024.

On behalf of the Board

Zeng Zhijun
Chairman
Hong Kong, 22 March 2024
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PROFILE OF HUMAN RESOURCES

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had 1,579 employees in
total, most of whom were based in the PRC. The Group has
established independent labor union branches. Currently,
the Group has entered into employment agreements with all
employees, which specify the position, duties, remuneration,
employment benefits, training, confidentiality obligations
relating to trade secrets, grounds for termination and other
aspects pursuant to PRC Labor Law and other relevant

regulations.

The table below sets forth the number of employees as of 31
December 2023 categorised by their functions:
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ADEIR

ADERER

7202312 A31H » HMHEIEMA1,579%EE -
EFBAZHEEEHTHE - AEEREBLLT
nX e BAl AEBEEHEIHETII VL TEH
AR RBRPELESEAMEMABRREROEE
PHRAOTTEENEML BE FH BETIT@
B BERAEWENREREARKIEER
#%IE\ °©

TRHTRFR2023F 12 A31 BiZBi6E
N

gHMET

Number of Percentage of the total

employees number of employees
Function B gE EEAH HREBABES L
Concession operation management personnel  4FFF&EEEE AR 90 5.70%
Engineering and technical personnel TREFIAR 143 9.06%
Sales personnel HEAB 33 2.09%
Research and development personnel HEAE 72 4.55%
Administrative and management personnel THREERAEG 20 1.27%
Manufacture personnel HEEAB 1,221 77.33%
Total At 1,579 100%
EMPLOYEE INCENTIVE ETHE

Guided by the business strategies and annual business
targets, the Company adheres to the concept of “service
builds trust,

customer-oriented approach,

and professionalism creates value”. Taking a
the Company strives to meet
the ecological, green and environmental protection needs
of customers in an all-round way. Through the management
policy of “emphasizing on authorization from management,
strict assessment and incentive schemes”, we can stimulate

the vitality of the team and create value for the corporate.

RRABAREHRMEEL LB R/EE  F&
[RGELEE  BEXAEBEINED - UEP
RPL MREFPETUMERGERARTR
BBISRE BE% ZHBINEENE - A
BEPOR S - REEABEEE -
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Human Resources (Continued)
ADER (&)

During the Reporting Period, the Group implemented a
responsibility system on operation and management targets
and clarified the common responsibility target for each project
management team in order to promote team cohesion. Based
on the work performance of management and employees
at all levels and the concept of core assessment which is
objective, fair, open and standardized, we have established a
comprehensive assessment system and incentive mechanism
which focuses on performance and results. The Group
encourages all sales departments to actively explore new
markets and new business areas, reward the technical and
sales teams for exceeding bidding and encourage them to
optimize costs, so as to enhance the Company's advantages
in bidding and achieve performance improvement and
breakthroughs in the field of new energy. According to the
business rank promotion system, the Group has evaluated the
job ranks of personnel and determine promotions, advanced
the management talent reserve and constructed the talent
echelons to achieve personal career development. The
Group has carried out the selection of outstanding employees
and established role models of business to promote team
development.

THE EMPLOYES REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration package of our employees includes salaries,
bonuses and allowances. Our employees are also entitled to
various benefits such as supplementary medical provision,
transportation allowances, meal allowances, communication
subsidies, birthday and festival benefits and annual physical
examination. During the Reporting Period, we carried out
performance appraisals for all employees at all levels, and
implemented a performance-based salary system in the
positions of management, project managers, sales directors,
authorized legal representatives of chartered company and
vice president of finance. The appraisal results are linked to
performance based remuneration and annual performance
bonus. We have established, improved and implemented
various reward systems, optimized the salary structure of
project managers and provided job allowances to encourage
project managers to complete business tasks on schedule
and proactively create results. We attach great importance
to the incentives of scientific and technological research
and development personnel, and promote the realization
of business objectives through the evaluation, reward and
punishment mechanism and the staged performance review
mechanism that combine responsibilities and rights.
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During the Reporting Period, pursuant to applicable PRC laws
and regulations, the Group has contributed to social insurance
funds (including pension plans, basic medical insurance,
employment injury insurance, unemployment insurance and
maternity insurance) and housing provident funds for all
employees.

TRAINING FOR EMPLOYES

The Group actively carried out various special trainings in
2023, including project leader training, sales skill training,
specific safety training, job skills training, new employee
training and compliance and integrity training, etc. The Group
has implemented its training requirements and conducted
examinations after the training. Evaluation was carried out
on training effects, internal training completion certificates
were issued to qualified personnel, and interviews and re-
examinations were arranged for low-ranking personnel, thus
training results have been achieved. The Group has used a
new training and examination system to reduce examination
costs and improve training management efficiency.
Through improving the training system, the Group can lay
a good foundation for cultivating and building high-quality,
high-efficiency and high-execution project teams.

PROTECTION OF THE EMPLOYES’ RIGHTS

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with the
Labour Law of PRC and the Labour Contract Law of PRC in
all material respects, including making contributions to the
Social Insurance Fund and Housing Provident Fund for its
employees, among which the social insurance includes basic
pension insurance, basic medical insurance, employment
injury insurance, unemployment insurance and maternity
insurance.
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ESG Report

i -

1.1.

HERERRE

ABOUT THE ESG REPORT

This report is an environmental, social and governance
report (hereinafter referred to as “ESG Report” or “this
report”) issued by China Bogi Environmental (Holding)
Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred to as the “Group”, “Boqi
Environmental” or “us”). The purpose of this report is
to outline the principles and sustainable development
concepts that the Group upheld in fulfilling its corporate
social responsibility in 2023, the challenges it faced,
and to put forward a vision and commitment to
corporate social responsibility.

Standard of reporting

This report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(hereinafter referred to as the “Guide”) in Appendix
C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). This report has
complied with all the “comply or explain” provisions in
the Guide, and contents covered also align with the
requirements of “materiality”, “quantitative”, “balance”
and “consistency” in the Guide.

Materiality: The materiality of the Group’s ESG
issues is determined by the board
of directors (the “Board”). The
communication with stakeholders and
the process and matrix of identification
of material issues are disclosed in this
report.

Quantitative: Statistical standards, methods,
assumptions and/or calculation tools for
quantitative key performance indicators
herein and source of conversion factors
are all explained in the definitions of
this report.
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1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

Balance: This report presents the environmental,

social, and governance performance
of the Group during the Reporting
Period in an impartial manner, and the
presentation has avoided selection
and omission, so as to avoid undue
influence on the decision or judgment
by the readers of this report.
Consistency:  The statistical methodologies and
standards applied to the data disclosed
in this report shall be consistent with
the previous year unless otherwise
specified.

Scope of report

Unless otherwise specified, this report covers the overall
sustainability performance of the business directly
controlled by the Group from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2023 (hereinafter referred to as the “Year” or
“Reporting Period”). The environmental data disclosed
in this report were collected from the Group’s flue gas
treatment projects, water treatment projects, hazardous
and solid waste treatment/disposal projects, dual-carbon
new energy* projects and offices in the PRC. For detailed
information on the corporate governance of the Group,
please refer to the “Corporate Governance Report” section
of our annual report or visit the official website of the Group
(http://www.chinabogi.com/).

Approval of the report

This report was approved by the Board on 22 March
2024 after being confirmed by the management.

Feedback on the report

We attach great importance to your views on this
report. If you have any enquiries or suggestions,
please feel free to contact us via the email address,

irhk@chinabogi.com.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.
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ESG Report (Continued)
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2.1,

STRATEGY ON ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE

The Group has always adhered to the concept of “let all
people live under the blue sky and white clouds”, and
is committed to becoming a world-class comprehensive
environmental industry group and a smart environmental
management service provider. As a green ecological
governance enterprise, the Group mainly provide
comprehensive services comprising flue gas treatment,
water treatment, hazardous and solid waste treatment/
disposal and dual-carbon new energy* to industrial
enterprises (including electricity, steel and coaling
plants) through a variety of business models such as
environmental protection facility engineering (EPC),
operation and maintenance (O&M) and concession
operations (BOT), so as to meet customers’ all-round
ecological green environmental protection needs. The
Group has actively integrated ESG concepts into its
overall development strategy and strives to fulfil its
corporate social responsibilities.

Statement of the Board

In order to strengthen the management of the Group’s
environmental, social and governance and promote the
Group's sustainable development, we have established
an ESG working group. The Board is responsible for
overall supervision of the sustainable development
of the entire Group, and regularly discusses, reviews
and approves the Group’s ESG management policies,
strategies, risks and opportunities. Under the authority
of the Board, the ESG working group conducted a
materiality assessment during the Reporting Period to
prioritize major ESG issues in order to establish effective
ESG management policies, strategies and targets. At
the same time, we have identified and assessed ESG
risks that may have a significant impact on us, including
climate risks, and have developed relevant measures
to manage these risks. During the Year, the Board has
reviewed the established ESG environmental goals,
and promised to continue to monitor the progress of
the goals in the future and formulate corresponding
measures whenever appropriate to promote the Group’s
objective of sustainable development.

2.1.

B e RERKR

AEBERERRFEMEALETEERA
EZTINER  BAKBBEER R
AUERREXEENEZREERRS
BeBMITERNTREX(ESN W#N
FEE) REMBERRRETIRZEPC)
BEmEE (GER) IRFEEBONES
BEBRA - BHERGE  KEE &
[E] B B 12 Ba B AN B AT BE IR 4R B AR TS EY
RELRAELE  MERFPESTUMNE
RABRRER - AEEEBHESGE R
SHBANEBERRERT  BHRETE
EHgREL-

ExgEy

RTMERAEENRE  HENERTE
MER  REASENAIFERR - B
ERZAEEWNESGINE -BEFE
AERHEERSENARHERR IS
B YEHT®H  RIEBERAEEN
ESGHIEIR T & - KAS - MR REE - &
EZSEET  ESGI{EERBREERN
ETTEEMNE  UAREBEREEKR
MESGHE - WERZARMESGE R
T REEABR - A - JAIEFHI R
AHERTRE R R PIELEEATZEMESGRE
b BREREER - I E EE S
I AERBELRR - AFE EFEC
FRAIVWESGIRERR - WA B
SEERARER  EEERIEGEHERE
Bt AEEAREERATHEERNE

2
7N



2.2,

ESG governance structure

As the highest governance level of the Group's
ESG governance structure, the Board is ultimately
responsible for ESG governance strategies and
reporting. The responsibilities of the Board include,
among others, assessing and determining ESG risks
relating to the Group, ensuring that we have established
effective ESG risk management and internal control
systems, regularly reviewing our ESG performance and
approving ESG-related information disclosure.

The ESG working group is composed of the Board’s
working department and personnel in charge of ESG
issues from various departments. The ESG working
group needs to report ESG-related matters to the Board
on a regular basis. Its specific responsibilities include:
assisting the Board to perform ESG management
obligations in accordance with applicable laws,
fulfill ESG management obligations as permitted
by the Group’s articles of associations and Board
policies; reviewing major ESG issues and making
recommendations to the Board; formulating ESG
development strategies, guidelines, phased targets
and key tasks and advising the Board on strategies for
the integration of ESG into corporate development; and
assisting the Board to monitor and manage ESG risk
control and to achieve related targets.

The Board
EEE

y

2.2,

ESG Working Group

ESG I {E/h#l
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Persons in charge of ESG issues

The Board’s Working department
EseTH

ESGEaRE

ESG Governance Structure

from various departments of
headquarters
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ESG Report (Continued)

2.3. Engagement of stakeholders

The Group attaches great importance to the feedback
from various stakeholders on its sustainable business.
Through the establishment of diversified communication
channels, the Group fully understands and addresses
the concerns of various stakeholders, and formulates
short-term and long-term sustainable development
policies for the Group. The Group’s stakeholders

23. ¥p&ESH

AEBBEREFNELEAFERERED
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include shareholders/investors, business partners/ o
industry peers, employees, customers, suppliers,
regulators, community/non-governmental organizations
and media.
Stakeholders Main concerns and expectations Main communication channels
& FTEFFHEHRE TERBERE
Shareholders/ ° Sound compliance operation e Annual general meeting and other general
investors BRAsREE meetings
BRREE BREBERGEEMBRAS
° Good return on investment ° Corporate communications, such as letter/
RIF1Z & Bl W circular and notice of meeting to shareholders

CEBEA - MBERENS BIRSHAN

Interim report and annual report

AR 5 B 3R

Investor hotline

KREERR

Results announcement

SERH

Meeting of senior management
SRERAE SR

Conference

Sy
= R



Stakeholders Main concerns and expectations

B0E FTEMTEHE
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Main communication channels

FEBBRE

Business partners/ e Exchanges and
industry peers communication

EBBN S REE R EjE

° Mutual development

HRAEE
Employees ° Optimization of working
8T environment

B TERE

o Reasonable welfare package
BIEBBNETFS

J Group announcement
SEBE

° Conference
St

= i
° Visit
e

° Seminar

EE

° Employee opinion survey
BIERAEETIRRAE

o Channels for employees to express their
opinions (forms, suggestion boxes, etc.)

BTREBRMRE (KRB BERES

° Special advisory committee/thematic
discussion group
BFRIFAEZEES EEHRAE

° Symposium/workshop/seminar

et Tty EE

° Performance appraisal and interview

TERRFZREHX

° Group discussion
INEE

o Meeting and interview

SEEA

o Business presentation

E R
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RiE - HBRERRE (&)

Stakeholders
BhE FTE@EHEHAE

Main concerns and expectations

Main communication channels

FEBBRE

Customers ° Quality management and

ZF service
BEEIE LR

o Privacy protection

PEALIRAE

Volunteer activities

E1EH

Staff intranet

8 T B4

Publication (such as employee newsletter)
T (wn 8 T

Staff meeting
BEIERARE

Staff intranet
8 T4

Customer satisfaction survey and feedback
EPMEERENERE
Visit by customer relationship manager

EFRREERD

Daily operation/communication
AREE /R

Online service platform

B LR% T &

Customer advisory group

EFw#A/ME

Customer service center

B P R O

Telephone call

B

Mail
e



Stakeholders
BhE

Main concerns and expectations

FTERIEME
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Main communication channels

FEBBRE

Suppliers
34

Regulators

EEHE

Community/non-
governmental
organizations

HE FBAEE

Media
B

Integrity and mutual benefit °
HIEEE

Environmental compliance °

RREMR

Supporting the livelihood of the e
community

XEFHtRREE

Coordinating social relations e
a1t & R R

Evaluation system for suppliers/contractors

HIER A AT =

Management procedures on suppliers

HEREEREF

On-site inspection
MR R

Conference

o
T

Supplier satisfaction survey

HERmREERE

Written response to public consultation
HAREAGEH [ E

Compliance report
BRWE

Donation

1BEL

Conference

o=
= A

Visit by senior management
BREBAETH

Press conference

HEEHES

Results announcement
ES YN

Press release
FER
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2.4.

Materiality assessment

Since the Group’s strategic direction and the
development of its business operation have not
changed significantly during the Year, and considering
the mutual importance and impact of various ESG
issues on stakeholders, the Group’s management and
the ESG working group confirmed that the results for
2022 are still applicable to the situation during the Year.
The Group has carried out the identification of material
ESG issues with reference to the disclosure obligations
covered by the Guide and the Database of Material
Issues of the Sustainability Accounting Standards Board
(SASB) of the United States, and with consideration
of its own business conditions, the expectations and
demands of various stakeholders and the actual
situation of the Group. We eventually identified a total of
18 material issues, of which 10 were of high materiality,
6 were of moderate materiality and 2 were of general
materiality.

2.4.
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ESG material issue matrix
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Issues of high materiality
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Issues of high materiality
EEEERE

Issues of moderate materiality
REEERRE
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Issues of general materiality
—REERE

Greenhouse gas emission
and management
BERBHMKER

Flue gas emission and
management
JEE R N R

Waste discharge and management
REE M B IR

Water resources consumption

IKETRIEFE

Sewage treatment

y5IK R R

Employee health and safety
BIREREZE

Product soundness and safety

EmEELE

Product quality management
EmEEER

Anti-corruption
RES

Compliance operation
BRES

Energy management and
energy saving
BEIRE IR BRI AR

Labor practice and rights
protection
L TEPINERRE

Staff development and training
8 T #REET

Employment equality, diversity
and inclusion
ERETE  ZofEpR

Planning for disaster and
emergency measures

KENERTARRE

Procurement and supply
chain management

KRR EEE R

Customer service

BEEIR®

Community charity
HEARES
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GREEN OPERATION

Bogi Environmental strives to build an “environmental
dual-carbon management” platform, and actively adjust
its business structure, optimize its resource allocation
and continuously expand its market share. Focusing on
the development of multiple business segments such as
flue gas treatment, water treatment, hazardous and solid
waste treatment/disposal and dual-carbon new energy*,
the Group will gradually develop into a world-class
environmental industry group and actively participate
in the construction of an ecologically civilized and
beautiful China.

The Group strictly abides by relevant state and local
laws and regulations such as the Environmental
Protection Law of the People's Republic of China (%
ARIABEIRERFEX), the Air Pollution Prevention and
Control Law of the People’s Republic of China (%A
RAMBI AR S RBEK), the Water Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the People’'s Republic of China (/
# A RFLMBECTB45%), the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Pollution Caused by Solid Wastes (FZEEARLMBEE
BEREY) 5 A685%), and the Energy Conservation Law
of the People’s Republic of China (% ARILFMEEN
#18eJR)%), the Circular Economy Promotion Law of
the People’s Republic of China (F#EEARKEMEER
L {R#EE) and Beijing Municipal Regulations on the
Management of Domestic Waste (dt R 4G FKEIE
1&f71) in order to persist in the practice of the green
culture. In the meantime, we have also formulated
and implemented, among others, the Environmental
Protection Management System, the Environmental
Protection Supervision and Management System (Trial)
and the Civilized Construction Management System, to
continuously carry out landscaping and ecological and
environmental construction in plant areas.

BIRARNNITERFREREEF
Bl ERARXRGER BLERS
B HEBERTSNHE AREREHE
BIEREE - KEEE  RREEREREN
EMAER ZEBEAHLER - BFHERN
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BB S ERXAXETREEZR -
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3.1.

During the Year, neither did the Group violate any laws
and regulations related to environmental protection
policies or have any major environmental pollution
incidents, nor did the Group receive any complaints or
notice of penalties related to environmental pollution
issues.

The Group has set environmental targets, aiming to
maintain or reduce energy consumption, water resource
utilization, greenhouse gas emissions and waste
generation under similar business operation levels.
Although the scope of the Group’s environmental data
collection has expanded during the Year, through
the Group’s efforts to implement energy-saving
and emission-reduction measures, we will continue
to monitor our progress on the targets in order to
implement our targeted energy-saving and emission
reduction measures.

Emission

The Group is mainly engaged in environmental
protection projects. By improving its level of scientific
research and technology, the Group is committed
to making contribution to the improvement of
environmental pollution, the optimal utilization of
resources and the protection of ecological environment
and becoming an internationally recognized
comprehensive environmental industry organization and

a provider of intelligent environmental solutions.

3.1.
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3.1.1. Greenhouse gas

In response to climate change, China has implemented
a series of low-carbon economic policies such as
the Energy Production and Consumption Revolution
Strategy (2016-2030) (REREEMHE B2 DB (2016-
2030)), National Climate Change Adaptation Strategy
(B 3 fE B2 LB A% ) and the 2020 Annual Report on
China’s Policies and Actions for Coping with Climate
Changes (FEEHRIZE(CHEKREITE 2020 FER
£2). Actively responding to the carbon reduction policy
of the state, the Group has conducted greenhouse
gas emission survey for its flue gas treatment projects,
water treatment projects, hazardous and solid waste
treatment/disposal projects, dual-carbon new energy*
projects and offices in Mainland China with reference
to the Greenhouse Gas Protocol (REREEEHT
£) jointly developed by the World Resources Institute
and the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development and ISO 14064-1 formulated by the
International Organization for Standardization. During
the Year, the Group’s greenhouse gas emissions
performance was as follows:

3.1.1. BERE

REHREREL  BRDEE— RIEHR
KERS - Pl (BEREEMBEEED
B (2016-2030)) * (EIRE fE AR E b
BES ) M(PBEHREECHBRETE
2020FEME) & - AEERBEEER
AR F et - TR BREF2EHTRE
R EEt A RERE I HESSH
EHORERBERERTE) REEEEL
WA FIERISO14064-1  AALEEET
Bl A ERIGIEIER - KEIRIER - &
BEEEEREERE  ERFERIEE R
MAEHITRE - AFE - AEBNEE
REBBEMERIRAT -

Greenhouse gas emissions(r? Unit 2022 2023
BREREHEKE M2 B 20225 20235
Direct greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1) Tonnes CO, equivalent 603.10  772.95M02)
BEEREREBHN(SE) AM_ftiRESE (Hiz2)
Indirect greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 2) Tonnes CO, equivalent 749,725.03  967,017.34
AR EREHM (BE2) N Uik =R (35
Total greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 and 2) Tonnes CO, equivalent 750,328.13  967,790.30
RERBHNAE (HBE1K2) AE_EliRER
Greenhouse gas emissions intensity Tonnes CO, equivalent/RMB ten

(Scope 1 and 2) thousand of revenue 3.95 4.53

mERBHNEE (HBE1K%2) AE_—ElriREE ARBETEK
Note 1:The greenhouse gas emissions of the Group in scope 1 and /7?71 : 2XEBBH I ATCIAEFIRIE - L& REAR

2 were calculated with reference to “How to Prepare an ESG
Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental
KPIs” issued by the HKEX.

Note 2:During the Reporting Period, the increase in the business

volume of each business segment resulted in a corresponding

increase in direct greenhouse gas emissions.
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Scope 1: Direct greenhouse gas emissions from
sources owned and controlled by the Group.

Scope 2: Greenhouse gas emissions indirectly
generated during power generation, heating
or cooling which were purchased by the
Group.

The Group’s greenhouse gas emissions mainly
come from the fuel consumption of the Group’s fixed
equipment and motor vehicles registered under its
name (Scope 1) and the power usage during business
operations (Scope 2). During the Reporting Period, the
total greenhouse gas emissions of the Group’s flue gas
treatment projects, water treatment projects, hazardous
and solid waste treatment/disposal projects, dual-
carbon new energy* projects and offices in Mainland
China were 967,790.3 tonnes CO, equivalent, and the
greenhouse gas emissions intensity was 4.53 tonnes
CO, equivalent per RMB ten thousand of revenue.

The Group has implemented relevant measures to
reduce direct greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1) due
to the consumption of gasoline by motor vehicles in
business operations. For instance, driving routes should
be planned in advance to avoid fuel consumption
due to repeated routes, vehicles should be turned off
when idling, and regular vehicle inspections should be
conducted to ensure engine performance and optimal
fuel usage. In addition, the Group has taken measures
to reduce energy consumption, and further details of
such measures are set out in the section headed “3.2.1
Energy”.
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3.1.2. Flue gas treatment 3.1.2. BRAEE

The Group is one of the first batch of recognized
high-tech enterprises in China and is among the first
participants in the flue gas treatment industry. We are
committed to providing desulfurization, denitrification,
dust removal and comprehensive flue gas treatment
services for power, steel, coking and other industries,
contributing to reducing sulfur dioxide, nitrogen
oxides and soot emitted into the atmosphere, as well
as helping to improve productivity of customers. In
order to improve the effect of the reduction of pollutant
emission, we have continuously made improvements
on technology, conducted independent research
and development, carried out in-depth research and
development on all aspects of flue gas pollution
control and devoted ourselves to the development of
new technologies with a view to introducing advanced
technologies to China to meet for the ever-changing
market demands.

The advantages of the “ZFD Flue Gas Pollution
Control Technology” independently developed by
the Company are unparalleled. Our integrated flue
gas treatment system, known as the “Green lIsland”
which are combined with various flue gas pollution
control technologies, has achieved an efficiency of
99.8% for SO, removal, 98% for NOx removal and an
ultra-low emission level of 1mg/m3 for dust removal,
all adequately meeting the requirements of ultra-low
emission technologies in China. Such technologies
have been successfully applied to Nanshan Group Yili
Power Plant, Shanghai Petrochemical Cogeneration,
Hebei Jinxi Iron and Steel and other ultra-low emission
projects.

REBRHEEHAREN DI RMEE
MREFBEERGEITRMNEHBEE - K
MO REN - HE  BFEZETER
TR B RENGSERLFER
% BELHEREAKRFH_E/LH - "
SvMEEBELER - ANAEHRSE
FPOAEEME - B TR EBBER K
R RPI P EBCER - EITE TR
B RS AR & EREETRAMT
RMFE - BORFIRMHRE - Rk
TEFE(EMTISHE K - &SI AR
.

REBHWAEMEN[ZFDERIS L2
R MERRETLEN - AXEER
EREHBRMALEE A IRRS 4R
EEREERS  EITHBR SR
MEEF)99.8% - Fir A AW EIZEE
98% * BREHEMUER 1mg/m3RYEBEBEK
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During the Reporting Period, the major atmospheric
emissions were discharged after desulfurization and
denitrification treatment in our business operation
(including concession operation projects) and the
emission data is as follows:
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RBEHAN - AEEXKES - BEFT
/Z&_(.%IE E ,Z«(iﬁﬂﬂ. VDA HRE%)E@?&E’UI%K
KPR RBEE BRI -

Atmospheric emissions Unit 2022 2023
RR BB B 20224 2023 F
SO, Tonnes 2,257.17 2,124.15
—& bR g
NOy Tonnes 3,637.18 3,424.63
AEY A

During the Year, the Group won the “Influential
Enterprise in Cement and Flue Gas Treatment Award
2023” and the “Outstanding Case of Flue Gas
Treatment, Energy Saving and Carbon Reduction Award
2023" in the “Polaris Cup” Most Influential Flue Gas
Treatment Enterprises Selection, in recognition of the
Group’s achievements in reducing emissions of sulfur
dioxide, oxygen compounds and flue gases in the

atmosphere over the past year.

REE  AEBEFEIEER | ERREY
ENHETTIRP - L2023 BERAE
FENDE - 2023 FERAREERIRES
RPIHEIE - URBAEBEBE—FAR
DPRRFHZEH - EREDIMERL
PERRAIBE R ©
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Flue Gas Desulfurization and Denitrification Project for the EPC General Contracting Project of
the Sintering Area in Phase Il HBIS Laoting Steel Base of HBIS Laoting Steel Co., Ltd.

SRS HEERARTRE=HEE Y —_HEAREEBHEPCAREIRERHRMHEIER

In October 2023, the Group won the bid for the project, which is the Group’s largest sintering flue gas
treatment project in the steel industry. The project is located in the factory area of HBIS Laoting Steel
Co., Ltd. in the Economic Development Zone of Laoting County, Tangshan City. The technological
process of the overall desulfurization and denitrification project is the flue gas circulating fluidized
bed dry ultra-clean process combining with the medium temperature SCR denitrification process. The
flue gas desulfurization and denitrification of the sintering machine adopts a double-machine (main

exhaust fan) single-tower layout to ensure that outlet SO, emission < 20mg/Nm?. (dry standard, 16%
reduced oxygen value shall prevail, actual measured value), NOx emission <30mg/Nm? (dry standard,
16% reduced oxygen value shall prevail, actual measured value), designed dust emission <5mg/Nm?
(dry standard, 16 % reduced oxygen value shall prevail, actual measured value), ammonia escape
concentration <2.4mg/Nm? (dry standard, 16% reduced oxygen value shall prevail, actual measured
value), with no wastewater discharge.

2023F10A + AKEEFENZEERASE B AEMETESABENEAERAEIEER - BHE IR
BLmEsZgmRERTiig=EgaRARKENAN - BERFREIEIZ2RE/ERBRTICIKE
HBFTE+PASCRUEHTE - BAMERMRR MR ER (EhEE) BE6E - REFEHLOSO, B <
20mg/Nm3(8zi% « 16% M A B AL + BAME) * NOxBEM <30mg/Nm3(521% - 16%IMEBE A% - EAE) -

M EEPEIERRT <5mg/Nm3(B21% - 16% A ERE - BANE) - KLRIEE <2.4mg/Nm3 (8218 + 16%ITAEH
% BHE)  BEREKIER -




3.1.3.

Water treatment

The Group is committed to assisting industrial
enterprises in complying with increasingly stringent
discharge regulations and improving the quality of
the water environment. Accordingly, the Group’s
service business has gradually expanded to industrial
wastewater treatment.

During the Reporting Period, the average discharge
intensity of the main pollutants discharged from the
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3.1.3. KEE

REBYNIHE TESEET B =EIRH
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Group’s Lubao Industrial Park Wastewater Treatment WEHHERCRERT ¢

Project after treatment are as follows:
Environmental indicators of sewage
discharge Unit 2022 2023
BRI R RER By 20224 2023 F
Ammonia nitrogen mg/litre 1.74 1.44
a4 %/
Biochemical oxygen demand mg/litre 14.55 13.88
EYEaE 25/ 7
Chemical oxygen demand mg/litre 69.87 65.09
tEFas 25/
pH value - 7.48 7.49

[l
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Lubao Sewage Treatment Center

BB KEE AL

During the year, through the technical and management experience of the stable operation of the
Group's Lubao Sewage Treatment Center in Shanxi, the PRC, we expanded the concentrated water

and zero salt discharge project. The project is invested, constructed and operated by the Company,
and the Lubao Sewage Treatment Center will cover the full-chain sewage treatment technology for
coking wastewater. The Company is the third sewage treatment enterprise in the country to truly
achieve zero salt discharge of coking wastewater, thus solving the problem of complex and varying
water quality of coking wastewater in the park, and ultimately realizing the zero discharge for the entire
wastewater treatment system. The main construction aspects of the project include: (1) pretreatment
unit (including systems such as hardness removal, fluoride removal and COD removal); (2) membrane
salt separation unit (including systems such as salt separation nanofiltration NF and concentrated
reverse osmosis RO); and (3) evaporation crystallization unit (including sodium sulfate, sodium
chloride, mixed salt crystallization and mother liquor drying systems).

AEE - BEAKEURPEILANRE TKEEF OETREETHRMMERER MR TRKOHES
PERR - ZABARMRE 2RMNEY  REEREKEEDORER(CEKEEETKEETEE
i EEREE=—REAEER LERELEKDETHROTKERELE - BREEREAF(CEIOKEEMAE
EEAMERE  SKREARERKEERGTHN - RETEERATERE 1) EREET(B2KE - K
- BRCODZEZEM) 2) ROHEET (B0 EBMENF - RERZBEROFZES)  M3) RBERET(BEMN
Besh - & REERNERBICERL)

The water quality of the project meets the water quality standard for regenerated water used as
supplement for indirect open circulating cooling water systems stipulated in the Design Code for
Industrial Circulating Water Treatment (LEEIR/KEEFZFRE) (GBT50050-2017); crystalline salt:
sodium sulfate products meet the class A first grade standard in GB/T6009-2014, sodium chloride
products meet the industrial dry salt first-class standard in GB/5462-2015.

ANIE B EKOKE mECTEBRKEIE R RS )GBT50050-2017 BA KA RS FRBIRSZ ABKRFEHITK
INEIZAE AR FREEINE QM EGB/T6009-2014 7 A — & RIZ%E - SULINE B € GB/T5462-2015 T

\ S8 RIS




3.1.4. Waste treatment

The major non-hazardous waste generated by the
Group is desulfurized gypsum and paper produced in
the flue gas desulfurization process, and the hazardous
waste generated is mainly waste catalyst produced in
the flue gas denitrification process. We preferentially
sell desulfurized gypsum to users who have the
utilization ability to reuse. For the desulfurized gypsum
that cannot be reused, it is used in the construction
of storage and disposal sites that are constructed in
accordance with the Standard for Pollution Control of
General Industrial Solid Waste in Storage and Disposal
Sites.

At present, the Group has sold all the desulfurized
gypsum generated from its concession operation
projects to third parties for their comprehensive use in
the cement plant additive materials and gypsum board
processing industries. In addition, all hazardous waste
is sent to professionally qualified recyclers for disposal
after approval by relevant environmental protection
departments of the projects.

During the Reporting Period, the total amount of
non-hazardous waste generated by the Group was
3,421,568.72 tonnes, with an intensity of 16 tonnes per
RMB ten thousand of revenue, representing a decrease
of 1.15 tonnes per RMB ten thousand of revenue as
compared with 17.15 tonnes last year. The total amount
of hazardous waste generated was 13,655.16 tonnes,
with an intensity of 0.06 tonnes per RMB ten thousand
of revenue, representing a decrease of 0.02 tonnes
per RMB ten thousand of revenue as compared with
0.08 tonnes last year. In the future, we will continue
to monitor the amount of non-hazardous waste and
hazardous waste generated by the Group in order
to improve its measures on pollution prevention and
control.
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Haixi Jingze Project

BRESEEE

Haixi Jingze is located in Yinmaxia Industrial Park, Xitieshan Town, Dachaidan, Haixi, Qinghai
Province. It mainly carries out the collection and stable disposal of hazardous solid waste. It is the

only rigid landfill in Qinghai Province so far, with a total planned area of 500 acres and a hazardous
waste disposal capacity of approximately 90,000 tonnes per year.

BURBUNEBEBOMAKEHEILERFRIXER  F2FREREREZDHUELEZE R
B RBZEATEEE - —RANMHEES - LREEES008 - BERERBRNIEM F -

The Group’s Hazardous and Solid Waste Treatment/Disposal Project of Qinghai Bogi has further
promoted the Group’s strategic transformation and business upgrade under the concept of “Carbon
Peaking and Carbon Neutrality”, and accelerated the Group’s expansion of new business areas. The
project has laid a solid foundation for our development of such business and has accelerated the
promotion of the new four-in-one development pattern of “gas, water, solid waste and dual-carbon new
energy*” of the Group, as well as enhanced the Group’s core competitiveness and comprehensive
strength.

AEENFEETCEBRERERR - £ SRE T [FREERD NIRRT AEENBE BN EB
B RT ARERFEBAENTR  RRMACEREERERHRRET T RENER - MRESAE
[ — 7K — B — &R | DU —RBNHERBR  BRTAKRENROBEFINGAES -




3.2.

Use of resources

The Group is committed to promoting the responsible
use of natural resources and enhancing the efficiency
of resource use in business operations by implementing
comprehensive energy saving, energy consumption
reduction and recycling measures. In addition, we
have established a “small performance indicator on
consumption planning” to monitor the consumption of
resources used in project operation, such as power,
limestone and liquid ammonia. A review meeting is held
once a month and evaluation is carried out by relevant
project department. Energy saving tasks are delegated
to employees at all levels to ensure energy saving
targets are met.

3.2.1. Energy

The energy consumed by the Group is mainly the fuel
used by vehicles and equipment and the electricity
power consumed during the operation of projects.
During the Year, the total power consumption of the
Group was 1,5685,014,488.46 kWh, representing a total
power consumption intensity of 7,412.85 kWh per RMB
ten thousand of revenue.

3.2.

3.2.1.
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Types of energy Unit 2022 2023
RERER By 2022 2023F
Power
BN
Power consumption in offices kWh 760,451.92 600,126.73
WAEHER TR
Power consumption for project operations  kWh 1,228,095,530.72 1,584,414,361.73
LEHERERE TR
. Flue gas treatment projects kWh 1,203,108,005.12 1,569,376,719.73 (Note 3)
. BRREIER TR Gy
J Water treatment projects kWh 12,627,658.60 14,098,000.00 ™Mere 4
. KRR B FRAE (2t4)
o Hazardous and solid waste

treatment/disposal projects KWh 494,247.00 456,242.00
s  REEREEREEA FRE
o Dual-carbon new energy* projects kWh 11,865,620.00 488,400.00
o BHIELIRIER TR
Total consumption kWh 1,228,855,982.64 1,5685,014,488.46
FEReE TRH
Consumption intensity kWh/RMB ten thousand 6,466.82 7,412.85

of revenue
HAEE TRE,/ AREETENR
Fuel
Gasoline consumption Tonnes 160.98 151.53
mERE M8
Gasoline consumption intensity Tonnes/RMB ten thousand 0.00085 0.00071
of revenue

TRERTE W,/ ARBETEK
Diesel consumption Tonnes 8.4 10.58
SmFERE 7
Diesel consumption intensity Tonnes/RMB ten thousand 0.00004 0.00005

SmRERTE

of revenue

M/ ARBETER

Note 3:The increase in projects has led to an increase in HtaE3 - TBEILE SREFELA

power consumption;

Hata BRBREHAKELERS - AERR
RERSL  ENEFRELTT -

Note 4:Due to the increase in water treatment volume during
the Reporting Period, more system devices
were required, resulting in an increase in power

consumption.



As mentioned above, the Group strictly abides by
the codes of the state and relevant agencies on the
use of energy. Meanwhile, we have formulated and
implemented the Energy Saving and Consumption
Reduction Management System, with the primary goal
of minimizing energy consumption by establishing and
improving energy-saving systems, upgrading existing
equipment and promoting low-carbon life.

The Group has made energy-saving adjustments to
the demister, and modified the cyclone blades on the
intake side of the condensing and wet film layer of high-
efficient demister of absorbing column; transformed
some circulating pump motors into permanent magnet
motors; carried out energy-saving adjustment to low-
load and low-sulfur oxidation blowers; and applied
the addition of synergists to projects, so as to further
enhance the operating efficiency of power units and
reduce the carbon footprint.

In addition, the Group has undertaken the BOT project
of Tianjin lron Works Co., Ltd’'s CDQ work, which
includes three parts, namely coking CDQ, sintering
360m2 waste heat power generation, and power
steam turbine. By using CDQ technology, more than
80% of the sensible heat contained in red coke can
be recovered for power generation which not only
enhances energy efficiency, but also improves coke
quality and productivity while avoiding pollution. The
energy-saving service industry is increasingly important
in the areas of conserving energy, improving energy
efficiency and reducing carbon dioxide emissions,
and has also made positive contributions to controlling
smog and mitigating climate change. This is the
first coke CDQ waste heat power generation unit
(25MW) undertaken by the Group. The successful
commissioning of this unit has laid a solid foundation for
the Group’s dual-carbon energy saving strategic layout.
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3.2.2.

The Group’s new office decoration design also caters
to the needs of energy saving and pollution reduction.
We choose energy-efficiency luminaires (such as
T5 fluorescent lamps and light-emitting diodes) and
electronic equipment with safety as priority, reduce the
number of luminaries at places with low demand for
brightness and use natural light during daytime as much
as possible. We also avoid installing air conditioners
at locations exposed in direct sunlight to prevent the
sun from affecting the capacity of the air conditioner,
and clean the luminaries and electrical filters regularly
to maximize its energy efficiency. At the same time,
we also remind employees to turn off lighting systems,
air conditioners, electronic devices and electrical
appliances when the office is not in use, and allow
employees to dress in casual wear at work every Friday
in order to reduce the use of air conditioners.

Water resources

The water resources consumed by the Group are
mainly running water used in equipment cleaning,
project operation and daily office work. We have not
encountered any problems in the process of obtaining
suitable water sources. During the Year, the total water
consumption by the Group was 20,473,580.55 tonnes,
representing a total water consumption intensity of
95.75 tonnes per RMB ten thousand of revenue, which
is lower than the level of last year.
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Water resources consumption Unit 2022 2023
KERH B 2022 2023 F
Water consumption in offices Tonnes 6,386.00 88,518.02
WAEFEKE T4
Water consumption for project operations Tonnes 18,450,878.90 20,385,062.53
EBIEEFKE 148
° Flue gas treatment projects Tonnes 15,682,338.90 17,916,050.03
s  BRRIEIEA Mg
° Water treatment projects Tonnes 2,063,936.00 1,834,588.5
e JKEIEIAR R
o Hazardous and solid waste treatment/

disposal projects Tonnes 10,754.00 14,298
s fEEEREREIRA ]
o Dual-carbon new energy* projects Tonnes 693,850.00 620,126
e BiRFTREIRIER M58
Total consumption Tonnes 18,457,264.90 20,473,580.55
rAEE Mg

Consumption intensity

FREE

Tonnes/RMB ten
thousand of revenue
WE, ANREEITER

97.13

95.75

We also adopt the following methods and measures to
promote water conservation:

° Posting water saving signs in toilets to remind
employees turning off faucets after use

° Regularly checking the water meter readings
and hidden leakage problems, and promptly
arranging maintenance services with relevant
department in case of leakage

o Using faucets and toilets with water efficiency
labels and dual-flush toilets

BMIEERA T ARME GIREHNH
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3.2.3. Paper consumption

The paper consumed by the Group is mainly for
employees’ daily work, such as the printing of
documents, financial statements, and circulars.

We also adopt the following methods and measures to
reduce paper consumption:

o Replacing the paper-based office administration
system with an electronic office system (OA
system)

° Maximizing the reuse of paper, using smaller

fonts for the necessary printing of documents,
using electronic communication technology to
transmit information and regularly monitoring and
setting printing quotas for users to reduce paper
usage

° Posting notice in a prominent place next to
printers and copiers to remind employees of
double-sided photocopying or paper reuse

o Purchasing paper made of recycled materials

o Establishing a recycling station to collect paper
products such as waste paper, posters, letters
and envelopes. Except for papers containing
confidential information, all recovered papers
are sent to waste paper recycling companies for
recycling.

3.2.3. EEH

AEBNARERTIEAREINEET
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e
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3.2.4. Consumables usage

3.3

Using environmental-friendly consumables, and
the products used comply with the requirements
of China Environmental Labeling Product
Certification Implementation Rules CEC-7024EL

Adopting a sustainable sourcing strategy.
Choosing products that meet environmental
standards, such as biodegradable paper and
rechargeable batteries, and building long-
term relationships with suppliers committed to

sustainability

Optimizing office equipment. Purchasing efficient
equipment such as energy-saving printers and
low-energy computers, and rationally allocating
equipment resources to increase usage
Increasing employee awareness. Providing
employees with trainings on environmental
protection knowledge and skills, encouraging
employees to actively adopt environmental
protection measures at work and providing
rewards

Strengthening waste management. Establishing
an effective waste recycling mechanism,
classifying recyclable items for recycling, and
handling hazardous waste to avoid harm to the
environment and health

Environment and natural resources

As our main business is environmental protection

engineering, the impact of our business operation on

the environment is minimal. The main environmental

impacts of our business operation are emissions from

the consumption of energy, electricity power and paper

in project operations and offices.
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The Group has reduced its impact on the environment
by adopting the emission reduction and energy
saving measures mentioned in the sections headed
“3.1 Emission” and “3.2 Use of Resources”. We are
committed to fostering an environmentally responsible
culture for all employees by promoting an environmental
friendly living. In terms of diet, we will choose low-
carbon ingredients or locally produced food to reduce
the carbon emission of food delivery, and try to avoid
the use of disposable cutlery or food packaging
in activities. In the meantime, we also encourage
employees to take public transportation and use new
energy vehicles for private cars.

The Group has organized and participated in
environmental protection activities such as “Arbor
Day and Earth Day” over the past years to promote
green production, energy conservation and emission
reduction, contributing to the realization of the objective
of “carbon peaking and carbon neutrality”.
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3.4.

3.4.1.

Climate change

In the face of climate change, we fully recognize the
urgency of climate risks. We are firmly committed to
taking positive actions to reduce carbon emissions and
seek sustainable solutions to address the challenges
posed by climate change.

In 2020, the Chinese government proposed the goal
of “striving to achieve carbon peaking before 2030
and achieve carbon neutrality before 2060”, and is
committed to reducing greenhouse gas emissions and

contributing to addressing global climate change.

Referring to the Guidance on Climate Disclosure
issued by the Stock Exchange and the framework
suggested by the Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures (TCFD), we have established
our governance responsibilities on climate change
issues, actively identified climate change-related risks
and opportunities and made preliminary evaluation.
In order to reduce the impact of climate change on
the Company’s business, we have formulated specific
response measures and actively adapted to climate
change and related market environment variations.

Governance

The Company attaches great importance to climate
change governance and handles related matters
through the ESG governance structure formed by the
Board, the ESG Working Group and relevant functional
departments. Through effective internal control and
regular assessment, we firmly fulfill our responsibilities
and work with various departments to mitigate climate
risks and achieve the goals of sustainable development.

3.4.

3.4.1. /&
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1l 7 75 B Sk L P A 588 ) T 3R R

e Develop management strategies on climate risks andopportunities

1 CRELETGA o Monitor and review the effectiveness of management approaches

EEg EEURESEREANERE

O

ESG I {E/ 48

The Working | Person in charge
Department | of ESG of various
of the Board | departments at the

headquarters

The Board

The Board is the highest decision level of the Group.
It is also responsible for managing climate change
risks, formulating long-term strategies for sustainable
development, and assessing and determining the
Group's climate-related risks, with a view to ensuring
our effective management and internal control systems
and regularly reviewing our performance. The Board
will meet at least once a year on ESG issues, including
climate change.

Management and implementation level

The Group has an ESG Working Group in place
to address the Company’s climate change, which
involves the Working Department of the Board,
Safety and Quality Management Center, Finance
Department, Operation and Maintenance Business
Center, New Business Center and Marketing and
Sales center, etc. The head of the ESG Working Group
is mainly responsible for fulfilling ESG management
obligations, formulating ESG development strategies,
and setting out, monitoring and reviewing phased
goals and key tasks. The working group will firmly
fulfill its responsibilities and cooperate with different
departments to take action to mitigate climate risks.

e Establish a reporting mechanism on climate-related issues
The ESG Working Group Eﬁ?‘fﬁﬂ;*ﬁ Eﬁ ﬁ:ﬁ%m@i&%%”
e |dentify risks and opportunities related to climate change
BRI B R R B AR R ey R R R &

e Assess, manage and monitor climate-related matters
FHE  ERENEREREEMEE
e Track the execution and implementation of relevant performance goals
REEAB R B RV IT M E MBI

e Coordinate different departments and promote their effective
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Capacity building

Bogi Environmental Protection has been invited to
attend the Sustainability Forum. The chairman of the
Group, the vice president of the Company and the
deputy general manager of the Board had exchanges
and discussions with the participating companies
to jointly promote the coordinated development of
ESG strategy and business strategy, improve risk
management and response capabilities. The enterprises
were encouraged to transit to a new business model
of sustainable development, and actively make
contribution to pursuing long-term sustainability,
fulfilling corporate social responsibilities and enhancing
the certainty of growth. Members of the ESG Working
Group have actively participated in various seminars
and continued to strengthen professional capacity
building on ESG, climate change and other related

issues.
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3.4.2 Strategy

Our business segments mainly provide services through
various business models such as EPC (providing
design, equipment and material procurement, project
construction and equipment installation services),
operation and maintenance, concession operation
(“Build — Operate — Transfer” or “BOT/BOQ”) and the
operation of our own assets. When assessing climate
risks, we will fully consider business characteristics to

3.4.2. &m

BPWEBRREZBBEPC (RHR
it REBEMHRE  HEEERRXERE
ZERR%) & Brge (k-2
& —#Z |[BOT/BOO)) - URHAEEE
EEEEZREBEARHURE - £F 4
RIRERRE - R TEDEBEHFIE
PAEE 4 ttb 32 % A0 & 1 7 7 B SRR B2 L B
B o

better understand and respond to potential challenges
arising from climate change.

7

Short construction
period
5 1R SR HARR

Business segments:
FIFRER
Flue gas treatment projects
ERGIEIER
Water treatment projects
IKBRIETE B
Hazardous and solid waste
treatment/disposal projects
EEERIEEEIAE
Dual-carbon new energy*

projects
EHeeR BB

Certain self-owned
assets

MOBREE

Long operation
period
REEFH

Most concession
operation projects

do not have asset rights

REPDHFAHEZTHE
THRBEEERE

A/




During the Year, we conducted climate scenario
analysis to understand the potential positive and
negative impacts of climate change on our business,
tested the resilience of our strategy and anticipated
the ever-changing market conditions. The analysis has
helped us make decisions instantly which are in the
best interest of the Group, thus preparing for future
risks and seizing growth opportunities.

Physical risks from climate o In the process of
change may be caused transitioning to a low-
by emergencies or by carbon economy, major
long-term shifts in climate changes may occur in
patterns. Physical risks may various areas such as
have a financial impact on technology, markets,
the Group. the environment

of investment and

financing, policies and
laws, which may cause
potential financial risks.
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° Climate change may
expose the Group to
various climate-related
risks and negative
financial impacts, but
may also create climate-
related opportunities
with positive or favorable
outcomes in the
transition process to
carbon neutralization.
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Regarding the objective conditions of the Group’s
operations and the external environment that it may
encounter in the future, we have evaluated the climate-
related risks that the Company may face in the future
based on the Shared Socio-Economic Pathway (SSP)
assumptions adopted by the Intergovernmental Panel
on Climate Change (IPCC). We have adopted the
SSP1-2.6 (strict pathway) and SSP5-8.5 (high emission
pathway) for climate scenario analysis.

Shared Socio-Economic Pathways (SSP) are scenarios
developed by the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate
Change (IPCC) that focus on socio-economic impacts,
and provide narrative depictions of alternative futures
regarding different socio-economic challenges arising
from adaptation and mitigation measures.

o SSP1-2.6: Low greenhouse gas emissions
scenario, in which social, economic and
technological trends will significantly deviate from
past patterns, and relatively aggressive emission
reduction measures will be introduced in the
future. The rise in the global average temperature
is limited to 1.5°C, and carbon dioxide emissions
will fall to net zero level around 2050 or later, with
varying degrees of net negative carbon dioxide
emissions occurring subsequently.

° SSP5-8.5: Very high greenhouse gas emissions
scenario, in which the rapid social, economic
and technological development are based on an
energy-intensive and fossil fuel-heavy lifestyle.
The global average temperature will rise sharply
by 4°C, and carbon dioxide emissions will be
doubled around 2100 and 2050 respectively.
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Considering that the concession periods of most
projects are ranged from approximately 20 to 30 years,
we focus our scenario analysis on the significant
physical risks of climate change exposed to the Group
in 2030 and 2050, as well as the risks and opportunities
arising from policy and regulatory changes derived by
low-carbon related economic transition globally. Our
climate risk assessment starts from the two dimensions
of physical risks and transition risks, refers to relevant
document research such as national and industrial
policies™ ¥ and combines the Group’s own business
conditions, so as to examine different business
segments, including flue gas treatment, water treatment,
hazardous and solid waste treatment/disposal and dual
carbon new energy-.

Note 5: Reference: The Adaptation Strategy for National Climate Change

2035 (B iEE RIS LB 2035) jointly issued by the Ministry of
Ecology and Environment of the PRC, the National Development and
Reform Commission, the Ministry of Science and Technology and
other departments; the Fourth National Information Notice on Climate
Change of the People’s Republic of China in December 2023 (F
EARAMBERRECENREREEBIR2023F127) issued by
the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of China in 2022; and the
Industry Development Outlook Report on Air Pollution Control for
2021-2030 (2021-2030F ARISFAIRITRERR LI E) issued by

the China Environmental Protection Industry Association in 2021.
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Level of risk

Potential business Discussion of (short, medium
Climate risks and financial impact the level of impact and long term)
REEREE
FAR B BEXBRUBEE HERENW (&% &H)
Physical Cyclone It poses a threat to the Given the nature of our business Low

risks

BERER S5k

safety of the Group’s
assets and employees,
with increasing
operating costs.

HAEEEEMBILS
BREE BB
hn e

model, we have relatively short
construction periods and a smaller
proportion of projects for which

we have asset rights, which leaves
our business activities with low
exposure to climate risks. At the

same time, we have adopted effective
safety management measures for
equipment and employees. Through

a comprehensive assessment, we
believe that the actual impact of these
risks on our business is relatively low.
ZRIKRMOEBEAME - HMANKE K
THRERE  WEREEE#MNIER
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Climate risks

SRR E B

Potential business
and financial impact

BEXRBRUBEE

Annual Report 2023 F 1R

ESG Report (Continued)
RIE - HEREREHE (&)

Level of risk
(short, medium
and long term)

REEREE
HERENW (&% RH)

Discussion of
the level of impact

Extreme high-
temperature

There are increased
health and safety
risks for assets and
employees exposed
to extreme weather
conditions, with
increasing operating
costs.

F BERRIE KRG TH
EEMETIMNERENEZ S
RBRIE NN - & Ak AN
hn e

Given the nature of our business Low
model, we have relatively short
construction periods and a smaller
proportion of projects for which

we have asset rights, which leaves

our business activities with low

exposure to climate risks. At the

same time, we have adopted effective
safety management measures for
equipment and employees. Through

a comprehensive assessment, we

believe that the actual impact of these
risks on our business is relatively low.
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Level of risk

Potential business Discussion of (short, medium
Climate risks and financial impact the level of impact and long term)
REEREE

FAR B BEXBRUBEE HERENW (&% &H)
Lack of water A prolonged drought Considering the nature of our Short term: low

resource or insufficient water business model, our operating Medium term:

supply may hinder our activities do not require large low

normal operations, with amounts of water consumption and Long term: low

increasing operating
costs.

K& IR R 3 A - 2
SHEBRMANVERES -
BERAIEIN o

the proportion of projects with asset  to moderate

rights is relatively low. However, most
of our projects are located in water-
scarce areas such as the Northwest,
which may increase the exposure of
our business activities to climate risks.
Meanwhile, we have also implemented
effective water resource management
—including assessing water source
reliability, implementing water
conservation measures and efficient
technologies, and cooperating

with local water authorities. We are
committed to ensuring operational
continuity and sustainable water
resource management.

In the short and medium term, we
believe that the actual impact of these
risks on our business is relatively

low. Over the longer term, as water
resources in arid regions have
become increasingly stressed, the
actual impact on our business is likely
to rise to a moderate level.
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Climate risks

Potential business
and financial impact
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RIE - HEREREHE (&)

Level of risk
Discussion of
the level of impact

(short, medium
and long term)

[ B A2 B
RAR =k BEXBRUBTE HEBRENW (5 - & RH)
Transition Policy and The Company’s We regularly disclose and review Low
risks regulatory risks business faces greenhouse gas emissions from
regulatory restrictions  our business processes. These
on greenhouse gas preparations enable the Company to
emissions or the impact swiftly adjust operating strategies,
of mandatory carbon ensure compliance and minimize
trading, which may additional financial burdens when
increase its compliance faced with new greenhouse gas
costs. emission restrictions or mandatory
carbon trading policies. Therefore, we
assess the level of actual impact to
be relatively low.
EAE BERRERRAR ARRXRBEHEERES RATHRBELBEXRBAENAER K
FIRAMREREBHENE BN - BLEFETIERSAARER
MR - R SR HEEREREBEEAIR B SR HIH 5
FE - TR MERK BUORE - SRR ESRE - BR
PN B8 WML B EE - Fit
BAFEEERZERERBE -
Reputation The flue gas treatment We regularly publish ESG reports Low
risks operation model is and participate in industry exchange
often mistaken for a activities to demonstrate our
high carbon intensity environmental contributions in the
business. Therefore, field of flue gas treatment. Therefore,
when compared with we assess the level of actual impact
other renewable to be relatively low.
energy, flue gas
treatment may become
a less important option
for carbon emission-
conscious investors,
which may increase
financing costs.
BEER ERAIBEFEEARERL HPATHEMESGHREMSEITERR K

BHRABEMBENE
5o Bt - EEA AT BAE
BETRAALLEY - IESRURIEY
RIEERFBANEREE L
ERABRENER T
BESIB MR ERLA

EE) > MAMNUR R EEERAE BN
BRRER - BB EEERZERE
BEREIE -
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Climate risks

SRR E B

Potential business
and financial impact

BEXRBRUBEE

Discussion of
the level of impact

Level of risk
(short, medium
and long term)

REEREE
(&% &H)

Market and
technological
risks

™ 35 R BT LR

More advanced
technologies are
needed to comply with
increasingly stringent
carbon reduction
requirements, thus
capital investment

in technology

development increases.

As the energy structure
will transit to renewable
energy in the future,
the market demand for
high carbon intensity
will gradually shrink,
thus the Company may
face the risk of the shift
of market demand.
HERAE TERRERIA
fFE B R BEARERIRE
Ko BRMFAENERRE
N o BEERIKEREIR &S
B BERREE - 5
RENMIHEBERHE
A8 - AR BRI REE HI TS
FREBER -

Although the market and technological Short term: low

environment are constantly changing,
the Company has developed the
“dual carbon new energy*” business,
which mainly involves the investment,
construction and operation of

Medium term:
low

Long term: low
to moderate

photovoltaic and waste heat power

generation. It is expected that the

technology reserves will become more

mature in the future and can respond

to the new needs of the market

environment. Therefore, we assess the

level of actual impact to be relatively

low.

BEMSMRIRBAETE (- B
NEDEFEERR | ¥
BRARMBRBEENRE - BREE

ReH R
T2 hH R
RH K-

& FERTARRERAMFEE B - ATIA
BREMBSRENTTR - BRI

HERZERERRE -




Based on the nature of our business and the measures
we have taken, we believe that the level of actual
impact of climate and transition risks on our business
is relatively low as a whole. Due to our relatively short
construction periods and the small proportion of
projects for which we have asset rights, the exposure of
our business to climate risks is limited. In addition, we
have adopted effective safety management measures
for equipment and employees to ensure their safety
and health. In response to transition risks, we regularly
disclose and monitor greenhouse gas emissions, and
we have achieved outstanding environmental results in
the field of flue gas treatment, which helps maintain our
reputation and reduce the risks of financing cost.
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Responding measures: FESTRE ¢

Reduce greenhouse
gas emissions from

-
>

<
2}
(@)
Q_)
.
wn
-~
wn

B g sE

] I §
E Improve energy E Strengthen climate E technology and
own operations ’: efficiency ’: resilience ’: research and
L REERRE L RERREN © development
BRI : I L R RIFT R AN AT B
p— R Ry U . p— S gy

Promote innovative

Utilize energy-efficient lighting and electronic equipment;
EARERIANEEREFRE

Maximize the use of natural light during daytime;

RERABRBAKR

Avoid installing air conditioner in a location which can be reached directly by sunlight;
BERRERNAG HEERRITNUE

Regularly clean lighting fixtures and electrical filters;

TEHEARARE  BRBEHE

Remind employees to turn off lighting systems, air conditioners, electronic equipment and
electrical appliances when not in use.

RESINMEARAERERRARS =3 EFRE - B

Improve equipment performance at high temperatures;

REREESR AL

Adopt smart energy management technologies such as real-time energy monitoring;
RABRRREEE TR E BRI -

Implement water stress management (recycle and reuse of treated wastewater);
EiEfA/KBNER (BRRERKEEREK)

Implement the construction plan in rainy season and increase rainwater collection in the
factory area.

BEREM IS - EINRERKRE -

For new construction and expansion projects, promote investment in green energy-saving
research;

HREK BR2IER - EBSREHmEMERA

Promote technological R&D and innovation, actively recruit professional and technical
talents, promote the transformation of technological achievements and project application,
and persist in the development driven by innovation.

HEENRIRIA AR - BRI EFEERMAL - HBRMAREBAZIAB R - BiFLABIFS
FERE

Arrange insurance for projects and assets against climate-related natural disasters;
RER REELZH T BRIEERE A ALENRE

Incorporate climate factors into the process of the site selection of projects;
SR A =AW ATE B E B AR

Formulate the Emergency Plan for Typhoon, Flood, and Severe Convective Weather.
HETLEIE ~ B - B RRRESTAR)
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RiE - B RERRE (&)

e Improve energy efficiency of operational assets.
e B L EERNRRAE o

e The cyclone blades on the air inlet side of the condensed wet film layer of the
high-efficiency mist eliminator of the absorption tower are modified;
HIRBOE 2R G Tt /< BOR IR B R AR e RS 1T T30S

e Transform certain circulation pump motors into permanent magnet motors; make
energy-saving adjustments to low-load and low-sulfur oxidation blowers;
R TRIR R BEBCE RKILER  HEAR  EMAEMETT TEREAR

e Add synergists to projects to further improve unit operating efficiency.
FEIE B I NGB - DA — IR S AR E TR

_|
=
)
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=
©)]
S5
=
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2
@)

e For new and expansion projects, promote investment in green energy-saving research,
and strengthen the ability to resist long-term climate change and to cope with climate
disasters;

HRHERIERIER - PR EHEMTRA - NREERAREE | REERIEENEE

e Actively promote theoretical and technological innovations on issues such as
environmental islands and environmental stewards, in order to strive to reduce the impact
of operations on ecology and environment and retard the process of climate change.
BEESRRE  RREXFERMEMEIFT  UFRBEEESHERERRENTE - DURE
RIRELER -

e Improve the communication with stakeholders to help them understand the uniqueness of
the flue gas treatment business and the overall environmental benefits it brings in addition
to reducing greenhouse gas emissions.

HUE BN E BB AT B P T AR IR SRR IR R TS R IE AT 1 DA R EURU AR = SRS HE IR LA SN AS 3R
B EE BB IR IE M o

e Strengthen the communication with various regulatory authorities, promptly comply with
laws and regulations, and proactively adjust the business according to policy changes;
IR AR BEE FRPIAR BRI E - RRREBER - RNRBHIEECEERE

* Incorporate regulations on carbon emission reduction based on international and best
industry practices, and regularly disclose the Group’s carbon emission information to
the public.

MABIRERERRERNBORYIRTE - FHEREEOBRBEE RETARKE -
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Climate-related opportunities

RIZ B HE

Potential benefits
BERE

Measures to realize opportunities

ERMEER

Climate change brings investment
opportunities in the aspect of ESG,
and investors will make investment
considerations based on the
Company's ESG performance.
RIRZ{CERESGHENKREKS - RE
EFERRERMNESGH HMERIEREE

Under the regulatory environment

in which the country gradually
strengthens the management on
greenhouse gas emission, the Group
will be more empowered to innovate
in low-carbon technologies and

develop new services that can cater for

changes in market preferences.

ERREHREEREHNEENES
RET - ANEBBEE LIS IR
Rra % - FE2Em SRS E/CaHk
ﬁ%o

° Help attract domestic
and foreign investors and
increase opportunities to
obtain funds

BBRKSIBA - SMEE
A BNESREHE

° Develop diversified low-
carbon services and
other solutions to respond
to new demands in the
market and regulatory
environment

o  FEZTERRGEEHERS
= AERMENME
M R

° Increase transparency in
disclosing ESG data;

o Incorporate ESG considerations
into the Group's operations.

B EESGRIEMNERE :

.« RAZENE
}%?o

M AESGEYE

° The business field has expanded
from the single business of
flue gas treatment to business
segments of “gas — water —
solid waste — dual carbon new
energy*”, and the industrial
scope has extended from
terminal treatment to full-process
pollution abatement, carbon
reduction and clean energy
production, thus achieving
pollution control, resource
utilization, energy saving and
carbon reduction and covering
the entire industry chain.

s  EBESNE-—NERAERREE
TR — K — B — EiareeR |
EFHRIERHRIER 2 BIERT
Mﬁﬂ%%i%k@’gﬁﬁ%ﬁ
B BRANA - SRR E 2R
EX




3.4.3 Risk management

In order to effectively respond to potential climate risks
and ensure continued sound operations in an ever-
changing environment, the Group has followed the
following processes to effectively identify potential
climate-related risks in each project, and formulated
and implemented relevant measures in a timely
manner. We continuously improve and optimize our risk
management processes to adapt to the ever-changing
business environment and ensure that our decisions
and actions are consistent with the Group’s long-term
strategic objectives.

Our Safety and Quality Management Center reports
major climate-related risks to the ESG Working Group
annually, and reviews the implementation of measures in
response to relevant physical risks and the future plans.
We also engage independent third-party consultants
to provide professional assistance on climate-related
issues.

Analyze and report risk
management performance for
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ESG Report (Continued)
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3.4.3. EfREHE

7%7ﬁ?ﬁﬂg\%ﬁg&ﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁxlﬁ
"""" BHRRTHERRMLSE  AEED
BIATRE - BRULERIEEE B R e E
ERMEMAERE - I R FHENE EAEE
B o HATE SCE B R R E RN
B EETE B b EBIRE jﬁﬁ@ﬁ
BPIEVRRAITE e B R B REIR
BiZE—% -

BMNE2E8ER2P LEFMESGIE
NABERBBARGEBRR - 5 EEHR
BERRRRITHEERARRRE - M
CEBYE - FEMRREAEEEIRS
HEWE -

Understand the current
situation of climate change
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contlnuous improvement T BRIRELRIRA
DT RAREREREE
B BERE

Conduct assessment on , ‘ Establish parameters on

climate change risks climate change risks
EITRIEZCRMRET S BUREZ AR

Identify climate change
risks affecting the Group
BRI EARE
BRIEZ LR

Develop and implement
response measures
against climate change risks
HIEMEE RIR
BRI E S
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ESG Report (Continued)

3.4.4 Indicators and targets

We have been committed to improving the Group’s
environmental performance and reducing greenhouse
gas emissions generated in our business operations.
The Board monitors the progress of the achievement
of the targets of greenhouse gas emission reduction
annually. The ESG working group is responsible
for reviewing and evaluating the implementation of
greenhouse gas emission reduction initiatives in various
departments. We are constantly improving our data
collection, calculation and disclosure mechanisms
for corporate greenhouse gas emissions to track the
progress and effects of our climate actions.

The Group aims to maintain or reduce energy
consumption and greenhouse gas emissions under
similar business operation levels. Related greenhouse
gas emissions are set out in the section headed “3.1.1.
Greenhouse gas”.

We have completed the assessment on climate risk
and determined the level of risk to be low. In order
to cope with challenges brought by climate change,
we have established and improved a comprehensive
management system and implemented corresponding
measures to ensure sustainable development. Looking
forward, we will continue to pay attention to the
dynamics of climate change and adjust our strategies
and plans in a timely manner to ensure that we can
adapt to and respond to any climate risks.
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4.1,

ESTABLISHING BUSINESS WITH INTEGRITY

As a comprehensive environmental protection
engineering technology service enterprise, brand
integrity is an important consideration for the Group.
We strictly abide by the laws and regulations of the
state and regulatory agencies, adhere to compliant
operations and foster a culture of integrity. While
maintaining a safe working environment, we also attach
great importance to the rights and interests of our
customers and put great efforts to continuously improve
and enhance our service and supplier management
system. We are committed to providing customers with
high-quality comprehensive environmental management
services and continuously promoting the development
of the industry.

Quality management

The Group adheres to the principle of
by quality, developing by reputation and benefiting
by management”

“sustaining

to continuously improve the quality
management of its projects. We strictly complies
with relevant national and industry requirements and
standards such as the Building Law of the People’s
Republic of China (FZEARZLFMBEZEZEE) and the
Regulation on the Quality Management of Construction
Projects (EFZILIEEEEEEM). To this end, the
Group has formulated the Management System for
the Investigation and Control of Potential Safety
Accidents, the Management System for the Safe and
Civilized Construction of EPC Projects, the Engineering
Quality Management System, the Engineering Quality
Inspection and Acceptance System, the Safety and
Quality Management Reward and Punishment System,
the Management Manual for the Safety and Quality
Management Department, the Management Regulations
for Safety Education and Training (Revised), the
Management System for Labor Protection Supplies and
Safety Equipment and the Management Regulations
on Safety Responsibility System, thereby constituting
a three-level quality supervision and management
system, with a view to improving the internal quality
management of projects during the preparation,
construction, inspection and acceptance stages:

4.

4.1.
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ESG Report (Continued)
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Preparation stage
BAEKR

We have established a quality management system for each project department, and incorporated the
construction team into the management system to prepare construction and quality inspection plans; carried
out strict quality control measures in the design of project plans and in the tender and procurement process;
and prepared and approved the industrial guidance for various tasks.

BMEZTEEBEEETEZRS Bt IROMAEERS UG EIREEMETE  £1EB HRRTRBEX
BRITHPETREBEETH TE . ETRENEHZETENIRESE -

Construction stage
s T B B}

We will carry out quality inspection and technical guidance throughout the construction process, and
closely monitor the important processes and procedures of each project, including: strengthening process
management, inspecting the ongoing construction projects, preparing quality supervision and inspection
reports, reporting quality issues and corrective measures in a timely manner, and closely monitoring the
solution of quality issues; strengthening the management of personnel entering the site, requiring construction
units to be stationed with dedicated quality inspectors and workers with special duties must hold relevant
qualification certificates; and strengthening the management of inspection and acceptance of incoming
materials and equipment.

BME2RRETESRENRMNES  YEEBENEERENIFBERAREEE 81 NRBERERE &L
FEEINIER  REEEEERSHRE  KNREESMBEMAYERE  ZYBTIEERBORR  NREES
ABHER BEXMIBULFTEEEBREERRAS  FRIBASLFEFERALEIAXXY  NRHESHD
M RIBONBRKER -

Inspection and acceptance stage
B Ui B R

We will carry out inspection and acceptance in strict accordance with the design plan and relevant national
and industry norms and standards; carry out multi-level inspection according to the inspection plan to ensure
acceptance at four levels; and rectify unqualified items and inspect the items again for acceptance to form a
closed loop system.

BMEBREERRET AR BRRITENRARSANEEETRE  ZRRRASERRY - BARORRK : &5
WIEB R A TER - MAKBERMERERY - TR RA




The Group has also obtained ISO9001, ISO14001 and
ISO45001 certifications for quality management system
and will regularly pay attention to the latest national
and industry standards to ensure the updating and
improvement of our quality management and assurance
system.

During the Year, neither did the Group experience
any major accident, abnormal shutdowns and unusual
operation events due to quality reasons, nor did any
products have to be recalled due to quality problems.

In the meantime, the Group has formulated a
comprehensive operation assurance strategy to ensure
the normal operation of O&M services, facilities and
equipment. The strategy includes, among others,
team building, standardized management, inspection
and maintenance, material management and cross-
departmental collaboration.
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AEEABTEEEEEXISO001
ISO14001 * 1ISO45001 333 + LA K F HARH
FEREBERMITERE - UBERBEMN
EEEENREZRGHEIFIGE
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Duties/team members
RE,BEEKE

Main purpose
FEEW

Team building o
2= @R

Standardized o
management

REER

Inspection and o
maintenance

BREHE

Material °
management
MEEE

Inter- °
departmental
collaboration

58D P 5 1E

Project manager
T8 B #&18

Dedicated management personnel
(including various functions such
as security, operation, inspection
and repair, materials, finance and
logistics)
EREBAB(BE 2
& W& - B H%)

BT’

Formulating rules and regulations
covering operation procedures,
equipment management, operation
management, recording, inspection
and emergency response
HEETRIZ  REGEE - BIEERE
EE - MBARBRSEHREEERE

Professionals on the fields of
equipment maintenance, electricity
and thermal control, etc.
HEEAB(BE - #%  ER - 24F)

Creating a material database

BIUMEBEE

Establishing a material procurement
team
MERE/ A

Back office
% B E0F

Carrying out management work in
collaboration with each other, with
each person assuming their own
responsibility

AIBIERREEIE SBHEE

Ensuring normal operation of the
system

HRRGILEEE

Carrying out 24-hour inspection and
maintenance service
FR24/ N AR E LIS IR TS

Ensuring normal operation of
equipment
ERRBLETEER

Providing required spare parts and
materials for the site readily according
to the planning of projects
RRERAIER ARG RAMEENDY
B E

Providing labor, financial, material

and technical support and analysis of
difficult problems for each project
REEBRHEET M- W& - BT
FrLA R SEEE R o A TAE




4.2,

Safe production management

The Group adheres to the safety management principle
of “zero accident, zero damage and zero casualty” and
continuously improves the standard of safe production
management. We strictly comply with the Production
Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China (F1ZE A
REFBEZ 24 EK), the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases (FEARLFMEBERA%L) and the
relevant laws and regulations of the place of operation.
In order to effectively implement safety management,
the Group continues to promote the formulation and
implementation of safety standardization. The following
are the four main stages of our work:

The stage of formulating safe production standardization

HIE

The stage of identifying potential risks on safe production

I E

RREEREER

4.2.
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RIR - HERERERE (H)

RELEEHE
AEERAIZEN  THEE -ZTHCIR

ZEERRA > THREZ2LEEERS
EEIRE o HPIBRBETF(PREARKM

BzeLEx) (PEARAMBEBER
BaE) RBEM T HEEERER - B
TERMERLEZER  AEEBERE
HEMERLZ ERECHTAE - AT IR
RRMNEZRARIIE:

Establish a safety and quality management system according to different professional processes

BRIAREXTRF  tIEX2E88HBR

Starting with a detailed study on each procedure to enhance the overall level of safety standardization

FRES-TIFFREIFIAR  UEeER

ZEEERRREREER

L EIFR(KF

The Safety Hazard Detection and Governance and Management System

(Z2FRRRHFEMAEEEFHE)

Standardize the execution of a closed-loop safe process

HEHAXNLZ2RE

The Special Weather Safe Production Management System
(EHRRALE2EEEESE)

Prohibit operations under extreme weather conditions such as gales, heavy snow, earthquake, extreme

cold and scorching heat.

ZILEBmARR NETIE - 8% KA - KE -

The stage of establishing employees’ safe production

FEETIRZEERR

The Safety Education and Training Management System
(Z2HEEINEBHE)

According to the needs of employees in different positions, formulate practical education and training
programs on safety to improve the quality of safe production of employees.

BERIABUNETIRE  HIEERUENZ2HEE

AR TES

s
i
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217



218 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. FEIEFERRF (ZKR) R A F

ESG Report (Continued)
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Targets Contents of training
HR EINARE
Administrative managers and project ° Providing training courses on relevant policies and regulations
managers as well as basic management and technical knowledge
THREBABRIEREERAR RUEBEBRESR - EAEE LB ABEIEIIRE

° Mastering basic safe production technology and safe

management methods
ERERLEAERMMEZ2EERNTE

o Enhancing the management personnel’'s understanding
on work safety, thus providing sound conditions for safe
production
Em el ABER2EETIENRH - AR EERMRIFEMN

Safe production management personnel ° Providing professional training courses related to
ZEEEEEAE regulations, policies, standards, safe production

management, technology, unexpected accidents, work-
related injury and occupational diseases
REZZ(OER  BR R T2EEESE - Bl =%
BN - THEEHMBERFHEBHOEIIRE

° Improving the safety management level of professionals
RAZEAENLT2EEKF

General employees ° Providing training on occupational health and safe
—®RET production for frontline employees through three-level

education, special projects and regular inspections
BB=RHE  FHERIAR  THRE - RATARE TIRHEBEE
B 2 A E T A

° Serving to enhance employees’ safety awareness and
ability
BORABILZ2EHMEEN

Operating stage

BITHRE

The Safe Production Responsibility System and Job Safety Duties
(ZEREEEEFIREUZEZRE)

o Implementing safety accountability
Btk 2 HE
° Adopting a two-tier and three-level management model

RALE=REEER
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Training for the Group’s dedicated safety management personnel

TEEERZTE2EE ASEI

In March 2023, the training for the Group’s dedicated safety management personnel, which was jointly
participated by the Safety and Quality Department, Engineering Management Center, Operation and
Maintenance Business Center, Human Resources Department and dedicated safety management
personnel, was launched in Shexian County, Handan City, Hebei Province. The event aimed to further
enhance the legal concept of safe production in project management, improve the comprehensive
quality and management level of dedicated safety managers, and provide safety protection for all
employees of the Group.

202343 A - MRER - TIREEPL  BHEBDL ANERILEBRLZEERABARSENEESE
Bze2ER ABBIENILEHEBTIRRRA < AREEE—PIERABEEL2EEXZNED - BAFER
ZEEBABRARBNERKY  RAKE2BETRHL2KRE -

The Group invited an instructor from a professional organization to give a lecture on the theme of “How
to Implement the Main Responsibility of Enterprises for Safety Production” in the training. The instructor
comprehensively explained the theoretical knowledge on the implementation of the main responsibility
of safety production from various chapters such as basic safety management, interpretation of criminal
law amendments, accident case analysis and on-site management. At the same time, professional
managers in the Safety and Quality Department of the Group conducted practical training and
experience sharing from the perspective of actual on-site safety management.

RREN A EERBEMACNOBEECEX LS AETBEMD) REEETRR - R 2ERER - MEE
ERFE  FHROION  REEESERN  2EEF T RELETBRTEENERAE - AR - A%E
AAZEHEXRERLENRSERLE2EEAE - £17 T ERBIELRH=Z -

The department head in charge of safety management of the Group commented: “Bogi Environmental
has a sound safety production as a whole, but still faces with severe challenges, and must firmly
adhere to the concept of “safety first”. | hope that the Safety and Quality Department will organize the
overall arrangements and deployment, and all safety management personnel will put efforts together
to build a solid base of security and ensure safe production and stable operation.”

SEZ2ERTHENTIERGREL  BFRABELZLERARL @ BRBERARE  [R2F— IWNEIRE
THEBNIE « FELEHNRELTAE - 2RLE2EBEABRRALE N £FELZ2HR  BELELERTET -
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4.3.

023 ERS ETBNREE )/

Anti-corruption

The Group adopts a zero-tolerance attitude towards
corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering, and strictly abides by the natural laws and
regulations related to integrity operation such as the
Company Law of the People’s Republic of China (/
#EARKEMBEARE) and the Anti-Money Laundering
Law of the People’s Republic of China (F#E AR
MBER%EEEER). In order to implement honest and
ethical operations, the Group has established an
anticorruption system which covers early prevention,
monitoring process of corruption incidents and post-
incident evaluation and handling procedures. In the
meantime, we have also formulated and implemented
relevant rules and regulations such as the Management
Regulations for Administrative Penalties, the Internal
Control Guidelines, the Internal Audit Guidelines, the
Administrative Measures on Anti-Money Laundering
(Trial), the Boqgi Environmental Professional Code
and the Officer Professional and Ethics Agreement to
regulate employee behavior, thereby promoting integrity
and self-discipline and requiring employees to sign
the related agreements for the strict compliance by
employees.

4.3.
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We also encourage employees and related persons
to report potential unethical and dishonest conduct
within the Group. Whistleblowers can report violations
of laws and regulations through e-mail and other
reporting methods. In order to safeguard the privacy
of whistleblowers, the Group has established a
dedicated investigation department responsible for
handling reports on corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering. Upon receipt of the reported
information, the department head will immediately verify
the relevant information, arrange an investigation or
conduct an independent audit as appropriate and put
forward handling advice.

During the Year, in order to enhance the awareness of
corporate leaders on practicing integrity, strengthen
the mechanism of discipline and rule compliance, build
a solid foundation for anti-corruption and safeguard
Boqgi’s high-quality development, the Internal Control
Department of the Group organized the 2023 internal
control compliance training and anti-corruption training.
The trainings were carried out in the form of on-site
and online meetings, attended by 11 directors and all
employees, which enhanced the awareness of directors,
management and employees on practicing integrity
and established a strong ideological defense against
corruption.

Number of attendees

Annual Report 2023 F 1R

ESG Report (Continued)
RiE - B RERRE (&)

BB ETIRERALEBRARER
MEENTNEBERETR SEEAE
BEFBHSHERSTA - BRERLERZE
TR RTHESEENEALE K&
BRIEMRAEHMMAAEREAMES
B BR - BGFRARESNER - &
EWRBBRESK - BFIEESLIRE
HREEES  YRFBERLHFAETHRFAE
B ARRBHBREER -

REE  BINBCEEERIRRANLES
B RICLERNBELARES - LERE
BREMNBE  AEFTsEERRREHR
fin - EENIEIAZSER2023FEAES
RIBIERESE - FIARBEE
SeFAEH 11BREFHEPESTHHE
B TEE EEEME LRIANE
MEH  FFERESHIERE -

SmMAZ Percentage of training
Training hours Directors Employees participation (%)
BEIRR E= BE& 2 ke (%)
4 hours 11 persons All employees 100%
4/\EF 11A AT 100%
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4.4.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any
lawsuits related to corruption, bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering brought against the Group or its
employees.

Promoting the development of environmental
protection technology

The Group has always adhered to the principle
of “innovation is an inexhaustible driving force
for enterprise development” to actively pursue
technological innovation, thereby driving the
advancement of environmental protection technology in
the Company and the industry and making contribution
to the solution of environmental problems.

4.4.1. Innovative development

The Group has actively invested in the development
of new technologies. Our established large-scale
construction projects have equipped with work
stations with simulation of different work scenarios,
laboratories for physical model and flow field, seawater
desulfurization thermal experimental platforms
and R&D test platforms, as well as an enterprise
technology center which was accredited by the Beijing
Municipality and a post-doctoral research station.
We have also promoted scientific and technological
achievements through technology introduction,
exchanges, cooperation, talent development and
scientific experiments. In addition, we have also actively
participated in the formulation and promotion of national
and industry standards to help improve the overall level
of the industry. Due to its superior R&D strength, the
Group has been rated as an “Innovative Pilot Enterprise
in Zhongguancun Science and Technology Park” and
a “Standardized Pilot Unit in Zhongguancun Science
and Technology Park”, and its R&D projects have
been acclaimed as “SCR Flue Gas Denitrification Key
Technology and Equipment R&D and Industrialization
Major Project in Zhongguancun”.

AEE  AEBWLRAFTEMEAEE
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4.4.2. Protection of intellectual property rights

4.5.

The Group attaches great importance to the protection
of intellectual property rights, and strictly abides by the
Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China (fF %
ARKEFBEESE), the Trademark Law of the People’s
Republic of China (F#E ARKEMEIEIEE), the Patent
Law of the People’s Republic of China (FF#E A RA
B = F3%), the Copyright Law of the People’s Republic
of China (F#E ARIEFBEIZEE#E) and the Intellectual
Property Law of the People’s Republic of China (F# A
REFIE M EREEX) and other laws and regulations in
the regions of operation. Besides, the Group has also
formulated and implemented relevant regulations such
as the Patent Application and Incentive Regulations and
R&D Results Delivery and Utilization System. The Group
regards trademarks, patents, copyrights, confidential
data and other intellectual property rights as our
important assets which should be safeguarded. In
order to ensure the orderly development of intellectual
property management, we have established a patent
management department, which is responsible for
creating patent management systems and strategies,
arranging patent applications and maintaining
independent intellectual property rights.

During the Year, the Group maintained a total of 72
registered patents and was granted 9 new patents.

Protection of interests

The Group attaches great importance to protecting the
rights and interests of customers, and strictly abides
by laws and regulations such as the Confidentiality Law
of the People’s Republic of China (1 AREFERZ
%), the Consumer Rights Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China (FZEARLMEDEEEEmIREE),
the Labor Contract (%84 [E) and the Confidentiality
Agreement ((RZE W &%). We have formulated and
implemented the Bogi Environmental Professional Code,
which requires employees to strictly keep confidential of
customers’ privacy and business secrets, and specifies
that “all employees are obliged to keep the information
related to the Group confidential, including information
related to the Group’s assets, products and customers,
and no information related to the Group may be
disclosed to third parties the Group’s authorization”. As
such, the rights and interests of customers are highly
protected.
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4.6.

In addition, the Group has formulated and implemented
the Owner Satisfaction Survey Form, established a
comprehensive customer communication and feedback
system, and actively communicates with customers to
enhance the level of customer satisfaction. At the same
time, we also require employees to seek satisfaction
evaluations from owners of projects every year, and
they have to interview with the owners to listen to
their evaluation opinions when project inspection and
guidance work are being conducted. We will gather
feedback from the owners and convene necessary
departments to develop improvement plans for specific
issues.

During the Year, the Group only received a very small
number of complaints, and all of them have been settled
with the owners through communication. In 2023, the
owners not only highly recognized the Group’s project
operation and management work, but also recognized
the Group’s timeliness and effectiveness in solving
problems.

Supply chain management

The Group believes that maintaining solid and
stable supplier relationships is critical to the quality
of its products and services. To this end, we have
formulated and implemented the Regulations for the
Management of Qualified Suppliers, the Regulations
for the Procurement Management of Engineering
Equipment/Material, the Project Tender Management
System and the O&M Tender Management System.
Through continuous improvement of cooperation and
communication with suppliers and its management
system, the Group has standardized its supplier
management work, thus ensuring that the purchased
products comply with contract specifications and
national or industry mandatory standards as well as the
stable and healthy growth of the Group’s business.

During the Year, a total of 579 suppliers from Mainland
China provided services to the Group, which can be
classified into suppliers of process equipment, electrical
equipment, thermal control equipment, denitrification
equipment, materials and spare parts.

4.6.
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When conducting supplier tenders, we will consider
various aspects of suppliers to avoid environmental and
social risks in the supply chain:

o Security management and corporate legal
credibility

o Industry performance

° Operation and market conditions, environmental

and social responsibility performance

. Financial, production and operation conditions

o Certifications on quality, environmental
management, occupational health and safety
system

° Technical standards

In terms of supplier management, we will regularly
evaluate supplier performance based on the following
factors, and classify suppliers into different cooperation
categories according to the evaluation results. We will
also give feedback to relevant business departments
and supervise the progress of improvement, so as to
drive the continuous progress of suppliers:

o Contract performance capabilities

° After-sales services

o The quality of products, projects and construction
° Safe production and environmental management
° Integrity, honesty and cases of violations of laws

and regulations
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5.

PEOPLE ORIENTED

The Group cares for and respects employees and
insists to share its achievements with them, so as to
continuously enhance employees’ sense of belonging
and happiness. Through the establishment of a human
resources system, we have rationally formulated
a human resources management platform and a
complaint management platform for employees, in order
to safeguard the rights and interests of employees and
establish good relations with them. The Group strictly
abides by the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of
China (FEARLMELENE), the Labor Contract Law
of the People’s Republic of China (AR HFE L
A [RE), the Minors Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China (FZEARZMBIRESF AREE)
and the Prohibition of Child Labor Provisions (Z£1F
FAEZT#HTE) and other national and related laws
and regulations. Meanwhile, we have also formulated
and implemented policies such as the Regulations
on Recruitment and Employment Management, the
Regulations on Attendance and Leave Management
and the Professional Code of China Bogi Environmental
(Holdings) Co., Ltd., striving to create an ideal
workplace environment for employees based on the
principle of fairness, impartiality and openness. During
the Year, the Group had a total of 1,579 employees
and most of them are based in Mainland China. Our
workforce distribution is as follows:
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Employee composition 2023

EEAERK 2023 F

Total number of employees 1,579

BEHER

By gender

bcq el

° Male 1,220
S

o Female 359
i

By age group

REERAR

° Aged below 30 400
30BRA T

° Aged 30 to 40 738
30-407%

° Aged above 40 441
407 A+

By region

==

° North China 1,101
REELE

o East China 185
PERERRE

o Central China 10
PERESRE

° Northwest China 131
FEITEIL =

° South China 147
R &

° Total number in other regions (including Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan) 5

Hih@2 (RHEERE)
By employment group

IR (47

° Concession operation management staff 90
R EaBRAR

o Engineering and technical staff 143
IREMAR

° Sales staff 33
HEABR

o Research and development staff 72
MEAE

° Administrative staff 20
THERAER

° Production staff 1,221
HEEANB

Employee type

MERK

o Full-time 1,579
28

° Part-time 0

it
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The employee turnover rate for the Year by gender, age group
and employment region was as follows:

Turnover of employees 9

AEZRER - FieAAR - BEARIEDHEES
BEBLRINT

2023 (%)

EE BB R 2023 F (%)

By gender

gl

o Male 20.89
Bt

° Female 3.49
g

By age group

RERER

° Aged below 30 9.3
30BA T

° Aged 30 to 40 8.79
30-405%

° Aged above 40 6.29
407 A+

By region

iR

° North China 17.38
PEESL R

° East China 2.15
TERERRE

o Central China 0.7
PEEPRE

° Northwest China 2.03
PRI

° South China 212
B T (&

Note 6:Turnover of employees = number of lost employees/total

number of employees at year endx100%

Hite EEBBE=TXEEAH-FLREEAH
x100%



5.1.

Employment management

We treat all employees equally and ensure fair
opportunities in areas such as recruitment, promotion
and career-related development. When recruiting
employees, we give equal consideration to every
job applicant, and prohibit any discrimination arising
from race, gender, marital status, religious belief and
other factors. We enter into the Labor Contract and
the Confidentiality Agreement with each employee we
recruited, which specifies the working hours, labor
conditions, labor remuneration, welfare benefits,
training and confidentiality of business secrets, so as
to protect the basic rights and interests of employees
and eliminate forced labor. Meanwhile, we will require
job applicants to verify identification documents to
eliminate any possibility of employing child labor. In
case of any violation, the Group will handle the case
in accordance with the Labor Contract and terminate
the employment contract immediately. In the event of
dismissal or voluntarily resignation of employees, we
will strictly complies with the procedures set out in the
Labor Law of the People’'s Republic of China (A
RHEMEI L)L) and the Labor Contract Law of the
People’'s Republic of China (FEARLMELEHER
7%) and prohibit any unfair or unreasonable dismissal.
We will also arrange interviews with exiting employees
to understand the reasons for leaving and make
corresponding improvements.

During the Year, the Group did not violate any laws
or regulations related to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
prevention of sexual harassment, violation of child labor
or forced labor.

5.1.
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5.2.

Benefits and caring

The Group has formulated its employee welfare
policy based on the principle of legality and fairness.
Employee benefit plans are established according to
legal and reasonable standards. We have developed
a salary structure of “basic salary + bonus +
allowance” coupled with an appraisal system guided
by “performance result”. We will consider group and
individual performance to ensure that employees
receive their fair remuneration on time. In addition, we
also provide equity incentive for core management
personnel and key employees to motivate them to
continuously improve their performance.

In addition to fixed remuneration, the Group also
provides employees with a variety of benefits to meet
the needs of different employees:

° Personal leave, sick leave, work-related injury
leave, marriage leave, bereavement leave,
maternity leave and paternity leave

o Employees are provided with paid annual leave
based on their working experience and length of
service

° Pension insurance, basic medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, wok injury insurance,
maternity insurance and housing provident fund
are paid for eligible employees

° Accidental commercial insurance and

supplementary medical insurance are purchased

for general employees

° Employees are provided with transportation
allowance, meal allowance and other benefits as
appropriate

5.2.
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5.3.

In addition, the Group also pursues a democratic
management approach, respects the demands of
employees and strives to create a harmonious working
environment. We have established various mechanisms
to provide communication channels for employees to
protect their rights of expression and participation:

o Independent trade union branches

o Mechanism for the open discussion of corporate affairs

o Mechanism for meetings of representatives of
employees

° Mechanism for communication between

employees and directors or supervisors

Development and training

The Group regards employees as its most valuable
asset. Adhering to the principle of “on-demand training
and serving the practical purpose”, the Group strives
to provide employees with personal development
opportunities and personalized development scope, so
that employees with different positions and functions
can continuously develop their careers and improve
their overall quality and ability, while at the same time
providing the Group with sufficient talents for the
implementation of its plan in the technology industry.
The Group has implemented its Training Management
Regulations and carried out its talent training program
based on internal management strategies, annual
management targets and various needs of employees,
so as to provide a diversified training plan:

o Legal training on statute of limitations, evidence
preservation and other related matters

o Training for dedicated safety management
personnel

o Training on the treatment technology of PF-MSF
desulfurization and wastewater zero discharge

o Training on patent technology for technicians

5.3.
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o Training on the process of advanced marketing
visits and the promotion of business opportunities

Meanwhile, we also pay attention to the career
development of employees, therefore we have
formulated relevant management measures to regulate
the basis and standards for employee promotion. We
have also established the positions of R&D personnel
and project managers, laying out a clear career path
for employees. We have actively built a dedicated
and professional workforce by improving the talent
development system.

During the Year, the training attendance rates of
employees by gender and employment group were as
follows:

©  BREEFEDREEEREEN)

R - HPTBEIE THBEER  HIE
MHREEERE T B THETHKEME
% W HEFKRHTEABMERKER
B RETHRFERETTHAREOR
T RMBBTEATBRAS  HEE
EERMBECNE THME -

AR - B 85I IR b R E A )
mF

Training attendance rate of employees®°*” 2023(%)

& B 153 HfE by & 7) 2023 F (%)

By gender

LR

° Male 100
E2fia

o Female 100
2zt

By employment group

RIERAR

o Concession operation management staff 100
FIEEBEIEAR

o Engineering and technical staff 100
TREMAE

o Sales staff 100
HEAR

o Research and development staff 100
HEAR

o Administrative staff 100
THREBAB

o Production staff 100
HEAE

Note 7:Training attendance rate of employees = number of employees

attending training in that group/total number of employees in

that group

W7 REEIHELER=ZRRIZEINHEREA
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During the Year, the completed training hours per ANEE @ RIERI L EEAERIZ D &I AL K
person by gender and employment group were as IZ3l/\EIOR ¢

follows:
Average
training hours
Training (hours/person)’° 5
TG E I/
S (B EB) (i
2023
20234
By gender
gl
° Male 6.00
. EXf
° Female 6.00
. 7t
By employment group
RIERAER
° Concession operation management staff 6.00
R EERAR
o Engineering and technical staff 8.00
IREMAR
o Sales staff 6.00
HEAER
° Research and development staff 6.00
fEAE
° Administrative staff 6.00
THREEAB
o Production staff 8.00
EEAE

Note 8: Average training hours of employees by group = total training ftats - IR BIE 7 1R B F B XA B =1 R Bl E 8
HAEX RS+ ZERNEBS AR

hours of employees by group/total number of employees in that

group
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5.4.

Health and safety

The Group attaches paramount importance to the
protection of the health and safety of its employees.
The Group greatly emphasizes the safety and welfare
of its employees, and strictly abides by the Law on
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases of the
People’'s Republic of China (% AR KEMBIE: KA
%), the Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic
of China (FZEAREMEZ 2 EEE), the Provisions
on the Supervision and Administration of Occupational
Health at Work Sites (L{ESBEBEEEEERRT),
the Work-related Injury Insurance Regulations (T &R
1&9]), and the Management System on Labor Protection
Products and Safety Tools (BfiERAmAEZETEE
EIEHE) and other local laws and regulations, and
formulated its own policies such as the Occupational
Health and Safety Management System and the Notice
of Occupational Hazards in Labor Contract. To this end,
the Group will take various measures to establish a
safe working environment. We will establish emergency
measures such as fire or explosion response plans,
and conduct rescue and fire drills. In addition, our
management personnel are responsible for monitoring
the work environment, systems and equipment to ensure
that they are in a safe state. At the same time, we will
also provide employees with any information, guidance,
training and supervision needed to avoid work-related
injuries. We also abide by the national regulations
on the protection of employees, regularly distribute
effective and qualified personal protective equipment
to employees, and also issue notices to employees
to ensure that they are aware of the potential hazards
in the workplace beforehand. Besides, we conduct
occupational health inspections for all employees
every year, and regularly organize external and internal
occupational health and safety activities, to enable
employees understand their health status and help them
prevent occupational diseases.

During the year, no employees of the Group lost
working days due to work-related injuries.

In the past three years, no employee of the Group was
involved in a work-related fatalities.

5.4.
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SUPPORTING AGRICULTURE AND PUBLIC
WELFARE

While endeavoring in its production and operation,
the Group will also continue to pay attention to social
public welfare undertakings to do charity works and
solve social problems, and make efforts to maintain the
harmony and stability of the enterprise and society.

For two consecutive years, the Group purchased
Sinopec’s public welfare agricultural products as
holiday benefits to employees. This served both
purposes of helping farmers to sell their products and
distributing holiday benefits. The revitalization of the
countryside brings great hope to the farmers, while
the heart-warming welfare makes the employees feel
happiness. Bogi Environmental earnestly fulfills its

social obligations and participates in public welfare
activities with practical actions.
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APPENDIX I: INDEX OF ESG REPORTING GUIDE OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE

Subject areas

fisg— : BEBBERXZM(RERE - &
BHEES) Rl

Related sections

%
&
U

IRER HEAEE
A1: missions General Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) 38 Green operation
disclosure  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that 3.1 Emission
have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste.

Al BEHY —RKE  AAERRRRERBHR - mARIHEES BE 3. REEE
FEERZRYNELTH (BR  R(Ob)ETHE 31 HEY
TAREAYENHAERRROINER

A1A The types of emissions and respective emissions 3.1.2 Flue gas treatment
data.

A1 BB AR EE M EUE - 312 BRaE

At1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)  3.1.1 Greenhouse gas
greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

A1.2 B (BE1) kegREE (BE2) RERBHRE (A 311 BRERE
MEEtE) & (WER) BE (MABEEER - BIBRE
AE) -

A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, 3.1.4 Waste treatment
if applicable, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

A1.3 FREARERRNEE (UNEE) L (WER)BE 314 EBEEVRE

(IABEE BN - BARETE) -



Subject areas
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Related sections

TEHE HEAEE
Al1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) Waste treatment
and, if applicable, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
Al.4 FEXEEREYEE CAEFE) R (ER) ZE REE VB IE
(MAGESEN - BEBBTE)
A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps Green operation
taken to achieve them. Greenhouse gas
Flue gas treatment
Sewage treatment
Waste treatment
A15 HRFATEI I BEE B R R AERE L B RATRERE 3. REEE
HE o RERE
ERaE
KB
REE VB IE
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous 3. Green operation
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction 3.1.4 Waste treatment
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
A1.6 HREEEERESEEMNAE - RERAIZH 3. RELE
FREE R R AETE LB BB SR - RER VBRI
A2: Use of General Policies on the efficient use of resources, including 3.2 Use of resources
resources disclosure  energy, water and other raw materials.
A2 BRER —REE  AREAER(BEER  KREMGRAE) XK - BRERA
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type 3.2.1 Energy
(e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (in kWh in '000s)
and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).
A2.1 RRRESWERELR, REERR(NE  fIuh) @321 &R

RER (UTETEKHE) ZE (MASES S

BRKMETR)
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Subject areas

TEHE

Related sections

HEEE

A2.2

A2.2

A23

A23

A2.4

A2.4

A25

A25

A3: Environment General

and natural disclosure
resources
A3: —fR R
BRERXAER

A3.1

A3.1

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per 3.2.2
unit of production volume, per facility).
BEKERER (NMASESSN - BEREFE) - 3.2.2

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set 3.

Water resources

KER

Green operation

and steps taken to achieve them. 3.2.1 Energy

WAPET e RER NG AR R AEIELARHA 3. REEE

PRERE) PR o 321 &R

Description of whether there is any issue in &, Green operation
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water 3.2.2 Water resources
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve

them.

SKEGEA KR LA B EARE - WRFIRIZMA 3. BEEeE

KB B RRAEREL R RATRIRE TR - 322 KER

Total packaging material used for finished Not available, as packaging material
products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with is not involved in the Group’s
reference to per unit produced. business

S mArREEMRnEE AN E) K (ER) & NER - AREXB TSR BEM#

HEEMNHGE -

Policies on minimizing the issuer's significant 353
impact on the environment and natural resources.

BEBTAHRERAREREXEAFEOBEK - 3.3

Description of the significant impacts of activities 3.3
on the environment and natural resources and the
actions taken to manage them.
HREBLHHRREIRAERNEATYEREHER 3.3
ERABTENTD -

Environment and natural
resources

RERARER

Environment and natural
resources

RERARER



Subject areas
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Related sections

TERER HEAEE
A4: Climate General Policies on identification and mitigation of 3.4 Climate change
change disclosure  significant climate-related issues which have 3.4.1 Governance
impacted, and those which may impact, the 3.4.2 Strategy
issuer. 3.4.3 Risk management
3.4.4 Indicators and targets
Ad: RIREL —REE  BPIREHERERARGHETAEEYENEAR 34 RIEEL
EEBEENER - 341 BB
342 KE
343 ERER
344 HEENERZ
A4 Description of the significant climate-related 3.4 Climate change
issues which have impacted, and those which 3.4.2 Strategy
may impact, the issuer, and the actions takento  3.4.3 Risk management
manage them. 3.4.4 Indicators and targets
A4.1 BB RAERGHETAEERENEARKER 3.4 RIEEL
£H REHTE - 3.4.2 KB
343 ERER
344 HEENERZ
B.Society
B.i4E
B1: Employment General Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) 5% People oriented
disclosure  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that 5.1 Employment management
have a significant impact on the issuer relating 5.2 Benefits and caring
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and 5.3  Development and training
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.
B1: &% —RKE  AAFMREE  BEREA - IESE-BRE T 5 ANBZAR
EHe il RERUAREGEEREND (a) 51 ERER
BR: RO ETHRTABEAZENEBERLR 52 BIEE
ENEY 53  EBRERRIE
B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type 5 People oriented
(for example, full- or part-time), age group and
geographical region.
B1.1 BRI ERER (M2BEER)  FRERNKE 5. PANBZAR

B DmESHRE -
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Subject areas

TEHE

Related sections

HEEE

B2: Health and
Safety

B2:
RERZ2

B3: Development
and Training

B3 : R K

B1.2

B1.2

General
disclosure

—RIWE

B2.1

B2.1

B2.2

B2.2

B2.3

B2.3

General

disclosure

—REE

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and 5.
geographical region.
BRI FleAR R EE D HESRKLLE - 5.

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) 4.2
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that 5.4
have a significant impact on the issuer relating

to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.
FRARBZE2IERERREEEHEBEMLREE 42
B ()R R(0)ETHEITABEATEMNIEH 54
EERRDINER

Number and rate of work-related fatalities 54
occurred in each of the past three years including
the reporting year.

BE=F (BREFFE) BFATTHROARRL 54

3\30

Lost days due to work injury. 5.4
FAIGEAIERS - 5.4
Description of occupational health and safety 4.2

measures adopted, and how they are implemented 5.4
and monitored.

RIFTERANBRERRET 2R - UREERTR 4.2
ERAE - 5.4

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and 5.3
skills for discharging duties at work. Description of
training activities.
ARRMEERTIERENMBNREENBE - # 5.3
HIEHES -

People oriented

MABK

Safe production management
Health and Safety

Health and Safety

(RS

Health and Safety

EEaLe

Safe production management
Health and Safety

Development and training

BRME
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Related sections

TERER HEAEE
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender 5.3 Development and training
and employee category (e.g. senior management,
middle management).
B3.1 R RESERN (NSRERE  HREEE) S 53 HRKE
HXIEEBD
B3.2 The average training hours completed per 553 Development and training
employee by gender and employee category.
B3.2 RURIRERERNE S  BREETKXINTHE 53  BRKE
2o
B4: Labor General Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) 5.1 Employment management
standards disclosure  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child and forced labor.
B4 : TR —REE  BEMLETICREISTE ()X k(o)&TH 51 EREERE
BOANBERTENHEBERRRDIOER -
B4.1 Description of measures to review employment 5.1 Employment management
practices to avoid child and forced labor.
B4.1 BB REEGINEENREETIRSEHSE T - 51 REETE
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such 5.1 Employment management
practices when discovered.
B4.2 HAAEZRERBENRERAABEAMRRNLR - 51 ERERE
B5: Supply Chain  General Policies on managing environmental and social 4.6 Supply chain management
Management disclosure  risks of the supply chain.
B5 : HEHEER —REE  EREHEENREREEREREE - 46  HERER
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 4.6 Supply chain management
B5.1 miEE D MHRERRE - 46  HERER
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Subject areas

Related sections

TEHE HEEH

B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging 4.6 Supply chain management
suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices
are being implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B5.2 WA EBERREENED - MERTERENNE 46 HEEER
ERESE URBHEBHINMITRERFE -

B5.3 Describe of practices used to identify 4.6  Supply chain management
environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

B5.3 HREEHREREGERGNRERLERARNE 46 HEEERE
Bl ARBBRITRERTE -

B5.4 Describe practices used to promote 4.6 Supply chain management
environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

B5.4 HAAREREERREESARREDLRENE 46  HEEER
Bl - AREBRITRERFE

B6: Product General Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) 4.1 Quality management

Responsibility disclosure  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that 4.2~ Safe production
have a significant impact on the issuer relating management
to health and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products and services
provided and methods of redress.

B6 : EmEE —REE  ARARHERNRENRERELE  BS REKk 41 HEERE
MEEEARBRTEN - ()HEK  R(o)BTHE 42 LTR2EEER
TABBERZENEBEERRAGINEH -

B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped 4.1 Quality management
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.

B6.1 EEXRCEXEREBTRL2EEFEMMALK 41 BEER
SR

B6.2 Number of products and service related 4.1 Quality management
complaints received and how they are dealt with. 4.5  Protection of interests

B6.2 ERANERRRGHRFEE AREYH T - 41 EHEEEE

4.5

e iRE
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Related sections

TERER HEAEE
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and 4.4.2. Protection of intellectual
protecting intellectual property rights. property rights
B6.3 fi i B RIS RN E R V1B I 442, REHBERE
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and 4.1 Quality management
recall procedures. 4.2  Safe production
management
B6.4 HLEERTERERERLDKER - 41 HEERE
42 RREEER
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and 4.5 Protection of interests
privacy policies, and how they are implemented
and monitored.
B6.5 R BEEBRRERALREER - URBERITRE 45 ERRE
BRE o
B7: Anti-corruption General Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) 4.3 Anti-corruption
disclosure  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
B7: R&ES —REE  AEDLHE PR REERAREN (BE: Kk 43 RAS
(b)BTHETAREATZENEBEEZRRIINE
o
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding 4.3 Anti-corruption
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
B7.1 REZHAHBTASIHESREVERENESHF 43 RES
DREENHE LFDRER -
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and 4.3 Anti-corruption
whistle-blowing procedures, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
B7.2 sy S R B REF - URBERTREEDE - 43 RES
B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to 4.3 Anti-corruption
directors and staff.
B7.3 HimEERE TRRENRE S - 43 RES
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Subject areas

Related sections

TEREE HEAEH
B8: Community General Policies on community engagement to understand 6. Supporting agriculture and
investment disclosure the needs of the communities where the issuer public welfare
operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.
B8 : HERE —REE ARUME2ERTREENEHETEMRREE 6. )N

B8.1

B8.1

B8.2

B8.2

BRBEEEERMEOBE -

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, 6.

environmental concerns, labor needs, health,
culture, sport).

EIEHER (WHE REFE HTIFL - 6

Xt 88)-

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the 6.

focus areas.

EEIREMPBER (M HEXER) 6.

Supporting agriculture and
public welfare

)N

e
Bl

Supporting agriculture and
public welfare

BE - R&E
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZBERE

Ernst & Young ZKESTENEE AT Tel E5E: +852 2846 9888
EY 27/F, One Taikoo Place  &H&#ilf AR EEO79%% Fax BH: +852 2868 4432
979 King's Road Kby — 27 ey.com
571 Quarry Bay, Hong Kong R 4
Independent auditor’s report BB E

To the shareholders of
China Boqi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 252 to
448, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BHEBEFRA (ZER) BRLF
(RAEFHEZMA LA BRI A])
BRER

=R

RIIE T FE252E 448 A FTE P BB FRR (35
B)BRAR ([EAR)) REWBAR (REI&
58 )) 2 e W BEmEK - BER2023412 431
BZHREMBRARRBEZALFEZHRE18
mx o mANER  REEREDREGEHES
MERURGEMBEHREWT  HPeEXEe
ETECRE R -

BARAE  GAVERRCRBEE S ELZ
Ee((ERETEAZESY ) BHABRTK
HEER((ERMERSERN]) B EAFHR
B EEEPN2023F 12 8318 2548 M BN
URERBEEZB EFEZEEMBRARELR
ERENE WERBEBRAGOIZHERTE
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (*“HKICPA”). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

RREXE

HMPERREESAMAS ([EREFMAE])
BB BRBCEN ([ERGBER ) £17F
T - R LA ER MBI EEE - T
MR & BN E T A & I TR B B AE —
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BITHMBERET - HFIEE - RAIMREHNE
RREMREECERERMEBRO LRE -

RAREZEE

RERMANERAE  BREZFALSEMAER
AHRNGEAMBHREATREENEHE - RME
ERERBRAVBRR LI ERE RREE I
EFE2H MIERLETEREFERER - 3L
TEFEEME @ BREAMANEZOAUEREARSE
BRRIBIG VAL IR 2E -

BPEBITARE A [ 2B B ZAR A M58
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FHBZELT - Bt - RPINBEZBERES R
Cl R M &R E M mRETERERRMAR
FHENREFORR - BEREF (BERSRE TS
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

[
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REELER(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ETNAEERREZSEE

Revenue from construction contracts

BIER MM WS

We identified the revenue from construction contracts
as a key audit matter due to the fact that the amount
recognised was significant in the consolidated
financial statements and the accounting treatments
of which requires significant estimations made by the
directors of the Company. Approximately 42% of the
Group's total revenue for the year ended 31 December
2023 was related to construction contracts.

The Group's revenue from construction contracts is
recognised over time based on the stage of completion
of the contracts, which is determined as the proportion
of the costs incurred relative to the estimated total
costs to complete the contracts.

The directors of the Company estimate both of the
profit margin and contract costs at the beginning for
each contract, revise the estimations of both profit
margin and contract costs through regular reviews
when the directors of the Company consider there are
changes in the assumptions throughout the contract
period.

The accounting policies, significant estimates and
related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 5
to the consolidated financial statements.

ARERTREZEF AV BERRTEEAN - BEEHE
BT E R ﬁ@?%%%éﬁ AtfbEt - E R AR
EEHNRERERMBBEZFR - HE20234F12A31H
IFFEREENBRATR42%EBZES LB

BEEENZES R EIREANTKERIER  MEH
SERKFE BUR FTEE A MR AMA SEAC B KO RO {4 5t AR B ZS B L 51
B -

BERREFEMRESAONENRRANRAELHE
H E BERAEFRAREASHNHAMNBRRELEL
BB TE R RIETEAEN X KA RN -

SEEEK  BEEMMARRBEHNGEE M BHRRME
24 -3K5-

Our procedures in relation to revenue from
construction contracts included:

° Evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of controls relevant to our
audit on budget preparation and revenue
recognition of construction contracts;

° Recalculating the proportion of the costs
incurred relative to the estimated total costs to
complete the contracts on a sampling basis;

° Evaluating the key assumptions adopted by
the directors of the Company in determining
the profit margin and total contract costs
by cross-checking to the corresponding
construction contracts and the respective
budgets;

° Examining construction costs incurred
during the year by tracing the supporting
documentation on a sampling basis; and

° Reviewing the adequacy of the related
disclosures included in the consolidated
financial statements.

BMHERESNRERTHNEFESE -

. HEREZEANBRERHEIWERANEZHED
R 2 AT REER R ETTRHE ¢
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by
the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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e o
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WE o

ESHGESMBRRAKENER

BERRESARRERESH EAE SR M 2B
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

BYRBEHE (F])

REMHELFES M BRRNEM

BMNEBEBRRAERESAVBRREREMS
TEeHFEARNAFRERMEBNERERR
At WELFHARMBROZBE RS - RIE
[ AT (ERRE)|E - Rtz - HFIRR
ETEEMAR - I TIRARENATEE
MEMATBESAZERNEE -

ABRREBEATHRE - HREESREER
EITE TR B AR ERFENEA
BRI - $EARUN T REKEF S SE AR A A - 141E
BB BIE S BB R TR E R EREL
SR A B RE(EH MEERER - AR AE
RSERB -

ERBEEEZBCEAETER AR » BAE
REEHE - REFFXEREE - BTN

. a8 Bl K 5 PR O R GF S B BR T B BUR & B
BHRAGFEERHERRANER - ReT R
WITEEFAREZERAR - A RER
FRMEENETRE  ERRMANER
RYERE - ARVIRFFRIBES RER - Rk -
ERER  ERRASREAMEIZNGE
S R REEERRARFMEHNEKXE
MR R =R R BE B IR A SR MR
R B A SRR AR o
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China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. FEIEFERRF (ZKR) R A F

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BYZBETRE (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

BB ERFSMBRRNEME ()
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Cheong Ming Yik.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 March 2024

BARBA®RE (&)
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China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. FEIEFERRF (ZKR) R A F

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

— = N2
mEBRR
Year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BIEFE

2023 2022
2023 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
i3 AR®T T AREFT
Revenue WA 5 2,138,199 1,900,248
Cost of sales and services SHE R ARTEAA (1,702,099) (1,509,470)
Gross profit EH 436,100 390,778
Other income and gains HA A R e 6 59,248 214,861
Other expense and losses H A5 & E1E (8,597) (247,092)
Selling and distribution expenses HE R DR (25,390) (19,910)
Administrative expenses THAX (101,642) (89,726)
Research and development expenses e (55,888) (58,662)
Impairment losses on financial and CRIEERGHNEER
contract assets EE R 7 (26,232) (15,078)
Share of profit of an associate DE— KBt D E) 7 11,437 14,395
Finance costs B 5 A AR 8 (14,449) (13,667)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBEATER 7 274,587 175,899
Income tax expenses Frigfif 10 (37,243) (20,241)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 237,344 155,658
Profit attributable to: AT AR
Owners of the parent BRAREA A 240,184 151,749
Non-controlling interests eI R (2,840) 3,909
237,344 155,658
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE B AREZERES
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF BEARGERET
THE PARENT 12
- Basic (RMB) —HARN(ARE) 0.24 0.15
— Diluted (RMB) — B (AR®E) 0.24 0.15
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
melak

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BIEFE

2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBT T

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F AR 237,344 155,658

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hfth2HE k&

Other comprehensive income that will RARBETSEFHEE
not be reclassified to profit or loss in 1Bz AE b & w2
subsequent periods:

Equity investment designated BERARBES AEM
at fair value through other PEWEHRERE -
comprehensive income:
Changes in fair value DAEEE 7 916

Net other comprehensive income that RERBBETEEFHES
will not be reclassified to profit or BmmEMmEmKEFE
loss in subsequent periods 7 916

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  FRHEMEE K @ KHIRBIEA
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 7 916

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRAZHEWK=SAEE

FOR THE YEAR 237,351 156,574
Total comprehensive income AT RGE2EKEREE -

attributable to:

Owners of the parent ISYNEIE PN 240,191 152,665

Non-controlling interests TR (2,840) 3,909

237,351 156,574
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China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. FEIEFERRF (ZKR) R A F

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBRR K

31 December 2023

2023%12H31H

2022
20224
Notes RMB’000
it ARETTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L/ E VYN E 13 680,166 627,349
Investment properties B 14 8,983 9,627
Goodwill B 16 6,567 6,488
Other intangible assets HMEREE 17 529,236 576,797
Receivables under service concession RIS FF& L L HTE T HIE
arrangement IR IR 18 457,517 492,005
Investments in associates REFE R BRI E 19 63,937 63,895
Equity investment designated at fair ~ #EFEEALBETFAEME
value through other comprehensive H KRR E
income 20 5,173 5,166
Long term receivable KEfE W k1A 35,752 49,254
Contract assets BHEE 24 134,035 16,785
Amounts due from related parties FEUR 88 5 8 42 80,897 138,125
Deferred tax assets EIETIBE E 32 54,640 45,656
Other non-current assets EMIERBEE 150,043 55,046
Total non-current assets JEMENE EARTE 2,206,946 2,086,193
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Receivables under service concession AR E L HITE T 1Y
arrangement FEW IR 18 48,307 49,762
Debt instruments at fair value through RAABEGFALMEE
other comprehensive income WmmnEKTA 26 238,689 287,538
Inventories FE 21 33,133 33,129
Financial assets at fair value through IR AREE ABZER
profit or loss TREE 25 3,373 24,661
Contract assets ABHEE 24 242,877 420,655
Trade receivables B 5 W GRIE 22 1,181,509 872,121
Prepayments, deposits and other FERRIE - EBe Kk
receivables H Y sRIE 23 296,457 217,946
Amounts due from related parties RS 58 5 3R IE 42 334,620 232,545
Pledged time deposits and bank EEAEMFRR
balances RITH R 27 84,328 98,266
Cash and cash equivalents B FREEBY 27 348,558 402,488
Total current assets MENVEERLTE 2,811,851 2,639,111
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and bills payables B 5 N TE R EAEE 28 1,117,380 1,134,240
Other payables, deposits received and Hfh EFZIE - SUWILRE K
accrued expenses JEETF X 29 373,805 341,495
Contract liabilities aHAaE 30 86,604 109,009
Income tax payable FESPRISHL 52,351 44,890
Interest-bearing bank and other T RERIT REMER
borrowings &1 118,945 92,108
Lease liabilities HEaE 15 4,172 3,529
Amounts due to related parties FE{SREE 5 FUIE 42 43,739 7,249
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

mEnBRR R (&)

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

2022
20224
Notes RMB’000
it ARETFIT
Total current liabilities MEN A EARTE 1,796,996 1,732,520
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 1,014,855 906,591
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEABERABER
LIABILITIES 3,221,801 2,992,784
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREEE
Interest-bearing bank and other FHEIRITREMER
borrowings 31 97,333 82,029
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 23,096 35,092
Deferred tax liabilities FEIERIEEE 20 31,481 26,735
Contingent consideration HARE 33 958 =
Total non-current liabilities ERBAGEE 152,868 143,856
Net assets EEFE 3,068,933 2,848,928
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of the BRRIHEER AELER
parent
Share capital % 34 67 67
Treasury shares EFERG (1) (1)
Other reserves E b 36 3,047,405 2,834,437
3,047,471 2,834,503
Non-controlling interests FEERERS 21,462 14,425
Total equity R 3,068,933 2,848,928
Zeng Zhijun Qian Xiaoning
gz®& f2HEEE
Director Director
EF EF

255



256 China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. FEIEFERRF (ZKR) R A F

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERgER

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BIEEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BAIREARE
Fair value
reserve of
financial
assets at
fair value
through other  Statutory Non-
Share Share  Treasury Merger Other ~comprehensive ~ surplus  Retained controlling Total
Noies capital ~ premium shares reserve Teserve income. reserve profits ~ Subofal interests equity
ROAEE
iARH2E
) ﬂﬁﬁ haneHEE e
3 e ErRf : itk W‘Mf’ﬁﬁﬁ BHRE  REEA FEhRE
i RMBUOO i RMB'000 000 RIB 000
* BT
ot ot i}
(i)
At January 2022 HunE AIg BB M I () SOMZ31MMEN M 6TE Mg
Prot o the year Emigf] = = = = - . TN TN I 1
Other comprehensive income for the year: EREHEANG
Equly vestment designated at farvale ~ HEARAAERTA
fhrough oher comprehensive incame, 2 ElaniE
net ftax B8 HBHE - - : : = 6 : = il = b
Tota comprehensive ncome for the year  EAZTNRAE = = = = = o B T 71T I I 11/
Transfer o staiutory surplus reserve @% EERERE e s s = = = 19264 (15264) - - -
Finl 2021 didend decled BB RIERERE = = - - - = - BR) B R 14
Repuchase and cancellton oforgnary ~~ BBREEERER
shares - (60) - - - - - - (60) - (60)
Share-based payments Hh B % = 433 = = = = = = 433 . 433
Partial disposal of a subsidary BAtENEN = 5 s = ] s s = a7 1241 1515
Capial necton fom non-contoling RERERRRNE"
shareholders™ - - - - - - - - - 2500 2500
At 31 December 2022and 1 January 2023 RO2E12331R R
ABEIF1A 67 868,874 () 00 (127,899) 916 6537 1414503 2834503 14425 2848928
Prot for the year s - - - . - - SuO diM M) 2
Othercomprehensive ncomefor e year: ~~ ERERAEY R
Equity investmen designated at fair value EEBRLABEIA
fhough ohercomprehensive inome, net of ,ﬁﬁf?@%mx%
far R Mk - - - - - 7 . - 7 - 1
Tota comprehensive income forthe year mémmﬁm - - - - - 7 S N T !N I K
Transfer to statutory surplus reserve % ETRRRE = = = - - - 18,863 (18,863) - - -
Fina 2022 didend decired oERARERARS ¢ - 2 2 - - 2 - ) @) 7]
Disposa o a subsidiay ﬁg FHELE - - - - - - - - - o) (2000
Share-esed payments uﬁx«‘amm % - m 2 - - . - - W] - 1
Aoquiston o subsicy YE-7HELA 7 - s - - - - - - - fm
At 31 December 2023 H023%E1283A o7 869,303 (1) iS00t (fargeg) 923 54000 1608172 30474M 2462 3068933

- ZERBREERESSMBHRARANGS H

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other

*k

reserves of RMB3,047,405,000 (2022: RMB2,834,437,000) in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

In 2022, Beijing Bogqgi Tianqgi Environmental Protection
Technology Co., Ltd. received a capital injection of
RMB2,000,000 from a non-controlling shareholder, and Handan
Bogi Environmental Technology Co., Ltd. received a capital
injection of RMB500,000 from a non-controlling shareholder.

*k

TR AR 3,047,405,0007C (20224F © AR
#2 834,437,0007T) °

R2022F At REHFAMBERHEERA
AER—BHEERBREABBITESBEARE
2,000,0007T * MiBEBEFTREARFEBR A
AIER—BEERREABBIECEARE
500,0007T ©



Notes:

(if)

(iii)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

Other reserves mainly represent the distribution amounting
to RMB130,310,000 made to the shareholder in the form of
settlement of a bank loan for the shareholder during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

In accordance with the articles of association of the
subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC"),

of their profit after tax as per statutory financial statements

PRC subsidiaries are required to set aside 10%

determined under PRC laws and regulations for the statutory
surplus reserve fund until the reserve reaches 50% of
their registered capital. Transfer to this reserve must be
made before distributing dividends to equity owners of the
subsidiaries. The statutory surplus reserve can be used to
make up for previous years’ losses, expand the existing
operations or converted into additional capital of the respective

subsidiaries.

The Group did not have material non-controlling interests
during both years and hence disclosure of material non-

controlling interests is not made.

HazE

(if)

(iii)

REERSER (B)

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BIEFE

Hi@EETIrEEREE2016F12A31HIEE
BUABRREERTERFEAMBRRELESHE
B AR%130,310,000 T D IR ©

RIBRPEARKME ([HE D KIZOHER
AIMABERMA - RS AR ARSETEY
BHREMRREBETRERIOEREENRKIL
BAIN0%BEEZERRFEES  EERHEED
HiTMEARS0% - RO IERE THEAR#ER

BEAARIALAZREBRER  AERBREE
ARNEHEBEFEER BRAALEXER

RN B R RNFEIIER -

REE R TG HEGEE RN IEER R
WA BRI AR R -

&l 1t
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China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. FEIEFERRF (ZKR) R A F

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GmERERER

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BIEFE

Notes
Hfat
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RERETDH2HERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax R A5 A& A
Adjustments for: AR
Finance costs BT R AR
Share of profit of an associate pak (=) d—/NCIbing il
Interest income FEWA 6
Profit from construction service under SIS E R
concession operation
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERERETE
equipment 7
Depreciation of investment properties & WEITE 7
Amortisation of other intangible assets — Efth # i2 & B 4 7
Impairment of other intangible assets B\ EERE 7
Amortisation of other non-current HAihIEmeEh & E g
assets 7
Impairment of goodwill EERE 7
Impairment of trade receivables B S EWGRIERE 7
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment E Y GRIE CRE
of other receivables #E),/ RE 7
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment B WK IE R E
of long-term receivable CRERD), RE 7
Impairment of contract assets BREERE 7
Impairment of amounts due from FE W B8 7 IR E
related parties 7
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) Pl 75 4 B A S 2o
of receivables under service BT HERFRIERE,
concession arrangement CRIE#RE) 7
Reversal of provisions for inventories FERE D 7
(Gain)/loss on disposal of non-current  HE&EIEREEER
assets (=) /&8
Loss on fair value changes in financial &R BEFAEBRLN
assets at fair value through profit or TRMEEZANEE
loss 2EEE
(Gain)/loss on disposal of equity HERQAREBETA
investments at fair value through B RERE 2
profit or loss (W) &8
Dividend income from financial assets AR BEAEEL
at fair value through profit or loss TREEZRBBA 6
Gain on fair value adjustment of FHEFANREDN
contingent consideration NABEERE 6
Gain on adjustment of acquisition AEBER BN
consideration
Share-based payment expenses ARG B AR Z B X 7
Foreign exchange differences, net MEH ZRRFE

2023
2023 F

RMB’000
ARBT R

274,587

14,449
(11,437)
(12,914)

(226)
58,370

644
57,886

17,377
22,878
(113)

(1,105)
850

476

3,246

(1,680)

(5,046)

(542)

429
(3,090)

2022
20224
RMB’000
AREF T

175,899
13,667
(14,395)
(11,064)
(375)
42,585
644
72,084
27,612
8,115
141,469
11,188
3,758

294
148

926
(1,236)
(190)

2,437

9,536

63,134
(1,533)
(10,060)
(160,921)

4,334
(11,930)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

FERERER (B)

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BIEFE

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 AR%T T AR¥ET T
Operating cash flows before EEESEBAIZ
movements in working capital REFERE 415,039 366,126
Increase in inventories FEEN (4) (3,390)
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets AHNEERD
(3% h0) 111,554 (134,465)
(Increase)/decrease in trade B 5 RE (3gm),
receivables L (382,069) 113,195
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, TERRIE - e REMA
deposits and other receivables FEMSRIE (35 00) ik (50,759) 10,479
Decrease in receivables under service — BRFSHFRF &L 2 HEEY
concession arrangement JFE LR TERL 32,697 19,274
Decrease/(increase) in debt instruments ERA R BEF AELMEE
at fair value through other WM ER T AR
comprehensive income () 49,149 (3,370)
Increase in amounts due from related  FEURRAE 5 FIEHE N
parties (40,011) (55,637)
Decrease in trade and bills payables S RN FRIER
FERT = IRR (49,670) (2,096)
Increase in other payables, deposits HAtm e skIE ~ 2
received and accrued expenses B &R T IE N 12,643 20,704
Decrease in contract liabilities BRBERD (22,405) (175,436)
Increase/(decrease) in amounts due to  JEATBEE 5 ZUEE N,
related parties CRA) 36,490 (8,452)
Cash generated from operations LGRS 112,654 146,932
Interest received 2 WF B 8,429 6,431
Income tax paid BEARATER (34,685) (16,319)
Net cash flows from operating RETBBESFE
activities 86,398 137,044
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China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. FEIEFERRF (ZKR) R A F

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
mERSRER (&)

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BIEFE

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 AR%T T AR¥ET T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REREFHZHERE
ACTIVITIES
Decrease of pledged bank deposits EHIRRITIF R 13,938 43,743
Interest received BEFE 713 860
Dividend received from an associate B B A A ER B 14,395 30,601
Dividend received from financial assets BIRAAEBETARBZNS
at fair value through profit or loss BhE EWEAR B - 1,533
Proceeds from disposal of financial HEZRQALBEFABER
assets at fair value through profit or CREEMBRIA
loss 26,654 84,493
Purchase of property, plant and BEME - BENEE
equipment (126,866) (84,892)
Proceeds from disposal of property, LEWE  BERZERS
plant and equipment RIE 12,682 398
Purchase of intangible assets and cost & B & &E MRS EF R4
capitalised under service concession ERENETER
arrangements (17,503) (25,408)
Acquisition of financial assets at fair BERAABESABRN
value through profit or loss TREE - (3,054)
Purchases of equity investment BEIETAEAAEBEA
designated at fair value through other  Hfh & EURZFHRTHERE
comprehensive income - (4,250)
(Increase)/decrease of advances to [ REE Sy B (1),
related parties N (5,312) 440
Acquisition of subsidiaries 1 B BT B8 R ) (11,166) (49,690)
Loss of control of a subsidiary o B N B B9 il (999) =
Purchase of other non-current assets EEHMIERBEE (25,220) (17,679)
Net cash flows used in investing RETBFARSFEE
activities (118,684) (22,905)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

FERERER (B)

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F12A31BIEFE

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Wizt AR¥T T ARETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REMETBZRESRE
ACTIVITIES
New bank and other borrowings raised # &5 1T R EM &R 90,781 73,500
Capital injection from non-controlling REFEZERIEAFE
shareholders - 2,500
Proceeds from discounted notes IRITE AR E TR
receivable from banks FR1S3R1E 35,177 22,313
Repayment of the principal portion of EEMEEENASED
lease liabilities - (1,722)
Repurchase of ordinary shares EACIRE =Ny - (60)
Repayments of bank and other ERIRIT RAMERK
borrowings (109,702) (87,641)
Interest paid ERFE (13,338) (11,608)
Dividends paid EARE (27,652) (63,821)
Net cash flows used in financing RMEEE AR SFE
activities (24,734) (66,539)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN ReRRLEE/Y (RD)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EnFEE (57,020) 47,600
Cash and cash equivalents at RENZRER
beginning of year REZEEY 402,488 342,958
Effect of foreign exchange rate ExEE s HETHE
changes, net 3,090 11,930
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RERZEERESZEY
END OF YEAR 348,558 402,488
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China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. FEIEFERRF (ZKR) R A F

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ISR AR

31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

China Boqgi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on
30 January 2015 and its shares were listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on
16 March 2018. The addresses of the registered office
of the Company and principal place of business of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) are disclosed in the section headed
“Corporate Information” in the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company.
During the year, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

° Flue gas treatment business

° Water treatment business

° Hazardous and solid waste treatment/disposal
business

° Dual-carbon new energy* business

In the opinion of the directors of the Company
(“Directors”), there is no single entity that could be
considered as the ultimate holding company.

ARREMAR

PREFRR(ZER) BRAA (TEA
A1) R2015F1 A30BEM S S EMA
U RERRBERAT - HIRHMN20184F3
R16BEREBHMAERZMER AT EIR £
e ARAMEMPBERLAAR REH
BAT (5B AEE])HEZLE XN
BN FRI ABIER ] —& -

RRRBREEBR AT - FR - AEER
EUATEERR

FERBIE XS

. R

. fo [ B B T e B 5K 7%

. EHRHTREIR 15

ARTEF (EF)BA LRE—ER
B ABEERAT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ATREEER (£Z)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries EEMBATNER

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

BEAARREIZMBRRZFBNT

as follows:
Place of incorporation/ Issued
registration and ordinary/registered Percentage of equity
Name business share capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
MR,/ BRITEER/
3 AR E B EfRE FAAEERERDL TERY
Direct Indirect
E& S
CBEE Holdings Co., Ltd. (‘CBEE")* British Virgin Islands - 100% - Investment holding
("BVI")
AERAES REARR
Beijing Shengyi Tiancheng PRC/Chinese Mainland™  RMB521,500,000 100% - Investment holding
Environmental SCI-TECH Co., Ltd.
(“Beijing Shengyi")*
IREERRBRRIBERAT &/ EAE AR¥521,500,0007C RERR
([EHEE )
Beijing Bosheng Environmental PRC/Chinese Mainland™ RMB10,000,000 = 100%  Investment holding
SCI-TECH Co., Ltd.
IRBERRIEARAA hE /hE AR ARH10,000,0007C REER
Beijing Boqi Electric Power PRC/Chinese Mainland™*  RMB550,000,000 - 100%  Environmental
SCI-TECH Co., Ltd. protection facilities
(“Beijing Bogi") engineering,
operation and
maintenance services
IRBFENMRERAT hE /A AR AR#550,000,0007C RRRMIE
(F'3:3-5:3)) E2REERY
Jiangxi Jinggangshan Bogi PRC/Chinese Mainland™ RMB81,000,000 = 100%  Concession operation
Environmental Technology Co., Ltd. services
(“Jinggangshan Bogi")
IRFRALEEREMRARAR hEl /B KR AR#81,000,0007T B ERY

(MHRALET])
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China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. FEIEFERRF (ZKR) R A F

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

RAREEER (&)

FRWBARNESR (&)

Place of incorporation/ Issued
registration and ordinary/registered Percentage of equity
Name business share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
MR,/ BRIZER/
£ EREE LY EMRE FAAEERERDL TEER
Direct Indirect
HE 3
Shanxi Puzhou Bogi PRC/Chinese Mainland** RMB55,000,000 - 100%  Concession operation
Environmental Technology Co., Ltd. services
(“Puzhou Boqi")
WEEM EERRRRERAR e/ R AR AR#55,000,0007C BHEE RS
(IANE=E])
Shanxi Hejin Bogi Environmental PRC/Chinese Mainland** RMB25,000,000 - 100%  Concession operation
Technology Co., Ltd. services
(“Hejin Boqi")
WS RRRRERAR e/ A AR AR#25,000,0007C BHEE RS
(Deds])
Anhui Nengda Fuel Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland** RMB20,000,000 = 100%  Sale of coal and
chemicals
ZHEERHERAT N AK#20,000,0007C RR2miEE
Shanxi Bo Yuan Qi Cheng PRC/Chinese Mainland™  RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Operation and
Environmental Equipment maintenance services
Service Co., Ltd.
WEERFRRRRBRBERAR e/ R AR AR%10,000,0007T BERGERY
Changjizhou Bogi Environmental PRC/Chinese Mainland™*  RMB140,000,000 - 100%  Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd. protection facility
(“Changjizhou Bogi") engineering,
operation and
maintenance services,
and concession
operation services
EEMBERRMEARAR A N AR140,000,0007 BR7MEIE  EEEE

[EENER])

ERB R AR RS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fRE ISR R MR ()

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

RAREEER (&)

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

FRWBARNESR (&)

Place of incorporation/ Issued
registration and ordinary/registered Percentage of equity
Name business share capital attributable to the Company  Principal activities
MR,/ BRTZER/
£ EREEE Y EMRE FAAEERERDL TEER
Direct Indirect
HE S

Beijing Bogi Environmental PRC/Chinese Mainland** RMB10,000,000 - 60%  Technology services,
Remediation Tech Co., Ltd. engineering and

exploration services

IREFREEEERAA e/ R AR AR#10,000,0007C KRS - TRROKER

%

Huainan Bogi Environmental PRC/Chinese Mainland** RMB50,000,000 - 100%  Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd. protection facility
(“Huainan Bogi") engineering,

operation and
maintenance services

EHBTRRNMBEARRA e/ AR AKE#50,000,0007C AR
(FEmEsEl) EERBERK

Laibin Bogi Environmental PRC/Chinese Mainland** RMB80,000,000 - 100%  Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd. protection facility
(“Laibin Bogi") engineering,

operation and
maintenance services

REBSRRMBRERAT hE /A AR AR %80,000,0007C RR&MIE
(IxERT]) EERMEERT

Changzhi Bogi Environmental PRC/Chinese Mainland™  RMB128,000,000 = 100%  Water treatment
Technology Co., Ltd. business
(“Changzhi Boqi")

RRBARRMRERAR hE /A AR AR 128,000,0007C KEBLK
(IRaEz])

Tangshan Bogi Environmental PRC/Chinese Mainland™* RMB30,000,000 - 100%  Hazardous and solid
Technology Co., Ltd. waste treatment/
(“Tangshan Boqi") disposal service

BILESRRMRERAR hE /B AR AKE#30,000,0007T BRI G E R

([ELES])



266

China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. FEIEFERRF (ZKR) R A F

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

RAREEER (&)

FRWBARNESR (&)

Place of incorporation/
registration and

Issued

ordinary/registered

Percentage of equity

Name business share capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
MR,/ BRIZER/
£ EREE LY ERE FAAEERERDL TEER
Direct Indirect
EE E3

Handan Bogi Environmental PRC/Chinese Mainland** RMB75,000,000 - 70%  Dual-carbon new
Technology Co., Ltd. (*Handan Bogi’) energy* business

HBBFERUZERAT (BBEF]) =8/ HEAE AR#75,000,0007C SR R%

Qinghai Bogi Ecological Environmental  PRC/Chinese Mainland** RMB30,000,000 - 92%  Hazardous and solid
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Qinghai Bogi") waste treatment/

\ disposal service

EEBSERRANRARRA e/ R AR AR30,000,0007C EERRERERY
([B8EF))

Jiangsu Bogi Smart Energy Co., Ltd. PRC/Chinese Mainland** RMB30,000,000 - 51%  Dual-carbon new
(“Jiangsu Bogi") energy* business

IHBEARERRARAR (IKER)) P&/ HEAE AR30,000,0007 SRR E%

Zhongxie power Energy Wuxi PRC/Chinese Mainland** RMBS5,000,000 - 51%  Dual-carbon new
Co., Ltd. energy* business
(“Zhongxie Power”)

THENERERERAR hE /hEAE ARH5,000,0007C SHABR %
(ThtEHn])

Wuxi Huadong No.2 Smart Energy PRC/Chinese Mainland** RMB5,000,000 - 51%  Dual-carbon new
Co., Ltd. energy* business
(“Huadong No.2")

ERER _BESRRARRA e/ R AR AR#5,000,0007 Bl R X%
(IBR=%])

Wuxi Huaxin Energy Development PRC/Chinese Mainland™* RMB30,000,000 - 51%  Dual-carbon new
Co., Ltd. energy* business
(“Huaxin Energy’)

ESMENLRERARLA e/ R E AR AR30,000,0007C ERAMER 25
([2&&R])

Shanxi Bogi Green Energy Technology ~ PRC/ Chinese Mainland™  RMB50,000,000 - 100%  Dual-carbon new
Co., Ltd. ("Shanxi Bogi") energy* business

REBFZENHERAR(KERS]) =8/ FEAE AKE#50,000,0007T EhaTER 5%

Except for CBEE and Beijing Shengyi, all of the above
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company.

> These subsidiaries were registered as limited liability
companies under PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

* MCBEERILREES - LM EH B
REIARRREERFE

e ZEMBABNRETEEREMAE
REERA -

ERIHEERRIBYEFAEEASE
RASEEEEFEEARN D ZARAME
NE - EERG - WIEEMHB QR
B eERBENTE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRSs”) (which include all IFRSs,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for debt investments, contingent
consideration and equity investments which have been
measured at fair value. These consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2023. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the

investee).

2.1

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

BHEE
CLEe

AMBHBRDREBRE ST ENERS
((EEHERNEEE ) BHNBERME

HEEA ([ERMBEHREER ] - SFFHR
BEBRHHEREER - B ER (TH

BMEstER]) R2E) REB QRGN
BERTERE - AU BEHKRIIRE LKA
ERE - ERAREEAENERRE
HAREBRERIRERI - AP BEHKR A
AREB(TAR®]) 27 ME=A5IAE
Sh - A BEHNEEAZREON T
2

BRAVBREREARARENB QA
(BRI AEBE]) HE2023F12A31H
LEFENBBHHRE - WBAREHAR
AEEEEESNER (RELBETE
)  BAKERBALHEWEIREFNIESE
V& B AR A 2 B R A R R ok = A AT
W ERENEREHBEREFTNED
(BIAREBBENIEEHIREHBBEED
MIRBEF) Y EEEERE - IS
4 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

28

2.1

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of
voting rights results in control. When the Company has,
directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting
or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether
it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

2.1

SR (&)
mBLEE (F)
REEE(E)

—RME - RERGAZHBIREENEH
RSESE EASEERIERESD
RIRIE 5 K2 BIR RS IR LUE N R0 F
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EEE
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oy NIk 0b R B e R GOk JE e
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12 I R By RIAR L E B
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: HE2HRENSAKEBD HER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises the related assets (including goodwill),
liabilities, any non-controlling interest and the exchange
fluctuation reserve; and recognises the fair value of any
investment retained and any resulting surplus or deficit
in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
IFRSs for the first time for the current year’'s financial
statements.
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
Amendments to IAS 1

and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction

Amendments to IAS 12 International Tax Reform —

Pillar Two Model Rules

2.1

2.2

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

SR (&)
mBLEE (F)
REEE(E)

i 74N 5% [ 38 5 39 3 — Y 8 2 ] O #2254
AEEeRIERFHEE (BREEE)
BE - IR R KB
WHER T REERREN R EERAL
HIRWERBR ARG - REE DG
Z AR EAD 2 RS R RO IEH D
BEBEalFREBEN RERME) - K
BREERASEERNENBEEELAE
R FT7ABEEMER -

B BRZEBRKE

AEBERAFEMBREREREAAT

] RS T BIRR B IS 3R 5 22 R -
BRIl E &R REEA
E1758

B e ERE1R SHBERE
K BUPR B 75 s o5
R H5 8 A

E25% (IBETA)
REETER BEAETHES

%85}L(f ETZS)

BIER & 5t 2R HE-XGHESL

£12% (BRIA) EBERREFMHL
BEEFE
R RT AR BB 2L E —

F12RUBRIAR)  FSH_EZEA
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mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

28

2.2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

The nature and the impact of the new and revised IFRSs

that are applicable to the Group are described below:

(a)

Amendments to IAS 1 require entities to disclose
their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies.
Accounting policy information is material if,
when considered together with other information
included in an entity’s financial statements,
it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements. Amendments to
IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality
Judgements provide non-mandatory guidance
on how to apply the concept of materiality
to accounting policy disclosures. The Group
has disclosed the material accounting policy
information in note 2 to the financial statements.
The amendments did not have any impact on the
measurement, recognition or presentation of any
items in the Group’s financial statements.

SR (&)
B ERRz2EBREE (F)

TXFHERAR AR B E] REEFTE
BRUBREENNEERTE

(a)

B e ERF1RERERER
BEMNBEZSTBRENMIEEE
BEECR o MEREEMEREA
HER—HZE - @5ECRER
AEEEHeTEBRENMBE®R
ENETEFAEERZEVHRE
EHEVREK - AIZEHBEE -
BRE R E R ERREFE 2% (B
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ZMBRSERAN ST B ERM
FERFIMIES| - ARE DR BE®
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction
between changes in accounting estimates and
changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts
in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The amendments also
clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates.
Since the Group's approach and policy align with
the amendments, the amendments had no impact
on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction narrow the scope of the
initial recognition exception in IAS 12 so
that it no longer applies to transactions that
give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore,
entities are required to recognise a deferred
tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable
profit is available) and a deferred tax liability
for temporary differences arising from these
transactions. Upon the application of the
amendments, the Group has determined the
temporary differences arising from right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities separately, which
have been reflected in the reconciliation
disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements.
However, they did not have any material impact
on the overall deferred tax balances presented in
the consolidated statement of financial position
as the related deferred tax balances qualified for
offsetting under IAS 12.

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H
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2.2

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(d)

Amendments to |1AS 12 International Tax Reform —
Pillar Two Model Rules introduce a mandatory
temporary exception from the recognition and
disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the
implementation of the Pillar Two model rules
published by the Organisation for Economic
Co-operation and Development. The amendments
also introduce disclosure requirements for the
affected entities to help users of the financial
statements better understand the entities’
exposure to Pillar Two income taxes, including
the disclosure of current tax related to Pillar
Two income taxes separately in the periods
when Pillar Two legislation is effective and the
disclosure of known or reasonably estimable
information of their exposure to Pillar Two income
taxes in periods in which the legislation is
enacted or substantively enacted but not yet in
effect. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively. Since the Group did not fall
within the scope of the Pillar Two model rules,
the amendments did not have any impact to the
Group.

SR (&)
B ERRz2EBREE (F)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following revised IFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements. The Group intends to apply
these revised IFRSs, if applicable, when they become
effective.

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture?®

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback’

Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current
(the “2020 Amendments”)’

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)’

Supplier Finance

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 7

and IFRS 7 Arrangements’

Amendments to IAS 21

Lack of Exchangeability?

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2025
& No mandatory effective date yet determined but

available for adoption

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H
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2.3

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10
and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction
when the sale or contribution of assets constitutes a
business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are
to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28
was removed by the IASB. However, the amendments
are available for adoption now.

Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements that
a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability
arising in a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure
the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the
gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be applied
retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of
IFRS 16 (i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, including
what is meant by a right to defer settlement and that
a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting
period. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement. The amendments also clarify that a liability
can be settled in its own equity instruments, and that
only if a conversion option in a convertible liability is
itself accounted for as an equity instrument would the
terms of a liability not impact its classification. The 2022
Amendments further clarify that, among covenants of
a liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those
with which an entity must comply on or before the
reporting date affect the classification of that liability
as current or non-current. Additional disclosures are
required for non-current liabilities that are subject to
the entity complying with future covenants within 12
months after the reporting period. The amendments
shall be applied retrospectively with early application
permitted. An entity that applies the 2020 Amendments
early is required to apply simultaneously the 2022
Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of the amendments and whether
existing loan agreements may require revision. Based
on a preliminary assessment, the amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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2.3.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and
require additional disclosure of such arrangements.
The disclosure requirements in the amendments
are intended to assist users of financial statements
in understanding the effects of supplier finance
arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and
exposure to liquidity risk. Earlier application of the
amendments is permitted. The amendments provide
certain transition reliefs regarding comparative
information, quantitative information as at the beginning
of the annual reporting period and interim disclosures.
The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 21 specify how an entity shall
assess whether a currency is exchangeable into another
currency and how it shall estimate a spot exchange rate
at a measurement date when exchangeability is lacking.
The amendments require disclosures of information
that enable users of financial statements to understand
the impact of a currency not being exchangeable.
Earlier application is permitted. When applying the
amendments, an entity cannot restate comparative
information. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits
or to the cumulative amount of translation differences
accumulated in a separate component of equity, where
appropriate, at the date of initial application. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates is included
in profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the
Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in
the associates, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates.
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2.4

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)

If an investment in associates becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate, the Group measures and recognises any
retained investment at its fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss
of significant influence and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in
profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held
for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.
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2.4

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as
at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating unit (the “CGU”), or groups
of cash-generating units (the “CGU groups”), that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the CGU (or CGU groups) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the
CGU is less than the carrying amount, an impairment
loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a CGU (or a
CGU group) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the CGU retained.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its debt and equity investments at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, contract assets, deferred tax
assets, financial assets and investment properties), the
asset’'s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or the
CGU’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset
belongs. In testing a CGU for impairment, a portion
of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a
headquarters building) is allocated to an individual
CGU if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of
cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of
that person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iiiy is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

or

(b)

the party is an entity where any of the
following conditions applies:

(i the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

(iii) ~ the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. When an item
of property, plant and equipment is classified as held
for sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified
as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted
for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for sale and Discontinued Operations. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated by the units-of-production
method to write off the cost of each item of landfills
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
estimated landfill volume are as follows:

Rigid landfills
Flexible landfill

50,000 tons/each
500,000 tons/each
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

Except for landfills, depreciation is calculated on the
straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item of
property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives of
property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Owned properties 14 to 30 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Fixtures and equipment 2 to 20 years
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
lands and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold lands and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial
recognition. To the extent the allocation of the relevant
payments can be made reliably, interest in leasehold
lands is presented as “property, plant and equipment”
in the consolidated statement of financial position. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in
the underlying leasehold lands, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

2.

24

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

SRBE(E)
EESEHBE(E)
M- BERREBRIFE (&)

BRIBIE S -
ERFEHMESEDE - BE R

WETABREREME A
% (5 I AK

AEEFHREENE - W BELZE
AT AT E R FRNT ¢

BEME 14304
ARE 54
BTHEEREE 2E 2045
E—IHYE  BEERRENSHHETR
AI{E AR ZEENRANREER
BEZHAD Z2EHE - MEED THERHE

TE - FREE  IERFHRTESX
ELRBZHREHRRE - WAL A (1
BR)  TAEA RSN EREREE
AF

EAKEMRYENRAEER (BHEE
ELREFRS) ARE - 2HAER
ﬁ&im&%$W“Z%E@ﬁ%ﬂ%m
BE R EENLPI DR - MIBRE N EE
SN Wﬁfiﬁm%‘ ﬁﬁ%%
RRAKAZINRE - BFER&HE] -
ﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁ@ﬁhimm%ﬁhﬁ$ﬁ
DRARDEEe 2 H A Nk - BIAY
EOBERME - BFEKEE -

287



288

China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. FEIEFERRF (ZKR) R A F

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

28

2.4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. It is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including right-of-use assets) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses.

The investment properties are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the rate of 3.17% per annum with
the estimated residual value of 5% of the cost.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in
the year of the retirement or disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets with finite useful lives, other than
service concession arrangements as set out in “Service
concession arrangements” below, that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are expected
from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised
in profit or loss in the period when the asset is
derecognised.

When the Group has a right to charge for usage of
service concession infrastructure (as a consideration for
providing construction services in a service concession
arrangement), it recognises an intangible asset at fair
value upon initial recognition. The Group’s intangible
assets represent operating concessions and are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses, if any. Operating concessions are
amortised over the tenure of the service concession
arrangements and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using straight-line method.
The residual value is estimated by the Directors for
the amount that could be recovered when the relevant
contractual party is obliged to pay the Group for the
transfer of infrastructure (which is built by the Group
for obtaining the operating concession) at a price
appraised by valuer upon the expiry of the service
concession arrangements (if not extendable by the
relevant contractual party) in accordance with the
relevant service concession agreements. The estimated
useful life, residual value and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of the reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for
on a prospective basis. Further details of operating
concessions are set out in “Service concession
arrangements” below.
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2.4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) (Continued)

Service concession arrangements are amortised on
a straight-line basis, over the remaining concession
period. Other intangible assets are amortised on a
straight-line basis based on their estimated useful lives
as follows:

Software

Software is stated at cost less any impairment losses
and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of 5 years.

Patents and trademarks

Patents and trademarks are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of 5 to 15 years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as
incurred.

Customer relationship

Customer relationship is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and is amortised on the straight-line
basis over its estimated useful life of 5 years.

Service concession arrangements

The Group has entered into a number of service
concession arrangements with certain owners of the
power plants and other entities (the “Grantors”).

Under these service concession arrangements:

o the Grantors control or regulate the services the
Group must provide with the infrastructure, to
whom it must provide them, and at what price;
and

° the Grantors control, through ownership,
beneficial entitlement or otherwise, any
significant residual interest in the infrastructure
at the end of the term of the arrangements, or
the infrastructure is used for its entire useful life
under the arrangements, or both the Group’s
practical ability to sell or pledge the infrastructure
is restricted and continuing right of use of the
infrastructure is given to the Grantors throughout
the period of the arrangements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Service concession arrangements (Continued)
Consideration given to the Grantor

During construction stage, a contract asset is
recognised to the extent that the Group has a future
unconditional right to receive cash or another financial
asset from the Grantors for the consideration paid and
payable by the Group to the Grantors upon completion
of the construction of the relevant infrastructure, that
is a condition for granting such unconditional right.
The contract asset is transferred to financial asset
(receivable under a service concession arrangement)
when the construction of the relevant infrastructure
is completed. The Group has unconditional right to
receive cash if the Grantors contractually guarantee to
pay the Group specified or determinable amounts or
the shortfall (the “Guarantee”), if any, between amounts
received from the users of the service and specified or
determinable amounts.

The financial assets (receivables under service
concession arrangements) are accounted for in
accordance with the policy set out for financial assets
at amortised cost below. An intangible asset (operating
concession) is recognised to the extent that the Group
receives a right to charge users of the service, which is
not an unconditional right to receive cash because the
amounts are contingent on the extent that the use, and
is accounted for in accordance with the policy set out
for “Intangible assets” above.

If the Group is paid for the consideration partly by a
financial asset and partly by an intangible asset, then
each component of the consideration is accounted for
separately and is recognised initially at the fair value of
the consideration.
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2.4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right
to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is
the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred,
and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets
as follows:

Leasehold lands
Leased properties

50 years
11to 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over
the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under
residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination
of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as an expense
in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion
of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.
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2.4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
leased machinery and equipment (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets to leases of machinery and equipment
that are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance
lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue
in profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on
the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are
earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset
to the lessee are accounted for as finance leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured
at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.
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2.4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets,
or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets
classified and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or
reversals are recognised in profit or loss and computed
in the same manner as for financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes
are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled
to profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as
other income in profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, except when the Group benefits
from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost
of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are
recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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2.4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

This category includes equity investments which the
Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Dividends
on the equity investments are also recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if
the economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to the host; a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract
containing a financial asset host is not accounted for
separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)

removed from

when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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2.4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what
extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under the
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets,
which are subject to impairment under IFRS 9 (including
trade receivables, other receivables, amounts due from
related parties, debt instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income, receivables under service
concession arrangement, long-term receivable, cash
and bank balances, and time deposits) and contract
assets. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well
as the forecast of future conditions.

Simplified approach

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables, contract assets and amounts due from
related parties-trade portion without significant financing
component. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date. Except for debtors including
which is credit-impaired is assessed for impairment
individually, the trade receivables, contract assets
and amounts due from related parties-trade portion
are grouped under a provision matrix into internal
credit rating buckets based on shared credit risk
characteristics by reference to repayment histories for
recurring customers and current past due exposure for
the new customers.

General approach

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12 months ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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2.4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

(a)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g., a significant
increase in the credit spread, or the length
of time or the extent to which the fair value
of a financial asset has been less than its
amortised cost;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

(a)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse

change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.
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2.4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

(b)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting
an event of default for internal credit risk
management purposes as historical experience
indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable.

° when there is a breach of covenants by
the counterparty; or

° information developed internally or
obtained from external sources indicates
that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when the
contractual payment is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

SR (&)
EEEHBRE(E)
SRMEEREHE)
—RI % ()

(b)

BRI T E

AEBRBR/ATERARAIEER
REEBNMEBRENEN B
RBEERRATE A MMM —A
1RO FEUGR IR — AR R IR @]

. M EDEE £ KB B MR RIR
MERKR - BFARKA
EREEA (RREASE) 2
BEN Tt RAKEFH
R ERE AR

Eiw EXoNE > AEERRE
BANAREBI0 AR - BB
HED BEAEEERERAE
BHNENZEARERNENRER
RERRE B -



2.4.

Annual Report 2023 F 1R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

(c)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or

more events that have a detrimental impact on

the estimated future cash flows of that financial

asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial

asset is credit-impaired includes observable data

about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is

information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has

been placed under liquidation or has entered into

bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off

may still be subject to enforcement activities under the

Group's recovery procedures. Any recoveries made are

recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default and the exposure at
default. The assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data adjusted
Estimation of ECL

reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount

by forward-looking information.

that is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

To measure the ECL, contract assets, trade receivables
and amounts due from related parties-trade portion are
grouped based on shared common risk characteristics.
The Group believes that most of the customers of trade
receivable, contract assets and amounts due from
related parties-trade portion are the same in nature,
who are power plants, and treats all customers as one
single group. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
the Directors to ensure the constituents of the Group
continue to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Except for investments in debt instruments that are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income, the Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the exception
of trade receivables, contract assets, amounts due
from related parties, receivables under service
concession arrangement, long-term receivable and
other receivables where the corresponding adjustment

is recognised through a loss allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as contingent consideration, loans and borrowings,
payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills
payables, other payables, amounts due to related
parties, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other
payables, and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables,
and interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.
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2.4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held
by the Company or the Group (treasury shares) are
recognised directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.

Inventories

Inventories mainly include supplies and spare parts in
relation to the Group’s environmental protection facility
and operation and maintenance services, and are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
of inventories is calculated using the first-in-first-out
method. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

2.

2.4

SR (&)
EREFEE(E)
TR ERIERER

TRAENAEETER  BUBERR
AR EHERR

HWRETHMABERS —HAR-—BEAR
HEBRED HER TR EEMRAK - =X
RERBENGRREANRER - MBEARE
HIEFTRR BRI ERRA ABEAL TR
BEERE  MARKREEMNZENERED

k=)

HEHEEmMTA

e 2 B A5 BJ 5% B B0 1T HOOE TE R A B 2 HERR
TRETEE  YEERERFRELEE
HBARAREREENEERE  AIS@E
ERSRAGENEEBDFERMBRREK
5I%R -

EFRA

ERAVNSIE®S S E-AERiS R0k gz o)
ATR(BFEBRMD) BRAEREZRD

R BAKREAGHBRATARTE - &
e iRl - AN EERaPRERKEIE
&

#H
BEIEOEEHAEERIRRIEREE
RNEERBEHWERBH - RRAERTE
R E M B RIS E I - FRARA
A HUASE o T RBFED R E
B AT A B 2K T 5 S A PO 31 B
ATEHE -



2.4.

Annual Report 2023 F 1R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position comprise cash on hand and at banks, and
short-term highly liquid deposits with a maturity
of generally within three months that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value and held for the
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, and short-term deposits as defined
above, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to
be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as
a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any
reimbursement.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
profit or loss.

2.

24

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

SRBE(E)
EREFEE(E)
RERRLSEEY

REBIRARANRE LIRS FEEYER
FHRRE MRITEF - UE—RR=EA
WEH - ATERERAC NS ERENE
HERatEEs  EFRkaEEZHER
AR I RMREHESAEMIEA

ARGEETRERMNE REMRSEFE
YVEFEFERESRRITERUAR EXRE
B HF AR RBR R IR ESREE RAK A
SEBRSERTARRIDNIRITES ©

BiE

BEIRABESHMAARRKEE
CEESMETE) - METHEER A LB
REERRE BZE TS SRR 5
AR HERR -

B ETREAGERN A ST A B
2ENERSBIULEE @ EENZENS
ErHEERS#R - ARBGNEREN
BREFEMNRERBZRAZS -

k=13

WA REEEX - MERNBEREEERTE
HBRITREMBHARART HRNEE AR
HE - RREREEREE NN BT AR
R TSR -

309



310

China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. FEIEFERRF (ZKR) R A F

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

28

2.4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences;
and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
and does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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2.4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
to the statement of profit or loss over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and released to the statement of profit or loss by
way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular

performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is

met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Groups
performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time

when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.
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2.4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated
to which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer.
The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is

subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception. When
the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit
for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest method. For
a contract where the period between the payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised goods
or services is one year or less, the transaction price is
not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15,

Construction services

Revenue from the provision of construction services
is recognised over time, using an input method to
measure progress towards complete satisfaction of
the service, because the Group’'s performance creates
or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced. The input method
recognises revenue based on the proportion of the
actual costs incurred relative to the estimated total
costs for satisfaction of the construction services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Construction services (Continued)

Claims to customers are amounts that the Group seeks
to collect from the customers as reimbursement of costs
and margins for scope of works not included in the
original construction contract. Claims are accounted
for as variable consideration and constrained until it is
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. The Group uses
the expected value method to estimate the amounts of
claims because this method best predicts the amount
of variable consideration to which the Group will be
entitled.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, including certain concession agreements
that include “Build-Operate-Transfer” (“BOT”) and
“Build-Own-Operate” (“BOO”) contracts, the Group
allocates the transaction price to each performance
obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good
or service underlying each performance obligation
is determined at contract inception. It represents
the price at which the Group would sell a promised
good or service separately to a customer. If a
stand-alone selling price is not directly observable,
the Group estimates it using appropriate techniques
such that the transaction price ultimately allocated
to any performance obligation reflects the amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring the promised goods or
services to the customer.
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2.4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects
of the time value of money if the timing of payments
agreed (either explicitly or implicitly) provides the
customer or the Group with a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer. In those circumstances, the contract contains
a significant financing component. A significant
financing component may exist regardless of whether
the promise of financing is explicitly stated in the
contract or implied by the payment terms agreed to by
the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the Group transferred the
construction services before payments from customers
in which the Group adjusts for the promised amount of
consideration for significant financing components, the
Group applies a discount rate that would be reflected
in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. The Group
recognises interest income during the period between
the payment from customers and the transfer of the
associated services.

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the transaction price for any significant
financing component.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from other sources

Interest income generated from service concession
arrangement is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the receivable under service concession
arrangement.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as income in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract assets

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services
to a customer before being unconditionally entitled to
the consideration under the contract terms, a contract
asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the
accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.
They are reclassified to trade receivables when the right
to the consideration becomes unconditional.

24

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

SRBE(E)
EESEHBE(E)
LON: 3¢ V)

A FIFHI KA

RIBBFRERFEENNEWAERE
BN EZBEBRAREB T ANTETFH
sk A2 HAfE (W@ A ) bt AR REB S UA
RORE R FTEE L HR T RIGRIRRR
EDFE AR R IR FE AT R ERER

Bt A

MBWAERERMNERBRAESH
TAMFEFHNEEHE (WER) B
AAARFEESRARREZSREEREF
BER R IR fERT B MR -

S WA TRTEHIARS B L 178 R - W IFK
BRESSL XA EHENRIRELZ
SR MR RUA -

= R SR W ER SR IR /O #E M RS B B B AR R
B A7 ) 28 R TR AR SR B T BB 2 RRAE T
FRTERERBREWA -

BRNEE

HAKRBENRBEE NIERBIRTEZERE
ZHSEmERBERETER - RIS
FHFMERDRAERRBENEE - BHNE
ERETRERNS  #EERNEHeRE
ERENSTHBRT - EZANENER
RAREGRNE  AHNEEENHNBERES
JE YRR o

317



318

China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. FEIEFERRF (ZKR) R A F

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

28

2.4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the related
goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services
to the customer).

Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
Details regarding the determination of the fair value of
equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in
note 35.

The fair value determined at the grand date of the
equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based
on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected
to vest.

The impact of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share premium.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair
value of the goods or services received, except where
that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which
case they are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted, measured at the date the entity
obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the
service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

The Group’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC except
for Hong Kong and Macau (“Chinese Mainland”)
participate in a central defined contribution retirement
benefit plan managed by the local municipal
government in the locations in which they operate.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
companies’ payroll costs and are charged to profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central defined contribution retirement
benefit plan.

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured
on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided.

A provision is recognised for the amount expected to
be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing
plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
services provided by the employee and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

2.
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2.4.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

Foreign currencies

The Company’s functional currency is RMB. In
preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated. Exchange differences arising on the
settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation
of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Progress of completion of performance obligations

The Group’'s revenue from construction contracts is
recognised over time based on the stage of completion
of the contract, which is determined as the proportion of
the costs incurred relative to the estimated total costs
to complete the contract. The Directors estimate both
of the profit margin and contract cost at the beginning
for each contract, revise the estimation of both profit
margin and contract cost through regular review
when the Directors consider there are changes in the
assumptions throughout the contract period. The actual
outcome of the contract in terms of its total revenue and
costs may be higher or lower than the estimates and
this will affect the revenue and profit recognised.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Progress of completion of performance obligations
(Continued)

In addition, the Group makes provision for expected
loss on construction contracts based on the estimation
of the outcome of the ongoing construction projects by
the Directors’ prior experience and industry averages
for similar projects. The Group assesses periodically
the expected return of construction contracts and if
the expectation differs from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the expected return in the period
in which such estimate has been changed.

Provision of ECL for trade receivables, contract
assets and amounts due from related parties-trade
portion

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
lifetime ECL of trade receivables, contract assets and
amounts due from related parties-trade portion based
on provision matrix through grouping of various debtors
that have similar loss patterns, after considering
ageing, internal credit ratings of trade debtors,
repayment history and/or past due status of respective
trade receivables. Estimated loss rates are based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life
of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking
information. In addition, trade receivables and contract
assets that are credit-impaired are assessed for
ECL individually. The loss allowance amount of the
trade receivables, contract assets and amounts due
from related parties-trade portion is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows with
the consideration of expected future credit losses. The
provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECL and the Group’s
trade receivables, contract assets and amounts due
from related parties-trade portion are disclosed in notes
22, 24 and 42 respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Provision for customer claims

The Directors estimate the results of relevant events
based on the information available upon 31 December
2023 and recognise accrued expenses at a most
probable amount. Actual results may be different
depending on the future progress.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the CGUs to which the goodwill
is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the CGUs and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill
at 31 December 2023 was RMB6,567,000 (2022:
RMB6,488,000). Further details are given in note 16.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR") to measure lease liabilities.
The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would
have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with
a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in
a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore
reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease
(for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’'s
functional currency). The Group estimates the IBR using
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific
estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit
rating).

Leases — Significant judgement in determining the
lease term of contracts with renewal options

The Group has a lease contract that includes extension
and termination options. The Group applies judgement
in evaluating whether or not to exercise the option to
renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all
relevant factors that create an economic incentive for
it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After
the commencement date, the Group reassesses the
lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its
ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew
or to terminate the lease (e.g., construction of significant
leasehold improvements or significant customisation to
the leased asset).

In addition, the renewal options for leases of plant are
not included as part of the lease term as these are not
reasonably certain to be exercised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment
annually and at other times when such an indicator
exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a CGU exceeds
its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions
in an arm’s length transaction of similar assets or
observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the
expected future cash flows from the asset or the
CGU and choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Business combinations and goodwill

When the Group completes a business combination, the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
are recognised at their fair value. Management
estimation is required to determine the fair values of
the assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and the
purchase consideration, and on the allocation of the
purchase consideration to the identifiable assets and
liabilities. The fair values of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are determined
using valuation techniques including the discounted
cash flow model. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable market where possible, but where this
is not feasible, a degree of judgement and estimation is
required in establishing fair values. Management must
estimate the expected future cash flows and discount
rate in order to calculate the fair values.
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services
and has four reportable operating segments as follows:

a)

Flue gas treatment business

Environmental project design, procurement of
protection equipment and materials, project
facility construction and equipment
engineering instalment and testing services
(“EPC")

Operation and operation service and regular
maintenance maintenance service for

(“"O&M") desulfurization and denitrification
facilities and dust removal
facilities

Concession construction of infrastructure
operation or acquisition of existing

infrastructure from grantor,
operation and maintenance of
flue gas treatment project for a
pre-defined period according
to the concession contract and
transferring the ownership of the
infrastructure to the grantor at
the end of the period

Others sales of by-products and others

The water treatment business mainly involves
project engineering and design, procurement of
equipment and materials, project construction,
equipment installation, commissioning services
and the sewage treatment service
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

c) The hazardous and solid waste treatment/
disposal business mainly involves in the
detoxification, reduction and resource treatment
and disposal of bulk solid waste and industrial
hazardous waste

d) The dual-carbon new energy* business mainly
involves project engineering and design,
procurement of equipment and materials,
project construction, equipment installation,
commissioning services and photovoltaic power
generation project services.

For the purposes of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance, the executive
directors, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM"), regularly review types of goods or services
delivered or provided by focusing on different
business models. CODM assesses the performance
of the operating segments based on a measure of
“reportable segment profit”, i.e., “revenue less cost
of sales”. The Group does not allocate depreciations
and amortisations other than those presented in cost
of sales and services, impairment of other non-current
assets, impairment losses on financial and contract
assets. The Group also does not allocate other income
and other gains, other expense and losses, selling
and distribution expenses, administrative expenses,
research and development expenses, finance costs
and share of profit of associates to its segments, as
the CODM does not use such information to allocate
resources to or evaluate the performance of the
operating segments.

No segment assets and liabilities are presented as the
CODM does not regularly review segment assets and
liabilities.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. RK&53ZER ()

(Continued)
Segment revenue (Note 5) Segment profit
AUk (HEE5) AEEF
2023 2022 2023 2022
2023 F 2022 2023 % 2022
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARET T ARETTT
Flue gas treatment business BRABER
EPC EPC 641,393 568,983 64,277 33,804
08&M B 548,002 400,429 137,944 113,971
Concession operation R 489,618 504,104 117,775 128,126
Others HAith 24,862 36,500 24,787 35,744
Water treatment business KEBER 317,583 270,878 48,028 58,084
Hazardous and solid waste REBREREEYR
treatment/disposal business 48,965 11,717 18,422 (935)
Dual-carbon new energy* business  BHHEEREK 67,776 107,637 24,867 21,984
Total segment revenue D EpkEs 5T 2,138,199 1,900,248 436,100 390,778

Unallocated other income and gains ROBEMKA

L 59,248 214,861
Unallocated other expense and losses A A EMF
RIE#E (8,597) (247,092)
Unallocated selling and distribution ROBHEE
expenses RAHERX (25,390) (19,910)
Unallocated administrative expenses K2 ETHEY (101,642) (89,726)
Unallocated research and development &2 EH X
expenses (55,888) (58,662)
Unallocated impairment losses on ADELEKRAY
financial and contract assets BEMRESSE (26,232) (15,078)
Unallocated share of profits of an AOBEAE—RK
associate /NSy 11,437 14,395
Unallocated finance costs RABE A (14,449) (13,667)
Profit before tax BB AT A 274,587 175,899
Segment revenue reported above represents revenue EXZ2HMN D HUREERBINDE P AU
generated from external customers. There were no I B E2023F 1231 A LEFEHRESD
inter-segment sales for the year ended 31 December EfEIsHE (20224 - &) o

2023 (2022: nil).
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. R&ESIER(E)
(Continued)
Other segment information Hittpy BER

Total depreciation and

amortisation

mERBHARE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Depreciations and amortisations EHERBRHEREFTIHRN
presented in cost of sales and EREH
services
Flue gas treatment business ERRIE
EPC EPC 55 65
O&M B 8,972 6,441
Concession operation EE S 65,036 61,086
Water treatment business VINEREES S 27,295 24,922
Hazardous and solid waste treatment/ EEEREEEFT
disposal business 12,363 4,469
Dual-carbon new energy* business L3 2,364 =
Sub-total NEt 116,085 96,983
Unallocated depreciations and ROBMITEREH
amortisations
Other than those presented in cost of PRTESHE R ARTE KA T
sales and services WA 18,192 26,445
Total HEt 134,277 123,428
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. RK&53ZER ()

(Continued)
Geographical information B &R
The Group primarily operates in PRC. Substantially REBXERPRLCEEY - AEFBLT
all non-current assets and revenue of the Group are FrEFERBEEMKEHUNPEKZEAF
located in and generated from PRC. BIEA ©
Information about a major customer FTEEFER
Revenue from customers during the year contributing FAEMASEBKZEI0% A EHRER
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group is as follows: PERALT :
2023 2022
2023%F 2022%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETTT
Customer A ZEFEA O&M B 237,078 *
* Revenue from the customer was less than 10% in 2022. * o022 B Z B F A DR 10% o
5. REVENUE 5. U

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR®EFTT

Revenue from contracts with customers B FE& Lk 2,102,735 1,857,797
Revenue from other sources R B H At AR Bz
Interest income generated from B 754 BT A & e HE P EE A 1Y
service concession arrangement B A 35,464 42,451

2,138,199 1,900,248
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Revenue from contracts with customers

(a)

Disaggregation of revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2023

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

Wz (&)

BEFEEHWE

(a) WS
BZ2023F12A31HLFEE

Flue gas treatment business Hazardous

BRRBEH

and solid
waste
Water treatment/  Dual-carbon

Concession treatment  disposal  new energy*
EPC operation ~ Others business  business business Total
RERRE  SRAKE
EPC B GhEE A KEEEE REEE £ gt

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000

AEETn AR®Tn ARETR ARETn ARETn ARETn  AR%TR ARET:R
Types of goods and ERREHER
services
Rendering of services FREMRT 641,393 548,002 469,006 - 317,583 48,965 52,924 2,077,873
Sales of goods HEER - - - 24,862 - - - 24,862
Total revenue from contracts  BFAHIMELE
with customers 641,393 548,002 469,006 24,862 317,583 48,965 52,924 2,102,735
Geographical market HWEmE
Chinese Mainland HERE 641,393 548,002 469,006 24,862 317,583 48,965 52,924 2,102,735
Total revenue from contracts  BPAHREEE
with customers 641,393 548,002 469,006 24,862 317,583 48,965 52,924 2,102,735
Timing of revenue BRUENREY
recognition
Services transferred over R —EEHERH
time i 641,393 548,002 469,006 - 317,583 48,965 52,924 2,077,873
Goods transferred at a point ~ REBHLERH
in time g - - - 486 - - - 4862
Total revenue from contracts  EFAHINE#E
with customers 641,393 548,002 469,006 24,862 317,583 48,965 52,924 2,102,735
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

5. REVENUE (Continued) 5. W= (&)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) BEEGHWE (&)
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) (a) UM (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

HZE2022F12A318LEE

Flue gas treatment business Hazardous
ERERE and solid
waste
Water ~ treaiment/  Dual-carbon
Concession treaiment  disposal  new energy*
EPC 08M  operation Others  business  business business Total
REERE R
EPC T S At kREXE  RERK 5% st
RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TT ARET ARETR ARBTR ARMTR ARETT  ARETR ARETR
Types of goods and ERREHER
services
Rendering of services FRERT 568983 400429 461653 - 210878 "7 107,637 1,821,297
Sales of goods HEER - - - 36500 - = - 36500
Total revenue from contracts  BFAHIMELE
with customers 568,983 400429 461,653 36500 270,878 "7 107,637 1,857,797
Geographical market HEME
Chinese Mainland hEIARE 568,983 400429 461653 36500 270878 11,717 107,637 1,857,797
Total revenue from contracts  BPAHNEES
with customers 568,983 400429 461,653 36500 270,878 "7 107,637 1,857,797
Timing of revenue BRUENREY
recognition
Services transferred over — R-BEEEBH
time i 568,983 400,429 461,653 - 210878 "7 107,637 1,821,297
Goods transferred at a point R EBHLERH
in time g - - - 36500 - - - 36500
Total revenue from contracts  EFEANNEEE
with customers 568,983 400429 461,653 36,500 270,878 "7 107,637 1,857,797
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

5. REVENUE (Continued) 5. W= (&)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) BEEGHWE (&)
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) (a) UM (&)
Set out below is the reconciliation of the revenue T REFPaHWGEDEERFR
from contracts with customers to the amounts BESEHE

disclosed in the segment information:

Revenue from contracts with
customers
EFEEHWE

2023 2022

2023 % 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T

Flue gas treatment business ERVARETS
EPC EPC 641,393 568,983
O&M B 548,002 400,429
Concession operation pEas g 469,006 461,653
Others Hth 24,862 36,500
Water treatment business KRR ¥ 317,583 270,878
Hazardous and solid waste EEEREEEFEE
treatment/disposal business 48,965 11,717
Dual-carbon new energy* business & kLR £ 75 52,924 107,637

Total HBET 2,102,735 1,857,797
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mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

5. REVENUE (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) (a)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that

5. W&E(#E)
BEEA#HWER (&)
WEBH S ()

were included in the contract liabilities at the LR

beginning of the reporting period:

Revenue recognised that was
included in contract liabilities
at the beginning of the
reporting period:

Rendering of services

TR IR B A 35 BRI A R 3t
ABERDNNEDEES WS

2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT
FARERINENEBNE
mRWE
TR RS 96,271 103,461

(b) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance

obligations is summarised below:

(i) Flue gas treatment business

EPC services

(b) BEBHEMR

T

() EROEEERFE

EPC AR %5

BRAKREENRTNER B

EPC services primarily involves project
engineering and design, procurement
of equipment and materials, project
construction, equipment installation and
commissioning services in relation to
desulfurization and denitrification and dust
removal for coal-fired power plants.

The Directors have assessed that the
Group’'s performance creates and/or
enhances an asset that the customers
control as the Group performs. Therefore,
the Directors have satisfied that there is
only one single performance obligation,
and the services are satisfied over time.

EPCIREEES M ASMKE
PREOBLAR - L RH K bR EE 4R 1t
JHE TG RERAE

ME - HERER  RERE
EEREAKENBORE

FPRIBBER HIEREF
EHIEE - Atk - EFR
RRAE-BENEET Mk
BAK—BRERIZEK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5. REVENUE (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b)  Performance obligations (Continued)

(i)

Flue gas treatment business (Continued)
EPC services (Continued)

Accordingly, revenue from EPC services,
which are generally under project-based
development contracts, is recognised
based on the progress towards complete
satisfaction of a performance obligation
which is determined as the proportion
of the costs incurred for the works (i.e.
subcontracting costs, material costs and
direct staff costs incurred) performed to
date relative to the estimated total costs to
complete the satisfaction of these services
and the margin of each project, to the
extent that the amount can be measured
reliably and its recovery is considered
probable.

The Group’'s construction contracts
include payment schedules which require
stage payments over the construction
period once certain specified milestones
are reached. The Group requires certain
customers to provide upfront payments
range from 10% to 30% of total contract
sum, when the Group receives a deposit
before construction commences, this will
give rise to contract liabilities at the start of
a contract, until the revenue recognised on
the specific contract exceeds the amount
of the deposit.

5. W& (#E)

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

BEEaHWE(F)
(b) BEHEMFE(E)

(i)

EFETERT (B)
EPCHR# ()

At - EPCERS (—RARIE
HEARBESOETT) K
7 RIRA TR R
R AR BIZEIAR
T BE TIEFTEERK
KA BAA - BRI
REZB THRA) 16 K&
F RIS (A ET RN H0 L3 7
BILL DIEETE - MHEZEARER] 52
AAEAARKEMNESES
BB -

REBOEEESDBEN
Bk - HiE—BET
TREMNBERE FEZ
BEEHESBNR - A%
BERKETEFIRHEAEH
REEANBENI0%E
30% ' BEAREEREEMSG
A ERE - AHBEBE
BHRRRES  HERT
BHMERR KB ZS
-

D o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023

2023%12H31H

5.

REVENUE (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b)

Performance obligations (Continued)

()

Flue gas treatment business (Continued)
EPC services (Continued)

About 5%-10% of the contract price is
withheld by the customers and will be
released upon completion of the warranty
period (normally 1-2 years after the date
of the completion of the construction).
Retention receivables, prior to expiration
of the warranty period, are classified
as contract assets and are reclassified
to trade receivables when the warranty
period expires. The Directors have
assessed the effects of the financing
component is not significant at contract
level and therefore revenue is not adjusted
for the effects of time value of money.

O&M services

O&M services mainly include the provision of
operation service and regular maintenance
service for desulfurization and denitrification
facilities and dust removal facilities owned
by their customers. The O&M service is
as a single performance obligation and
the Group’s work scope includes the full
operation, testing and repairing, upgrading
and maintenance of flue gas treatment
system/facilities owned by these coal-fired
power plants.

Pursuant to certain contracts of rendering
related O&M services, the transaction price
is the amount of consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring O&M services to customers.
Additionally, the O&M services typically
meet the criterion where customers
simultaneously receive and consume the
benefits of the Group’s performance as the
Group performs. Therefore, the Directors
have satisfied that the performance
obligation of rendering O&M services are
satisfied over time and the revenue is
recognised over the service period.

5

W (&)
EF&

(b)

sk (&)
BYEE (&)

()

SE RIS ()
EPCHRTS (&)

ERIEBRAD5%-10%H %P
RE - X ENRE I THER
(—RABTERGERE B HIRA
E26F) B - EIREHER
Al - RERUHBEDERE
WEE - WRRE B ERE
EMHBEEEHRWFR -
EXCHEAHMERNERE
MBI HMTEL TERX -
At T EENZEHE
Ygs

18 4 R 75

BHRERGEIERRUEFPHE
B OB Ko B A AR b % B EE
RIERPES R M E R
EIRTS - BHRERFDE—E
MEAE - MAKENTER
BEEZEES E Tt
R EEERAERER
HE R R R

RERERBERRTNA
) RHEBAAEE AR
A% PR HUE # RIS B IS HY
RE - MO ERRBEE
HABRPRKESRERR
SEREOPBHF 2R o
At - EFRREEERR
BOBRNEERE —BRER
R 0 W AR A RERR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5. REVENUE (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b)  Performance obligations (Continued)

(i)

Flue gas treatment business (Continued)
Concession operation

In a typical BOT and BOO project, the
Group is responsible for the financing,
investment, construction, and operation of
the projects according to the concession
contracts with their customers. After the
completion of the constructions, the Group
operates and maintains the project for
a pre-defined period, which is typically
15 to 20 years, when they are entitled to
collecting revenues generated from the
projects during the terms of the contracts.

The Directors have assessed that BOT
and BOO services comprise two separate
performance obligations, the construction
of the facilities and the operating and
maintenance service upon the completion
of the construction of facilities, equivalent
to a combination of EPC service and
O&M service. Revenue recognition for
each performance obligation follows the
comparable stand-alone services specified
above in EPC and O&M.

Others

Other revenues from sales of by-products
and others are recognised at the point
of time when the control of goods is
transferred to the customer.

5. W& (#E)

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

BEEaHWE(F)
(b) BEHEMFE(E)

(i)

EFETERT (B)
FraFiE &

EF—MBOTKBOOIHER
FoAKEAERBERARS
A MR ESRAER
ERES  KBE - BERRE
o BTk AEBISNE
%%ﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁ(‘ %‘7%15?
204F) WIEHI - EE AR
EH - ZK%I%%EE.,@H;@
RULERIE B A5 as o

EFEFE 0 BOTRBOO
RiEBIEMIBENNELE

T - BDaR AR A STA 18 M RR
WIERR ~ EE NSRS

1B E N EPCHRTS M i& 4 AR 155
MR - EROEENRR
MR EE L XEPC R EM R
4R A H A] L B A 8 7 A
75 o

Hitb
HERIER R EME KT
‘é?sﬁ’ﬂ?’*%ﬁ“%ﬁﬂ%%%}fﬂ%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023

2023%12H31H

5.

REVENUE (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b)

Performance obligations (Continued)

(i)

Water treatment business

The water treatment business mainly
includes sewage treatment services and
EPC services.

The sewage treatment business mainly
involves the full operation, testing and
repairing, upgrading and maintenance
of water treatment system to provide
wastewater treatment services for
chemical companies. Pursuant to certain
contracts of rendering related water
treatment services, the transaction price is
the amount of consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring water treatment services
to customers. Additionally, the water
treatment services typically meet the
criterion where customers simultaneously
receive and consume the benefits of
the Group’s performance as the Group
performs. Therefore, the Directors have
satisfied that the performance obligation
of rendering water treatment services are
satisfied over time and the revenue is
recognised over the service period.

EPC services in water treatment business
primarily involves project engineering
and design, procurement of equipment
and materials, project construction,
equipment installation and commissioning
services in relation to industrial wastewater
treatment for metallurgical plant. Revenue
recognition for relative performance
obligations follows the comparable EPC
services of flue gas treatment business
specified above.

5

W (&)
EF&

(b)

sk (&)
BRYEE (&)

(i)

Y

IKEIEEBEEBIEITKE
B AR5 M EPC AR ©

KB IE R B MK
BEGNEEES - &
TR R EMAE TR
RRMOSTKEERS - RIE
R ARRE KR RIS HOE T
AR RHERANAEETR
B[R 2 PR (/K B2 32 AR 7% FE
BERE  BIN - KEEAR
BRENEEFPREES
ERAEBERELDFNED
HH - Fit - EFRSREM
KEERBHEOEEIFL
—EREFREERK - A ks
PR BARERR o

KRB FEBHHEPCIRT X
5 N AR BRIBH) T 3 RE 7K
BRIBRMHEER TR - &K
BREEME  BEER
RELEMHAARE - B
BHEEN K TERERE L
SFRIBR A BIE ROA IR K 5
PrER e Al LL BV EP C iR
75 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5. REVENUE (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b)  Performance obligations (Continued)

(iii)

Hazardous and solid waste treatment/
disposal business

The hazardous and solid waste treatment/
disposal business mainly involves in the
detoxification, reduction and resource
treatment and disposal of bulk solid
waste and industrial hazardous waste. It
mainly includes the provision of operation
service and regular maintenance service
for relevant facilities owned by the
Group, where the Group’s work scope
includes collection and stable disposal of
hazardous solid waste.

Pursuant to certain contracts of
rendering related hazardous and solid
waste treatment/disposal services,
the transaction price is the amount
of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring relevant services to customers.
Additionally, the hazardous and solid
waste treatment/disposal services typically
meet the criterion where customers
simultaneously receive and consume the
benefits of the Group’s performance as the
Group performs. Therefore, the Directors
have satisfied that the performance
obligation of rendering hazardous and
solid waste treatment/disposal services
are satisfied over time and the revenue is
recognised over the service period.

5. W& (#E)
BEFS

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

Hss (&)

(b) BEHEMFE(E)

(iii)

JEBIEE G &R

EEEREREXBEIEY
KRR B RE & T ¥ fERE i) &
=t REERERERE
MEE  BERBEIERR
HEBERETFPHERNER
RiEIE B L RGN TR
ERT - MAKER RS
BERRENMBEHEER
ElREY -

RIB R AR RE 2 B R R R SR
ERBHETAN  RFE
REAAKEEHRETFEMH
B RERERE R ESH
RAB - 1L - EEREEE R
ERBBRENATEPREE
GRERAEERBOMEH
mAVER - FHt - EFRR
TRt e B R fa Y2 Be B RS HY
BHREEFE —REREZE
X - SFE ARG HRERR o
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mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023

2023%12H31H

5.

REVENUE (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b)

Performance obligations (Continued)

(iv)

Dual-carbon new energy* business

The dual-carbon new energy* business
mainly includes BOT projects, EPC
services and photovoltaic power
generation project services.

BOT project mainly involves engineering
and design, procurement of equipment
and materials, project construction,
equipment installation and commissioning
services. The Directors have assessed
that BOT services in dual-carbon new
energy* business comprise two separate
performance obligations, the construction
of the facilities and the operating and
maintenance service upon the completion
of the construction of facilities, equivalent
to a combination of EPC service and
O&M service. Revenue recognition for
each performance obligation follows the
comparable EPC and O&M services of
the flue gas treatment business specified
above.

5

W (&)
sk (&)
BRYEE (&)

BEF&

(b)

(iv)

ERMER EBEETERE
BOTIEE - EPCHRE K 1K
BEIEB R o

BOTEEXESRIEK
AT EREEREHEME ]
BE® - RETERAHAR
o BRI - BRI
BEBHBOTIREEIER
HERMBHET - BIRE
BETREBRRMEER - 8
EREERT - HEREPC
IRAE R BHRISHES - &
BHEFH W SERERE L
SCETHIRRE KA IR RS A Al
LEEREPC M IE #1998 37 IR
f% °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

5. REVENUE (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b)  Performance obligations (Continued)

(iv)

Dual-carbon new energy* business
(Continued)

EPC services in dual-carbon new energy*
business primarily involves project
engineering and design, procurement
of equipment and materials, project
construction, equipment installation and
commissioning services in relation to new
energy treatment. Revenue recognition for
relative performance obligations follows
the comparable EPC services of the flue
gas treatment business specified above.

The photovoltaic power generation
services mainly involves the full operation
photovoltaic power plant of the Group
to provide photovoltaic power. Pursuant
to certain contracts of rendering related
photovoltaic power generation project
services, the transaction price is the
amount of consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for transferring photovoltaic power
generation project services to customers.
Additionally, the photovoltaic power
generation project services typically
meet the criterion where customers
simultaneously receive and consume the
benefits of the Group’s performance as the
Group performs. Therefore, the Directors
have satisfied that the performance
obligations of rendering photovoltaic
power generation project services are
satisfied over time and the revenue is
recognised over the service period.

5. W& (#E)
BEFS

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

Hss (&)

(b) BEHEMFE(E)

(iv)

EHFTRR 5 (E)

SR X EPCHR
BEEW LA IREE
MIEE TR KAt - REER
wEME - HEER - ®E
LRFARARY - BEREN
BEM S TERERE L XA
SR ERUAIE R H) A] L8
HEPC T °

HREBEERBEIEIRAE
B REEHNEMES
WEMBHESLIREE - RIER
HAER Y RBERE RBH
ETAKN  RHERINAE
EEHAEFREELNANESE
HERBESHRERHE -
thoh - SR E IR B R E
BENAEPRRBERRER
AEBBEHOMREGHN @ E
Al - Bt - EFBRREM
REBEBRBOBHEE
FR—BRIEER - MARM
W s 0 AR HA AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

5. REVENUE (Continued) 5. W= (&)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) BEEGHWE (&)
The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the R12A31BSRERTRARE CRETT
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or SEHET) IR SEBRESEHOT

partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December are as follows:

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

Amounts expected to be FEHMEPCHRE - BRER
recognised as revenue for the BHETHEERB AR ER
EPC services and construction R EKBEIRBWEN
services under concession S8

arrangement and dual-carbon
new energy* business:

Within one year —FR 605,288 470,783
More than one year but not more than —F LA BTN BBARTE
two years 155,374 -
760,662 470,783
Amounts expected to be EHRABEEENBAENESE
recognised as revenue for the AR NENESE

O&M services with fixed total
contract amounts:

Within one year —&FR 69,943 47,514
More than one year but not more than —FLA BT HBIBMRE

two years 20,297 26,461
More than two years A 9,930 7,472

100,170 81,447
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS Ha A Rk s
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Government grants BT B 17,358 7,087
— Taxes refunded — REIFIA 17,084 5,005
— Compensation for expenses incurred —EARTHHE 274 2,082
Interest income F B WA 12,914 11,064
Gains on disposal of financial assets at  HERAABETAERNS
fair value through profit or loss BB B 2 s 5,047 —
Gains on disposal of non-current assets HEIETREE E 2 WK 3,748 =
Foreign exchange gains, net b 5 W e 58 3,090 11,930
Gain on fair value adjustment of FRREBAANBEARE 2
contingent consideration (note) (MF5E) 542 10,060
Gain on adjustment of acquisition ABKEERE 2 Was ()
consideration (note) - 160,921
Dividend income from financial assets at Z AR EBETABEZNESHE
fair value through profit or loss L%ZHX,%J%U\ - 1,533
Others H A 16,549 12,266
Total Bt 59,248 214,861
Note: et -

On 12 July 2022, Opinions on Strengthening Environmental
Supervision on Strict Prohibition of Cross-Province Hazardous
Waste Transfer for Disposal KERERERENEEEAER S

—#LIRBEERE R )) was issued by the Qinghai Province
People’'s Government, which strictly prohibits any cross-
province transfer of non-recyclable and hazardous waste for
incineration and landfill disposal. Considered that the specific
assumptions adopted for the valuation of the entire interest in
Qinghai Bogi as at 30 June 2021 had changed significantly, the
Directors and the original shareholder of Qinghai Boqgi agreed
to renegotiate and enter into the supplemental agreements
to revise the total consideration for the entire equity interests
of Qinghai Bogi from RMB230,000,000 to RMB50,500,000.
Therefore, the management reversed the long-term payables
and contingent consideration initially recognised on the
acquisition date and recognised a gain on adjustment of
acquisition consideration of RMB160,921,000 and a gain
on fair value adjustment for contingent consideration of
RMB10,060,000.

202267 A128 - F88 ARBITENE(HE
REREREMEEEARSE —PR(ILIRE
EEMER)  BRBEEETALDKERE
MBERBERE - ERI GRS EET 2%
#HR2021F6 ASOAMMEEMKANABER

BREBREEALY  EFERFTEBFITHORER
RRAZENERYI LA xmeE B85 88S
2EERMEREBR AR 230,000,0007TE
A EAR¥50,500,000T - At - EEED
HEBI IS B B9 25 AR ) = HA B A~ SR IR B 5k
ARE - RABRARRBERENREARE
160,921,000 T R AR BRI A A EBEFHEK
#= AR %10,060,0007T °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBEAER
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after REBMBRTADEFE IR (GFA) T3
charging/(crediting): KIF -
2023 2022
2023F 2022F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
i3 ARET R AREFTL
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BRARIATENE
(included in cost of sales and services) (Bt ASHE RARFAAA) 540,391 658,110
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment nE - BERRENE 13 58,370 42,585
Depreciation of investment properties RENENE 14 644 644
Amortisation of other intangible assets® EtENEERE 17 57,886 72084
Amortisation of other non-current assets EthEnBEELEE 17,377 8,115
134,277 123,428
Impairment of goodwill** BERE" - 141,469
Auditor's remuneration REM#HE 3,002 3,351
Employee benefit expense (excluding directors’ and ~ EEBFIEX (TBEEER
chief executive's remuneration (note 9)): TETBAEMEM (HE9)) -
Wages, salaries and other benefits™* 1% HeREmEF~ 265,131 232 416
Contributions to retirement benefit scheme™* RINEFI I 18,908 21,904
Share-based payment expenses AR (D BERM AR 35 235 4334
Total it 284,274 258,654
Impairment of financial and contract assets: SRRANEENE:
Impairment of trade receivables B RN ERE 22 22,878 11,188
(Reversal of impairment)/impairment of other — EftfEMRZE (REAR),/ FE
receivables 23 (113) 3,758
Impairment of long-term receivable REEKERE (1,105) 294
Impairment of contract assets RNEENE 24 850 148
Impairment amounts due from related parties [ElAE AR E 42 476 926
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of receivables IR HFEL %S FENE
under service concession arrangement WE/ (RERR) 18 3,246 (1,236)
Total @t 26,232 15,078
Reversal of provision for inventory FeRERD = (190)
Impairment of other intangible assets™ AtERBEERE" 17 - 27,612
Total &t - 27,422
Gross rental income from investment properties RENEREKAES (490) (767)
Less: Direct operating expense (including W EREERSRANRENE
depreciation) incurred for investment EENEREERT
properties that generated rental income (REEIE) Gr ALt
during the year (included in other operating SENARRLFE)
income and expense, net) 644 644
Total e 154 (123)

Share of profits of an associate PNl A=UNSsil (11,437) (14,395)




8.

Annual Report 2023 F 1R
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fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continued) 7. BRBAER (F)
* The amortisation of other intangible assets for the * FAHMEFEERHAAGREERR
year is included in “Cost of sales and services” in the A SHE RRIEAAR] ©
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
b The impairment of goodwill and the impairment of other X EEREREMEEEEREF ALE
intangible assets are included in “Other expenses and BarAr [ EakHsz] -
losses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
b For the year ended 31 December 2023, the employee o HZE2023F12A31BLFENRTH
benefit expense included the cost of flexible staffing. EFFBETEERINMAAN - A
In order to increase the comparability, the Group DRET R - EEEM T A E2022F12
revised the amount of employee benefit expense for AS1AEFENBIZMENEEE - A
the year ended 31 December 2022. As all the costs of RIIBAIRAHE B EEHFRAEER
employees have been recognized in cost and expenses AEIKABRF - I HEEATHE L
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss, this MR EFHEMIFEELERE -
change of disclosure caliber did not have any impact
on other disclosure included in the financial statements.
FINANCE COSTS 8. BIBHEA
2023 2022
2023 % 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETT
Interest on bank loans and other IRITER R EMEROFE
borrowings 13,742 11,608
Interest on lease liabilities HERGEME 707 2,059
Total Bt 14,449 13,667
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31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section
383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is

EERERITHRASHH

BiE EWHRA - BEQFEFE383(1)
(a) * (b) * (c)R(NERAR] (HBEEEH
HER) RO FE A WECFRNEERES
TRABFHMAOT

as follows:

2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Fees we 600 300

Other emoluments Eibife
Salaries and other allowances e REMER, 2,613 1,781
Equity-settled share option expense LA e 4 55 O iR 1) B B 2 194 =
Pension scheme contributions RIS FT SR 126 57
Subtotal IR 2,933 1,838
Total w5t 3,533 2,138

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

(a) BIFBITES
FAXNTELFATESF 2SS

directors during the year were as follows: LU
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
Mr. Xie Guozhong Eileikas 200 100
Mr. Lu Zhifang BEEFFE 200 100
Mr. Zhang Fan SR Zr & 100 =
Mr. Yu Weifeng BEELE 100 =
Mr. Liu Genyu (i) 2R EE L (1) - 100
Total HEt 600 300

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2022: nil).

(1)

Mr. Liu Genyu was designated as an executive
director with effect from 12 May 2023.

FRLEEN TBULIFATESTH
H B E (20224 : &) o

(i) BIRFSL LB HIEBBITE
F - BH20234%F5H 12 LR
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31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 9. EERIETBAESHFMZ)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive directors (b) HITES  FUTESREERTH

and the chief executive

AB

Equity-
Salaries settled Pension
Directors’ and other share option scheme
fee allowances expense contributions Total
ek HUREBLEEN Bike
ik A2l RODERX st #st
2023 2023F RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARBTR AR¥TRT AR%®Tn AR¥TR
Executive directors: RTESF
Mr. Zeng Zhijun (7) B2 EEES) - 939 - 63 1,002
Ms. Qian Xiaoning SBETt - 939 194 63 1,196
Mr. Liu Genyu BIRESAE - 525 - - 525
Subtotal Nt - 2,403 194 126 2,723
Non-executive directors: FaTES
Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard (/) BEREL) - 210 - - 210
Mr. Zheng Tony Tuo Bk = = = = -
Mr. Zhu Weihang REMEE - - - - -
Mr. Chen Xue REEE - - - - -
Subtotal Nt - 210 - - 210
Total @zt - 2,613 194 126 2,933
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31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

9.

(b)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 9. EERIETHAEEHFM(ZE)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
Executive directors, non-executive directors (b) HITEE FIATESBRIETH
and the chief executive (Continued) AB (&)
Equity-
Salaries settled Pension
Directors’ and other  share option scheme
fee  allowances expense contributions Total
HeRk NRELER il N
EEHE Hizhh RDAERS SRR @t
2022 20226 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®FT ARETR ARETT ARET:R
Executive directors: WTES:
Mr. Zeng Zhijun (7) @2 BEE) = 931 = 57 988
Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard (/) BE2%4E0) - 850 - = 850
Subtotal et = 1,781 = 57 1,838
Non-executive directors: FRHTES -
Mr. Zheng Tony Tuo b - = = = =
Mr. Zhu Weihang KEMEE - - - - -
Mr. Chen Xue e - - - - -
Subtotal Nt - - - - -
Total it = 1,781 = 57 1,838
(i) Mr. Zeng Zhijun is also the chief executive (i) BB EINBITEABE,
officer.

(i) Mr. Cheng Liquan Richard was re-designated

from an executive director to a non-executive
director with effect from 24 March 2023. The

salary and other allowances paid to Mr. Cheng

Liquan Richard was paid for his salary as

executive director from 1 January 2023 to 24

March 2023.

(1)

FREDEEEHATEFAT
RIEPITEE » H2023F3H
PAHRELR o (JFEER LR
17893 £ KA 1 F 875 5t AR
20234 1.5 1HZE2023F 324
AEEHTTEFELH(TEI5 B
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REMUNERATION (Continued)

(c)

Five highest paid employees

(c)

The five highest paid employees during the year

included three directors (2022: two), details of

whose remuneration are set out in note 9 (b)

above. Details of the remuneration for the year

of the remaining two (2022: three) highest paid

employees who are neither a director nor chief

executive of the Company are as follows:

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

EERTETHRASEHM(E)

hEREHMESR

FAREBRRFMEERE =%
(2022%F : MB)EE - HFHMF
TBEE EXHIFE9(b) - EFRB T
H(2022%F  ZR)BRIEARNAE
EMEERITBRITENE=EBE
BIZHMFHBOT

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Salaries and other benefits e kHARET 1,489 2,301

Retirement benefit scheme RGBT B K

contributions 63 114
Equity-settled share-based IR sEE AR AR

expense 35 1,566

Total it 1,587 3,981

The number of non-director and non-chief

executive highest paid employees whose

remuneration fell within the following bands is as

follows:

FEERIFETRTHRABMEHM
NFUTHENRSFHER ZA
g

Number of employees

EBEAE
2023 2022
20234 20224
Nil to HKD1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T 2 1
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 7T Z& 1,500,000
BT - 1
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 7t & 3,000,000
BT _ 1
Total st 2 3
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10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

10.

PRC income tax has been provided at the rate of 25%
(2022: 25%) on the estimated assessable profits arising

in PRC during the year.

FREBRAX

REFABHRIIEFERNEFRELNGEE
BEEM - AFER25% (20224 : 25%)

TR -

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

k=3 AR¥T T ARBT T

Current income tax BNERFT1S L 41,801 34,946
Deferred income tax EEFTSHL 32 (4,558) (14,705)
Tax charge for the year FRFIBHRY 37,243 20,241

A reconciliation of the income tax charge applicable to
profit before tax at PRC statutory income tax rate and
the income tax charge at the Group'’s effective income

tax rate for the year is as follows:

B BAE SRR EERRERR G
MEBHRFAX  BRAKENERMFAS
BERFENAERAS ZHEREAT

2023 2022
2023 % 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt AR¥T T AREFT
Profit before tax B A5 A4 A 274,587 175,899
At PRC statutory tax rate of 25% BHRBEEAERER25%THE
IR (i) 68,647 43,975
Effect of tax rate differences MEERENTE (i) (26,890) (23,165)
Tax effect of share of profits of an  JE{E — KB QA AR FI A
associate By (1,641) (2,159)
Tax effect of super deduction T35 R A B %
of research and development -
expenses (4,429) (1,861)
Tax effect of non-deductible AR S R TS 5o 2
expenses (1,385) 459
Tax losses utilised from previous B AT B R TE B 18
periods (1,216) (118)
Tax losses not recognised AR AT IAE 8 458 106
Withholding income tax on earnings ZF|HTEH TS 3,197 2,654
Temporary differences utilised from  # JA{E HARS &) B RO £
previous periods g | 502 350
Tax charge for the year at the RERBEFENF AR
effective rate EAX 37,243 20,241
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

A reconciliation of the income tax charge applicable to

profit before tax at PRC statutory income tax rate and

the income tax charge at the Group’s effective income

tax rate for the year is as follows: (Continued)

(1)

The Company and CBEE were incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and the BVI, respectively. Both entities
did not have tax assessable profits in the Cayman
Islands, BVI or other jurisdiction during the reporting

period.

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law (the "EIT
Law’) effective on 1 January 2008, Beijing Boqi
obtained a "High and New Technology Enterprise” (the
"HNTE’) certificate in 2008 which Beijing Bogi was
entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 2008 to
2010 and could be re-applied every three years, the
current active HNTE certificate is effective until October
2026.

In October 2015, Hejin Boqi obtained the approval
for being designated as the HNTE for the year ended
31 December 2015 which Hejin Bogi was entitled to
a preferential tax rate of 15% from 2015 to 2017 and
could be re-applied every three years, the current
active HNTE certificate is effective until December
2024.

In November 2016, Jinggangshan Bogi obtained the
approval for being designated as the HNTE for the year
ended 31 December 2016 which entitled Jinggangshan
Bogi to a preferential tax rate of 15% from 2016 to 2018
and could be re-applied every three years, and the
current active HNTE certificate is effective date until
November 2025.

In December 2017, Puzhou Boqi obtained the approval,
by which the desulfurization program in Puzhou Bogi
was fully exempted from income tax for three years
starting from 2017, and thereafter will be entitled to
a three-year preferential rate of 12.56%. From 2023 to
2024, Puzhou Boqi obtained the approval, by which the
third-party anti-pollution treatment program was entitled

to a preferential rate of 15%.

10.

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

RSB (&)

B BUAE AR Rt EE AR EBRT AR
MEABHRFAX  BRAKENERMFAE
BMEFENAEHRAX ZEHRNAT - (&)

AARFRCBEED IR SR B REE
BLXHBIAMKT - REZH  ZEH
BRASHE  EBEELHEXAMA]
JE IR I E R B P o

RIFR20084F 1 A1 AL 1 AT1Z
FE([LRFEBZE])  AREFZR
2008 F {7 [m AT Mt ([BH#E
B ) RE - b R FF IR 2008
FR2010FHZH15% ) EEHFA
A EfE = FEFHGE - HATEE =T
Rt R RZE BB 22026 F 104 »

R2015F 104 » A EEEGFREHX -
REBEZE2016F12A31HILFELAE
BRETFEMEE - W EE T EUR
2015F 22017 E /2 H15%H7 BB
KAR = FEFFE BTN

EHRM PR BEBHME2024F 12
Ao

R20164F 118 + H 1 18 2 BiZHE
X REFE2016F 12831 HILFES
B BEAT MR - H L1 I
R2016 FZ2018F ZH 15% Hi BB
K AR FfF = FEFHE B ATEHA
BRI R BB T E2025F 11
ﬁ °

R2017F 128 » HEMEEFREFHX -
HENETH G EE2017 FZE S
H=FFEHER AE=FrZH
12.5% B9 B FE o R2023F 22024
F o EMNETEGHX  BUE=T
JTREFEETEEZ 15% By BB E o
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31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(1)

(Continued)

Changzhi Boqi obtained the approval, by which the
water treatment program was fully exempted from
income tax for three years starting from 2018, and
thereafter will be entitled to a three-year preferential
rate of 12.5%.

In January 2019, Huainan Boqi obtained the approval,
by which its desulfurization program was fully exempted
from income tax for three years starting from 2019, and
thereafter will be entitled to a three-year preferential
rate of 12.5%.

In May 2019, Laibin Boqi obtained the approval, by
which the desulfurization program was fully exempted
from income tax for three years starting from 2019, and
thereafter will be entitled to a three-year preferential
rate of 12.5%.

In January 2020, Changjizhou Boqi obtained the
approval, by which the desulfurization program was
fully exempted from income tax for three years starting
from 2020, and thereafter will be entitled to a three-year

preferential rate of 12.5%.

Qinghai Bogqgi obtained the approval, whereby the
industrial solid waste utilisation and disposal project
and hazardous waste utilisation and disposal project in
Qinghai Boqi were entitled a full exemption of income
tax for three years starting from 2018, and preferential

rate of 12.5% for three years thereatfter.

Handan Boqi obtained the approval, by which the
environmental protection program was fully exempted
from income tax for three years starting from 2022, and
thereafter will be entitled to a three-year preferential
rate of 12.5%.

10.

FriSBip< (42)

(1)

(%)

E LR Y T e
B BB 2018 F B8 2= EFEH
WEH  HESFTEH125%MEH

R2019F 15  EREIEGEMRERIE
TG EETEE2019FZHEH
ZFEHRBNER  RE=FAZF
12.5% BB BHFE o

R2019%F56 /7 + KEE&HEHRKEE
BHI TG EE2019F ZHEH
ZFEFEHER  BE=Fn=F
12.5% 8918 B & -

R2020F 17 - BE/IEFZEHREZ
MIBE B i G #E2020FZH
ERH=FHIEHaEER  RE=Fr=Z
H12.5%H1EBEHFE -

BGE BRI IEaH T X EEF
AREEHAREBEFHAREEHEE G
2018 F ZHEHM=FHEZHINER -
HiE=FAZH12.5%MERHE -

HEEsfE Z R IR (R AT ) B 2022 F F
BRH = FHRHER  RE=Fr]
ZE126%H9BFHE -
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(1)

(Continued)

In May 2022, Huadong Erhao obtained the approval, by
which the photovoltaic power generation program was
fully exempted from income tax for three years starting
from 2022, and thereafter will be entitled to a three-year

preferential rate of 12.5%.

In October 2021, Zhongxie Electronic obtained the
approval, by which the photovoltaic power generation
program was fully exempted from income tax for three
years starting from 2021, and thereafter will be entitled

to a three-year preferential rate of 12.5%.

In June 2022, Huaxin Energy obtained the approval, by
which the photovoltaic power generation program was
fully exempted from income tax for three years starting
from 2022, and thereafter will be entitled to a three-year

preferential rate of 12.5%.

DIVIDENDS

10.

11.

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

FriS®ipa (&)

(1)

@S

(%)

R202245 A + Huadong Erhao &2 #t
X BUKAREEEE2022FZH
ERH=FHEHEER AE=FiZ
B 12.5%EEEHFE

R20214 104 » Zhongxie Electronic
BRHX - BUEAKEEFEH2021
FEERH=FHiEHaER A=
FAJZE12.5%HIBEHE »

202296 A » Huaxin Energy#iS#t
X BUAREEEE2022FZH
FH=FREHNES  HE=Fq=%
B12.6%HIBEBRE

Proposed Final — HK3.50 cents (2022: ##IRAHIMEE — BT @AZ3.50
HK3.00 cents) per ordinary share

Bl (20224 : 3.00581)

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
31,969 27,652

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to
the approval of the Company's shareholders at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

AERZZRMRBBAFARABRRERN
REBTHRRBFEASG LHE
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31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. BAREZERESEEAERGESREA

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT F
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per SREANRBEFRF TIREIATE™G
share are based on: 8¢
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Earnings B
Profit attributable to ordinary equity SHTEERER EER TR
holders of the parent, used in the FARMNSGAREBRER
basic/diluted earnings per share BB ARG R
calculation 240,184 151,749
Number of shares
RHEE
2022
20224
Shares gy
Weighted average number of ordinary FTEERERR R A
shares in issue during the year FREBITEBIRINE
used in the basic earnings per share T8
calculation 996,668,799 996,690,125
Effect of dilution — weighted average BEnRE — TRk
number of ordinary shares In#EF98
Award Share Scheme e tn B2 Bt & 3,119,144 4,170,911
Share Option Scheme AR AEET & - -

999,787,943 1,000,861,036
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31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - BERSE
Fixtures
Owned  Leasehold Leased Motor and Construction
properties lands  properties vehicles  equipment in progress Total

BENE  HELH  BENR RE  KERRRE  ERIE it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARRTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARETR

CosT A

At 1 January 2022 202251 B1E 224,709 19727 40,528 20398 249245 139760 694,367
Additions e = = - 351 12926 71,880 85,157
Transfer b 38,123 = = = 7725 (115381) =
Other decrease Hfopid (5,369) = - = = - (5,369)
Disposals hE - = S (1,566) (4,120) = (5,696)
At 31 December 2022 R2022% 12731 R 257,463 19727 40,528 19183 335,309 9,259 768469
Additions T2 528 E 28,011 1439 2,992 34,752 67,722
Transfer g 1620 = = = 4,880 (6,500) S
Disposals HE - S (40,528) (2,264) (682) = (43.474)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 37 WEHEBLR (Hit57) - - = = 75,804 442 76,246
Loss of control of the subsidiary REHMBL AREHIE - - - - = (3,867) (3,867)
At 31 December 2023 2023512318 259,611 19,727 28,011 18,358 418303 121,086 865096

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION  EifERE(E

AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2022 202251 318 (21,399) (720) (6763)  (15058)  (60,160) - (104,100)
Charge for the year ERgil (7,152) (395) (4,003) (872)  (30,163) = (42,585)
Elimination on disposals {HE R - - - 1483 4,08 - 5,565
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31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. W% BERR®E(E)

(Continued)
Fixtures
Owned  Leasehold Leased Motor and Construction

properties lands  properties vehicles  equipment in progress Total
BEYME  HEf®  HENE RE  RERRKE  HRIR @t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETE  ARETT ARETn ARETn ARETR ARETR  ARETR
At 31 December 2022 R2020%12 4318 (28,551) (1,115) (10,766) (14,447) (86,241) - (141,120)
Charge for the year AL (17,930) (396) (1873) (1928)  (36.243) - (58370)
Elimination on disposals i ERHH - - 1,779 2125 656 - 14,560
At 31 December 2023 R2023%12A31A (46,481) (1,511) (860) (14,250)  (121,828) - (184,930)

CARRYING VALUES KM
At 31 December 2023 R2023512531A 213,130 18,216 27,151 4,108 296,475 121,086 680,166
At 31 December 2022 #2020%12 4318 208,912 18,612 29,762 4736 249,068 96,259 627,349

At 31 December 2023, the Group's owned properties
with a carrying value of RMB19,635,000 (2022: nil) and
leasehold lands with a carrying value of RMB1,854,000
(2022: nil) were pledged to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group.

MR2023F12A31H  AEBEEEAA
R#19,635,000c (ZE-_=-F : #)H
BEWENEEEAARE1,854,0007T
(ZE-=FE)NHEELHBEER - £
BAEEER —RFITEEMNER -
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31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES BREYE
RMB’000
ARET T
COST R
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, R2022F1A1H « 2022128318 &
and 31 December 2023 2023% 12 A31H 20,871
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZItinE
At 1 January 2022 202241311 (10,600)
Provided for the year FREME (644)
At 31 December 2022 2022912 A31H (11,244)
Provided for the year FANEE (644)
At 31 December 2023 M2023F12831H (11,888)
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2023 7A2023F12A31H 8,983
At 31 December 2022 R2022F12 A31H 9,627

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further summary details
of which are included in note 14 to the financial
statements.

At 31 December 2023, the Group's investment
properties with a carrying value of RMB8,095,000
(2022: RMB8,240,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 31).

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
as at 31 December 2023 was RMB56,870,000 (2022:
RMB58,540,000) which was determined by the Directors
by using the direct comparison method based on
observable market transaction prices of properties in
similar locations. The fair value hierarchy is level 2. In
estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use.

BREMEIREBELEHERTF =7 F
RS BN B S IR M FE14 -

MR2023F 128318 ' A5LERAEAS
AR®8,095,0007T (20224 : AR
8,240,0007T) IR EMHEHEAR - fERAK
SBERRRITEENER (FF:E31) ©

R2023F12A31H » KREEREWED
NAEEAARYS56,870,0007T (2022
£ AR¥58,540,0007T) HEEAEB
A BB L BUERBR A AR RO B ) 5
WABREMIERSERET - AREBEES
BEBE_R REFAZEVENRAEE
B ZEMENERSREERELAEBA
WA®S -
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31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

15.

LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of
leasehold lands and leased properties used in its
operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire the leasehold lands from the owners with lease
periods of 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be
made under the terms of these land leases. Leased
properties generally have lease terms between 1 and
10 years. The lease contracts of buildings include
extension and termination options. Generally, the Group
is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased
assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are included in “Property,
plant and equipment” in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The carrying

15.

HE
REBMEREEA

AEEBRELEETERANZHEEEL R
HEMEITEHERY - REFREFELE
SNFAREZEIBSHEE L - HHR50
F MRBEZFLHEENGR  SES
BIIX3E - HEVEOHEH KA1
E10F - BFHHEESHEETEH LKL
RUREERE - —RME - ANEERR G EHE
EEERASEIERERDM

(a) EHEEXE
PHEEEF AGEMBHRARA
WIWE BERRE] A£H
MiEREEERMERTAZEEHN

amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and N
the movements during the year are as follows:
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
HEL i HEWME st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFT AREBTT ARETET
As at 1 January 2022 R2022F1H1H 19,007 33,765 52,772
Depreciation charge TeEM% (395) (4,003) (4,398)
As at 31 December 2022 R2022F12A831HK
and 1 January 2023 2023%F1A1H 18,612 29,762 48,374
Additions NE - 28,011 28,011
Termination of EAEEEXRL
right-of-use assets - (28,749) (28,749)
Depreciation charge TeEM% (396) (1,873) (2,269)
As at 31 December 2023 72023F12H31H 18,216 27,151 45,367
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fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

15. LEASES (Continued) 15. HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBEREBA (F)
(b) Lease liabilities (b)) HEERE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the HEAENERAERFANZEIHN
movements during the year are as follows: i~

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥ET T

Carrying amount at 1 January R1A1EMEREEE 38,621 38,284
New lease g 27,042 -
Accretion of interest recognised  FRIERHF BIEE
during the year 707 2,059
Payments (BN = (1,722)
Termination of leases WIEHE (39,102) =
Carrying amount at 31 December ®12 831 HRRMEE 27,268 38,621
Current portion BIERER 4,172 3,529
Non-current portion JERNERER &> 23,096 35,092
Total Bt 27,268 38,621
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is HEBENIBHASNEYHRE

disclosed in note 45 to the financial statements. s 45 55 -
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31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

15. LEASES (Continued) 15. HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) AEBEREBA (F)

(c) HERmFHREEGEZNEHEMT -

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in
relation to leases are as follows:

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Interest on lease liabilities (note 8) HEaBER B (HiEs) 707 2,059
Depreciation charge of right-of-use FREEENTERS
assets 2,269 4,398
Expense relating to short-term BRARBEENRX
leases (included in administrative (FFAFTBURSZ A K2
expenses and cost of sales and $HE M ARFEBCAR)
services) 9,407 2,836
Expense relating to leases of FHREREEEENHRS
low-value assets (included in (FFASHE RARTERAS)
cost of sales and services) 1,903 -
Total amount recognised in profit B R4
or loss 14,286 9,293
(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed (d) FHERHE 25 HEEEHEREN

in note 38 (c) to the financial statements.

it38(c)H#E -
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31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

LEASES (Continued) 15. HE (&)
The Group as a lessor AEBERAHBEA
The Group leases its investment properties (note AEBBESCEHELCHEREEREY
14) of commercial properties under operating lease ¥ (fsE14) - HEBRR —REKBAPRLX
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require HIRFES  WHRTARBERMISKLE
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide HEHSAE - AEEFAERNES I
for periodic rent adjustments according to the then ABAR®E490,0007T (20224F : AR
prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised 767,0007T) °
by the Group during the year was RMB490,000 (2022:
RMB767,000).
At 31 December 2023, the undiscounted minimum lease M2023F 12 A31H - NEERARER
payments receivable by the Group in future periods RIBT GG EHEREER BRI R
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants AR RERSMROT ¢
are as follows:
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTT
Within one year —FRX 490 =
GOODWILL 16. BEE
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Carrying amount at 1 January M1 A1BREREE 6,488 147 957
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 37) WS B AR (A77#37) 79 =
Impairment during the year FARE - (141,469)
Carrying amount at 31 December »12 A31 BHEREE 6,567 6,488
Cost [DEN 148,036 147,957
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE (141,469) (141,469)
Carrying amount at 31 December W12 31 BMEREEE 6,567 6,488
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31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

16.

GOODWILL (Continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is
allocated to the following cash-generating units for
impairment testing:

° Qinghai Bogi cash-generating unit; and

° Photovoltaic power generation projects
cash-generating unit group.

Qinghai Boqi cash-generating unit

On 12 July 2022, the Opinions on Strengthening
Environmental Supervision on Strict Prohibition of
Cross-Province Hazardous Waste Transfer for Disposal
(KR EREREYEAE A AREE —FTRICREEEN
E5)) was issued by the Qinghai Province People’s
Government, which strictly prohibits any cross-province
transfer of non-recyclable and hazardous waste for
incineration and landfill disposal. Considered that
the specific assumptions adopted for the valuation
of the entire interest in Qinghai Bogi as at 30 June
2021 had changed significantly, the Directors and
the original shareholder of Qinghai Boqgi agreed to
renegotiate and enter into the supplemental agreements
to revise the total consideration for the entire equity
interests of Qinghai Bogi from RMB230,000,000 to
RMB50,500,000. Due to the expected decline in future
revenue of Qinghai Bogi, a provision for impairment of
RMB141,469,000 was made in 2022.

The recoverable amount of the Qinghai Bogi cash-
generating unit has been determined based on a value
in use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a five-year period approved
by senior management. The pre-tax discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 12.60% (2022:
13.00%).

16.

ik A€
7 2 i (R =

BREGAFNENEHEESEEATR
TEEBMINETRERR

. FEBTRSELEM &

. HRBEHBREELEM -

EBBTREELEM

R2022F7 128 + 588 ARBUTENZ
(AREBEEEREYEAEAREE—F
BILRREEMNER) BEBEEEHET
e ERENRICRIERES - ZEF
MEBEFEERN2021F6 H30HH
HEAMEANAEEBRRCEETAES -
EEHRSEBETNRERRAZENERD
WEI R ihz - B E8ET2HERM
LR ERARE230,000,000TEFTEA
K #50,500,0007C - HRTEAITHETH
KRW R LD - BER2022F AR
141,469,000 TRy BB R -

FEBTRSELBUNAIKEESRTIE
REREREEEMEN D FHUBKER
SHNBRERERAETEREEAEM
EE - RARRSRETRR A ATRLE =
7312.60% (20224 : 13.00%) °
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GOODWILL (Continued) 16. BE (&)

Photovoltaic power generation projects KRBEEBEERSELEN
cash-generating unit group

The recoverable amount of the photovoltaic power HREBEEERESEAEMN KB EE
generation projects cash-generating unit group has DEREREREREMEN AT RIT®K
been determined based on a value in use calculation FEESEMNE S REEAETERERER
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets EMETE - EARBSRETRAAELIE X
covering a five-year period approved by senior B11.76% °

management. The discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections is 11.76%.

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of NEEEREELAENNNERAED
the cash-generating units is as follows: N

Photovoltaic power

Qinghai Boqi generation projects Total
BEBES HRBEIERRE e

2023 2022 2023 2022
2023 20224 [EPIPXEN 20224
GUEYOOE RMB'000 EGITIEIVE RVB'000 GV RMB’000
ARS T REScRMl B T NShRpel AR T NSCRer

Carrying amount  E2EEEE
of goodwill 6,488 6,488 79 - 6,567 6,488
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16.

GOODWILL (Continued)

Photovoltaic power generation projects cash-
generating unit group (Continued)

Assumptions were used in the value in use of
calculation as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December
2022. The following describes the key assumptions,
based on which management prepared cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

a) Budgeted gross margin — The basis used to
determine the value assigned to the budgeted
gross margin is the average gross margin
achieved in prior historical years, adjusted for the
expected efficiency improvements.

b) Discount rate — The discount rate used is before
tax and reflects specific risks relating to the
relevant CGU.

c) Disposal volume — The basis used to determine
the disposal volume is the disposal volume in
prior historical years, adjusted by expected
growth rate taking into account the industry
growth rate, past experience and the medium or
long-term growth target of the CGU.

d) Power generation — The basis used to determine
the power generation of photovoltaic power
generation equipment is the power generation
in prior historical years, adjusted by expected
attenuation rate taking into account the industry
attenuation rate.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market
development of hazardous and solid waste treatment/
disposal and photovoltaic power generation industries,
discount rates and disposal volume are consistent with
external information sources.

16.

ik A€
KRBHEBBREELEN(F)

72023412 A31H K%2022412A31H
ETHNEREEFETERRXLRER - &
BEMKBANUGHE RS TRBIAET
FERENRNEEZBRRFANT :

a) EENE -RUBENRERE
EE?F'J'EE’H B2 EESBEFEM
ZR R FHEMER (BLFAHMEN
E1EHE) -

b) HEF-FERNEHAAEREEX
Wi ER S ELEEMEBNEH
MRS E R

c) HEE - RIFEEREENEESR
BEFENHEE  YHETRITE
BEX BELHBEASCELSEMN
R Eisk R HAIE K B 218 8 T8 i
REERE -

d) BE- AAEEEAREEREOE
BENEERUNEEENRES
A48 TR E R R,
RS -

DEEEEERERE R NREETEN
MZEE HEEET&Hj ENEIERR
B{EEINEE R IIRBRT -
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17. HMEREE

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

Patents and Customer  Concession
Software  trademarks  relationship arrangements Total
g EiREE EFBE BEgeEd oh
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARETR ARETT ARETT  ARETR
cosT B
At 1 January 2022 ®2022%1 810 18,184 28,774 35,400 909,352 991,710
Additions AE 1,321 = = 24,458 25,779
At 31 December 2022 12022512 318 19,505 28,774 35,400 933,810 1,017,489
Additions RE 1,623 = = 16,103 17726
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) WEHBAT
(H1:237) = = 2,700 = 2,700
Disposals HE - = = (14,117) (14,117)
At 31 December 2023 720235128318 21,128 28,774 38,100 935,796 1,023,798
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION EHe £
At 1 January 2022 ®2022%1A1H (15,101) (28,774) (590) (296,531) (340,996)
Charge for the year QT (1,297) = (4,425) (66,362) (72,084)
At 31 December 2022 2022512 A318 (16,398) (28,774) (5,015) (362,893) (413,080)
Charge for the year FRX (1,681) - (171) (55,434) (57,886)
Disposals & - - - 4,016 4,016
At 31 December 2023 20235128318 (18,079) (28,774) (5,786) (414,311) (466,950)
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT Z5RE
At 1 January 2022 12022461710 = = = = =
Impairment during the year FRHE = = (27612) = (27,612)
At 31 December 2022 and at R2022E12A31B R
31 December 2023 2023128318 - = (27,612) = (27,612)
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2023 20235128318 3,049 - 4,702 521,485 529,236
At 31 December 2022 12022512 4318 3,107 = 2,773 570,917 576,797
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17.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The Group has entered into a number of service
concession arrangements with certain power plants in
PRC on a BOT basis in respect of its desulfurization
and denitrification construction and maintenance
services. Pursuant to the service concession
arrangement contracts, the Group (i) is responsible for
the construction of the desulfurization and denitrification
facilities; (ii) has the contractual obligations to maintain
the infrastructures at a specified level of serviceability;
and (iii) is entitled to operate the facilities upon
completion for a specified concession period from 15
to 20 years by receiving the monthly fees, which are
determined by on-grid tariff subsidies on a per kilowatt
hour basis for power generated by the power plant
and settled with the customers on a monthly basis. The
Group will not hold any residual interest in the facilities
upon expiration of the concession period.

As such, these contracts are accounted for as service
concession arrangements and intangible assets were
recognised upon the completion of construction at
the amounts equal to stand-alone selling price for the
provision of construction service.

On 12 July 2022,
Environmental Supervision on Strict Prohibition of

the Opinions on Strengthening

Cross-Province Hazardous Waste Transfer for Disposal
(KERBEREEREVEEEAREE —PRIREEED
E5)) was issued by the Qinghai Province People’s
Government, which strictly prohibits any cross-province
transfer of non-recyclable and hazardous waste
for incineration and landfill disposal. Therefore, the
customer relationship is indicated to be impaired.
Due to the expected decline in future revenue of
customer relationship, a provision for impairment of

RMB27,612,000 was made in 2022.

17.

Hi\EEE (&Z)
AREBIHEBOTEEGRER M M TEKR

RIS TEME] L ZBRBITTL
R BERBEHTLERHESYH - K
SEWBEREHM R BHEERE  (ii)#IE
RETERERSKEHEEERLRENE
B R(ii)BRERTHIENI5E20F
AR ERTEERERTARNERL
e - mE AU B R T 5B ERRAT
BRENRSTRER EHAEERNET - I
BRARRFPH#HE - AEERFIEEHE
MIET BB RBEMR TR

At - %F A IR TREERARIIER
BRIRELHREREE - YIRASFN
REZERBOBL L EBRIER

R2022F7 4120 A ARBTHIE
(ARBREEREYEEAEAREE—F
BIELRBEEMNER) BEBELEEET
e ERENIIC RIEEES - Bt

EFPEFRENRELRRE - BNTEEHRM
BEPFBREEMNRRLZERL - BER2022
FVEH ARY27,612,000 T AR B R -
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RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION
ARRANGEMENT

In June 2017, the Group entered into a service
concession arrangement with a state-owned power
plant. Through the arrangement, the Group is involved
as an operator (i) paying a specific amount for
purchasing the relevant infrastructure for operation
under the service concession arrangement; (ii) using
the existing infrastructure and upgrading the acquired
facilities for the provision of services under the service
concession arrangement; and (iii) operating and
maintaining the infrastructure for the period of 15 years
(the “Service Concession Period”), and the Group will
be paid for its services over the Service Concession
Period at prices stipulated through a pricing
mechanism. The Group is entitled to use all of the
related infrastructure, however, the power plant, as the
grantor, will control and regulate the scope of service
that the Group must provide with the infrastructure. The
construction and upgrade of this service concession
arrangement have been fully completed in December
2018.

The service fee is charged by reference to on-grid tariff
subsidies determined on a per kilowatt hour basis as
set out in the service concession agreement. However,
the Group is entitled to a minimum guaranteed service
charge, which is calculated based on the minimum
guaranteed on-grid tariff per year and the price agreed
in the service concession agreement. Accordingly, the
receivables under service concession arrangement
was recognised based on the consideration paid by
the Group upon the completion of the construction or
upgrade of the infrastructure.

18.

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

RIS EE R HEE N EWRIEA

M2017566 A - NEBEE A ST
VRIS E R c BiRREH  AE
EAELEFHDIE()MEEREFFL
BLHIE T HIEN B ER R
TR (IVERANEEREEMREAR
BUE TR IE - AR RS IFRT e &
PETE TR DA R (i) &8 R #1518
EMRmmEISF ([ RBEFEER]) -
AL B SR RGBT &L AR ERTE
M BR 75 1B iR TE (B MBI FTRT B A B AR &
R o AEE B REEAMAERBERR
e o MEE G LA T A S 0 1 I AR FE AR
SEANEBAERRBRENRISEHE
ZRBETE2RENRERNEDR
2018F 12 A2 E %K °

R E RS E R FEE HHE]
AN TRHEEFTEN HEEERMK
B AW AEEAEREE A KEERFRRS
B MzERNRESFREERLS
BEMRBE IS R E R ERE
8o Wit - RBEFFFEE R PR B UFIA
WK ER R R ESBERANK B
REMER -

367



368

China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. FEIEFERRF (ZKR) R A F

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
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18.

RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION
ARRANGEMENT (Continued)

In July 2022, the Group entered into a service
concession arrangement with Tianjin Iron Plant. Through
the arrangement, the Group is involved as an operator
(i) paying a specific amount for construction and
purchasing the relevant infrastructure for operation
under the service concession arrangement; (ii) using
the existing infrastructure and upgrading the acquired
facilities for the provision of services under the service
concession arrangement; and (iii) operating and
maintaining the infrastructure for the period of 10 years
(the “Service Concession Period”), and the Group will
be paid for its services over the Service Concession
Period at prices stipulated through a pricing
mechanism. The Group is entitled to use all of the
related infrastructure, however, Tianjin Iron Plant, as the
grantor, will control and regulate the scope of service
that the Group must provide with the infrastructure. The
construction of this service concession arrangement
has been fully completed in 2022.

The service fee is charged by reference to an agreed
price determined on a per kilowatt hour basis as set
out in the service concession agreement. However,
the Group is entitled to a minimum guaranteed
service charge, which is calculated based on the
minimum guaranteed power generation per year
and the price agreed in the service concession
agreement. Accordingly, the receivables under service
concession arrangement were recognised based on the
consideration paid by the Group upon the completion of
the construction or upgrade of the infrastructure.

18.

BBERTEETHFENNERRE
(&)

M2022%F7 A - AEEEXFEBR] AR
BRI L BULAREESELE()
RBIRFSHELHERMBEREE
EHRBEERREN X NEESE : (i) E
FAIR A B R THARPAEE B AR AL
HERB LR TORS - R(>i)R
10 B ([RBISFFH ) ELMEER
R - MAREREEEEBRANIERTE
BB RS R TR ENREES &
- AEBEBEERAERBERRE -
BRZFHB ((ERERTA) BHEH M B A
SENBERREAIRENREHEE - R
BT RETHEN R TIRER20224F 28
SERK °

R B IRIBERG A ERRATSEATT
ERESEEBTNHEER MUK - A
o AEEARRERERERGER -
ERESFRERZZEERRBRER
BiHZEABTENERSE - Bt - REH
AARERPFR T RUGAER R TR HE
R T AR B AR B AN SR B P S 0 (B
BAFR ©
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RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION
ARRANGEMENT (Continued)

The
arrangements arose from the minimum service charge

receivables under service concession

guaranteed were as follows:

18.

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

BRBERTEETHFENNERRE
(&)

FTRE N RIERS EREL 2 IR FFE
BLHR MR RYFIRI T

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Current portion BIERER 5> 48,307 49,762
Non-current portion JEBNHAES 457,517 492,005
Total st 505,824 541,767
Expected collection schedule is TERTW RO T -
analysed as follows:
Within one year —FR 48,307 49,762
More than one year, but not more — A LETBBME
than two years 46,947 43,960
More than two years but not more MELA BT BIBRF
than five years 159,286 149,153
More than five years FFENRE 251,284 298,892
Total HEt 505,824 541,767

At 31 December 2023, the Group’s receivables under
service concession arrangements with a carrying
value of RMB202,596,000 (2022: RMB218,249,000)
were pledged to secure the loans from other financial
institutions (note 31).

The Group accounts for the receivables under service
concession arrangement based on the present value
of the estimated annual minimum service charge in
the Service Concession Period by applying an implied
interest rate of 6.37% and 6.15% which are calculated
based on the significant financing component implied in
the contract.

R2023F 128310 ' AEBEEAEAS
AR#202,596,0007T (20224 : AR
218,249,0007T) WY AR IS AF AT A & 2 HE 1R
TRKFHIBECER - (EREM S REIER
HEROER (FFEE31) ©

RNEEG R RFET &L RPN EWEIE
RIRBHTCEHRN G FERERSEE
WREEAENREGNTRBENENRE
DETEREEHEE6.37% 5% 6.15% A0 °
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18.

RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION
ARRANGEMENT (Continued)

The grantor under service concession arrangement is
a state-owned power plant in which the default risk is
generally perceived to be low. The Directors consider
that there was no significant change in credit risk
during the year ended 31 December 2023, and thus
measure the loss allowance for receivables under
service concession arrangement at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL, which is RMB8,348,000 (2022:
RMB5,102,000).
credit risk is low, the collection of receivables under
service concession arrangement is closely monitored

While the Company considers the

by the Company in order to minimise any credit risk
associated with the receivables.

Movement in 12-month ECL that has been recognised
for receivables under service concession arrangement
for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 is as
follows:

18.

BB EERTHFETNERR
(&)

RBFTEELRHBBTINRTARBELNR

BWERRABBRENREERH - EFR
B BE2023F12A31HLFENEE
FEIwEERNEE - Bt REFTL
ELPE THEREEBBETRER
12 AEHEEEBEENSRE  IARK
8,348,0007T (20224 : AR¥5 102,000
L) c BEARARABEERBREE - &
ARAEYERRBFTCERTHEE TR
FIE B MRS S DA R R AT fr] ER R U GRIB R
EREERE -

RNEE2023F k2022912 HA31H Jt¢
& RS ELTHE T E W
RZ12EAEHEERBLT -

RMB’000

ARET T

At 1 January 2022 20221 H1H 6,338
Reversal of impairment of receivables under MRISHEFFFEL L HEE T M EWGIERE

service concession arrangement B El (1,236)

At 31 December 2022 and at 1 January 2023 72022912 A31H &2023F1A1H 5,102

Impairment of receivables under service RS FFE S E L HEIE T Y
concession arrangement R IE BB 3,246
At 31 December 2023 7A2023F12H31H 8,348
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31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REERARNRE

2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT

Cost of investments in associates N /NS B = RO BN 36,000 33,000
Share of profits of associates, D EEEE R E)E T

net of dividend received (BB WA E) 27,937 30,895
Total st 63,937 63,895
Particulars of the Group's material associate are as AEBEBHENRINFBOT ¢
follows:

Percentage of

Place of ownership
Particulars incorporation/ interest
of issued registration and attributable Principal
Name shares held business to the Group activity
HMRY, AEBEEGFERE
218 BFEERTROFE AR R & i R EZEDL TEXK
2023 2022
PIPREN 2022 F
Guo Neng Long Yuan Boqi Registered PRC/ 30 30 Operation of
Environmental Technology capital of  Chinese Mainland environmental
(Han Chuan) Co., Ltd. RMB1 each protection facilities
(“Han Chuan Long
Yuan”, formerly known as
Han Chuan Long Yuan
Bogi Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd.)
BRI REFRARRR I A EARER hE RERRRIE
BRRRN(HE)IER] - AR B A BE

ATREE )| BE R B A IRR
MEBARRT)
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19.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19.

The shareholdings of the associates are held through a

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The associates are accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

The summarised financial information in respect of a

REERNRANRE (&)

BERRNREDEBARR —HE2EN
BRRREA -

RAINER A M B BwR T ERAERAA

material associate, Han Chuan Long Yuan, is set out N
below:
2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFT
Total assets mEE 250,680 306,516
Total liabilities FEN=RE (47,557) (93,533)
Net assets BEFE 203,123 212,983
Reconciliation to the Group's interest BRI &R (B OB N R Y
in the associate: e 2 ¥0R -
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBNMREEBD L 30% 30%
Carrying amount of the investment RERAE 60,937 63,895
Revenue Yz 269,680 233,522
Profit and total comprehensive income FRRMNREER BT
for the year 38,123 47,983
Dividend received from the associate FA B E N RIWER R E
during the year 14,395 30,601
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31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

REENRNRE (&)
TRIRE RN E R AR EEEE A 7

R IS EHY

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19.
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group's associate that is not
individually material:
Share of the associate’s profit FRFEIGHEE R TR
for the year
Share of the associate’s [EREE R R 2E

total comprehensive income Iz B8R
Aggregate carrying amount of the

Group's investment in the associate RHE®E

AEERBERRREDN

3,000

BERE

Net assets

3,000

EQUITY INVESTMENT DESIGNATED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

20.

EEREAREBESARMEZEES

HIRERE

Unlisted equity investment, at fair value
Beijing Ruichu Chuangyuan
Technology Center (Limited

Beijing

Partnership)

(Limited Partnership)

FLETERERE - HAREE

Ruichu Chuangyuan
Technology Center

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
5,173 5,166

The above equity investment was irrevocably
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income as the Group considers this investment to be
strategic in nature.

RRASER S LM EBREMEE
R E AR A e E AR AR EER

AEMEEEA -
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mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

21. INVENTORIES 21. #FE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT
Equipment, supplies and spare parts B MR REN 34,090 34,086
Allowance for inventories FEEE (957) (957)
Total st 33,133 33,129

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. EFZEWFEE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Trade receivables B 5 YW KRIE 1,249,480 918,149
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEEEE (67,971) (46,028)
Net carrying amount BRENFE 1,181,509 872,121
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group generally grants credit periods of 30 to 90
days which are agreed with each of its trade customers.
The extension of credit periods to the customers may
be granted on a discretionary basis by considering
customer type, the current creditworthiness and the
customer’s financial condition and payment history with
the Group.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date
and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

22.

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

EE e

AEE-RELNEPEEHRNFI0E0
B DHEEZEEZEFHE - AKEZE
BEPZER - RBAEBRMBHOR - K
REEREEZBENFRLEMRBRE
FPETEREEDR -

RBERRRIFET BB RSB B 1R B
BOE S RBGRRZ R DT

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT

1 to 90 days 1£290H 659,456 420,120
91 to 180 days 91£180H 141,168 110,363
181 to 365 days 1812 365H 125,393 74,948
1to 2 years 1&24F 109,124 203,426
2 to 3 years 2E3F 120,630 45,089
Over 3 years HBiE3F 25,738 18,175
Total st 1,181,509 872,121

The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s trade receivables
with a carrying value of RMB32,064,000 (2022:
RMB33,493,000) were pledged to secure the loans from
other financial institutions (note 31).

AREBE B2 F AR A EERR -

R2023F12A31H ' A BEEAES
AR®32,064,0007T (20224F : AR
33,493,0007T) M E S EWRIBE KR -
EREM S BB IR HEROER (M
31) e
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31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

22.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22, BZEWREE)
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of B RWFIEREBERESEIHNT
trade receivables are as follows:
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T
At the beginning of year F7) 46,028 35,846
Allowance for trade receivables B 5 W GRIa RS 22,878 11,188
Write-off as uncollectible YE A7 B] Ui [0 i Bt 5 (935) (1,006)
At the end of year FR 67,971 46,028

The increase in allowance was mainly due to the
increase in long-aged of trade receivables during years
of 2023 and 2022.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected
credit losses. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

BRI T EHN2023F R20226 8 5
FEUCEIB A R ERBRESIE N -

REREDHRABERBRELETRED
i AFHEBEBEEERE - B#EXTIER
AAHUBEBREANZEEF D AR
MEHI R BEE - &t B R R RS
R BEXHEIABEAHAISNERB
EEM - BRI MR KA AR TR 8
BERAEEH -
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fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22. ESEWREE)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk TREFEABREEESEAEEE S E
exposure on the Group's trade receivables using a WHIEREERBRHER

provision matrix:

2023 2022
2023F 20224

Gross Expected Gross Expected
carrying credit carrying credit
amount losses amount losses
HBIREE FAHGEEER LSRRy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARWTT NSNS

Individual evaluation of ERIFH&ETEE EEiE
expected credit losses 38,312 24,297 49,909 23,093
Assessment of expected EERBAA TS
credit losses by credit TEEEEE1E
risk portfolio 1,211,168 43,674 868,240 22,935
Total st 1,249,480 67,971 918,149 46,028
As at 31 December 2023 120235124318 Ageing
ik
Less than
1year 1to2years 2to3years Over 3 years
SME 1225 223% 3ENLE
Expected credit loss rate BHEEEEX 1.12% 6.25% 13.53% 37.43%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  #REE(ARETTT) 936,526 116,398 139,510 18,734 1,211,168
Expected credit losses (RMB'000)  BHEERE(ARETT) 10,509 7,274 18,880 7,011 43,674
As at 31 December 2022 120225124318 Ageing
R
Less than
fyear  1to2years  2to3years  Over3years Total
NES 1526 2E3E 3ENE @t
Expected credit loss rate BEEEBEX 0.78% 4.43% 13.63% 35.06%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  &B@EE (ARETT) 610,172 199,462 52,202 6,404 868,240

Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BEEERE (ARETTL) 4,742 8,835 7,113 2,245 22,935
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23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 23. ENFRE - - #E&REMEWRIE
RECEIVABLES

2023 2022
2023 % 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBFIT
Prepaid value added tax TE(TIZER 53,768 69,018
Prepayments SEXNE 100,931 33,937
Other receivables o fE W sk IE 146,801 120,772
Prepaid income tax TR ETIS B 665 40
302,165 223,767

Less: impairment losses on other B HAth FEURGRIE R (B B 1B
receivables (5,708) (5,821)
Total st 296,457 217,946

Other receivables mainly represent deposits with
customers. An impairment analysis is performed at
each reporting date by considering expected credit
losses, which are estimated by applying a loss rate
approach with reference to the historical loss record
of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. The loss rate applied as at
31 December 2023 was 3.89% (2022: 4.80%).

HtEKRRETZETRETFPHNIES o
REEREAREERAZEREREEESE
EITRES W - MEHEEEETER
2EREBBAEBBLENEBEBRFAE
e - BEEDEHZE  URBREARRL
KR RAEE MR B TER (2R A ) o B
2023412 A1 AEAMEIEE /3.89%
(20224 :4.80%) °
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CONTRACT ASSETS

The Group has rights to considerations from customers
for the provision of construction, operation and
maintenance services. Contract assets arise when the
Group has rights to considerations for completion of
such services and not yet billed under the relevant
contracts, and their rights are conditioned on factors
other than passage of time. Any amount previously
recognised as contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional.
Remaining rights and performance obligations in a
particular contract are accounted for and presented
on a net basis, as either a contract asset or a contract
liability.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s rights
to considerations for work completed and not billed
because the rights are conditioned on the Group’s
future performance. Usually, the contract assets are
transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional. The Group typically reclassifies contract
assets to trade receivables on the date of issue of
invoice or billing with the customers when such right
of collections becomes unconditional other than the
passage of time.

24,

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

BHEE

AEBARREHRTRE - 28 MRS
AEFPKEKE SHNEERASEARE
SRR BRRE B R RRIBEABEAOKE
WERR B EL - M HEENABZRRER
AR FEBIGM - AR BENE
E M ERRIAR A BREMNK A B GRS
BRESRWFOR - ERA AR T
MEBHNEERFRELEARLZINRE
MEEREHEARE-

BHEEFTEEARAKEE K ARK
BN TREDMKENEN  LIRRZF
BMAREERKHBITIERSENS - —
RS ANEERZSENERER

RSB AR SRR - AEE—ER)
FERRENARESHBEAY - DR
2 g [ 30 B E UFE B 0 P 0 0
HE  BANEESHABEE S EER
IE o]

KRV | 1@ 31 December 1 January
2023 2022 2022
20234 20224 20224
12H31H 12H31H 1H1H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETTT ARETTT

Contract assets arising from M iE PR TS B B

construction services BHEE

Current portion BNER 245,633 423,950 242,089
Non-current portion JERNER 135,556 16,917 203,525
Total ET 381,189 440,867 445,614
Impairment B (4,277) (3,427) (3,279)
Net carrying amount AREFE 376,912 437,440 442,335
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24.

CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued) 24. BREE(E)
The decrease in 2023 was the result of the increase in R2023FEHNEERD - THHERFRE
the settlement of construction services at the end of BERBOAELN - (R2022F680E&
the year. (The decrease in 2022 was the result of the ERL - TR ERE T A R R
increase in the completion of rendering the installation ne)
services at the end of the year.)
During the year ended 31 December 2023, RMB850,000 REE2023F12A31BLEEE - ARE
(2022: RMB148,000) was recognized as an allowance 850,0007T (20224 : AR™148,0007T)
for expected credit losses on contract assets. The BRAEGHEENTEHEEEBBERE -~
Group’s trading terms and credit policy with customers SEARPHNE SEAREEBRRTNE
are disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements. MKMW sE22F 5, -
Movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised EIRBE RV B mE A FIRATH A
for contract assets in accordance with the simplified DHEREHNEERRN BB EES
approach set out in IFRS 9 is as follows: BEBHMT :
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
At beginning of year F1 3,427 3,279
Impairment of contract assets, net BHNEEREBEFE 850 148
At end of year FR 4,277 3,427

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected
credit losses. The provision rates for the measurement
of the expected credit losses of the contract assets
are based on those of the trade receivables as the
contract assets and the trade receivables are from
the same customer bases. The provision rates of
contract assets are based on days past due of trade
receivables for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

REREBHRAEFRELETRED
i LA EBRMEERR - fEANEE
EHEEERENBEXLERINEANE
ENESRKFIRNEER - ME SRR
FBRDKEERAEFE - ANEENBE
RNEREABRUBBERANZEETF D
ERAR R B B W R B B BEE © %
AERBRBENESR  BERERNR
SEMASNARBESMN - BRI R
RRGERATRR AR R A SEEHL -
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31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

24. CONTRACT ASSETS (Continued) 24. EHNEE(E)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk TREFEABREEEAERAEESGHE
exposure on the Group’s contract assets using a EFERBRNER

provision matrix:

2023 2022
20234 20224
Non- Non-
Current current Current current
portion portion portion portion
B JERNEAE S BIEAER > FERNEAEE S

Expected credit loss rate TEHEEEIE R 1.12% 1.12% 0.78% 0.78%
Gross carrying amount MEREE

(RMB’000) (AE®ETFT) 245,633 135,556 423,950 16,917
Expected credit losses TEEEEEE

(RMB’000) (AR®TT) 2,756 1,521 3,295 132

25. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 25. RAAEBEFABZNEREE
PROFIT OR LOSS

2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTT

Nominal acquisition consideration HEWBENRE 3,054 3,054
Put-option (note 37) Rom BRRE (M15E37) 319 =
Listed equity investments, at fair value ~ +HBRAERE  RAREE - 21,607
3,373 24,661
Nominal acquisition consideration was paid for the ZEWEBREDGARKEREKEZ (I
future acquisition of W-startech (Beijing) Environmental ROBRBERMER AR MZAT

Technology Co., Ltd. (B/k 2% (IR RERITARA ),
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26.

27.

DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE 26. BRAABETAEMZEHKZWERE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME TITA
The amounts represent notes receivable. The Directors RS HEERIER EEBFETHE
recognised the notes receivable, with fixed rates and REBENENERRAREAABER
maturity date, as debt instruments at fair value through AEME2ENENESEE  RAARFE
other comprehensive income, as they held these notes ZEZBENENRWER S KM - EF
for the purpose of cash collection and discounting. BERKEENEREEEERBEIE -
The Directors assessed the expected credit loss risk of FERAEBEANEARRITERER
notes receivable as low, mainly because the notes were BUORBRIE -
secured by the drawer’s bank deposit and the default
risk was low.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 27. BE2RBESZEYRCERTHER
PLEDGED TIME DEPOSITS AND BANK RRITREER
BALANCES
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
Cash and bank balances He RIRTT4 396,197 319,680
Time deposits TEHATF K 36,689 181,074
Subtotal NEE 432,886 500,754
Less: Pledged time deposits and W EERERTERR
bank balances (note) RITAEER (B52) (84,328) (98,266)
Cash and cash equivalents ReREFEY 348,558 402,488

Note: Pledged time deposits and bank balances represent
amounts held by banks, which are not available for
the Group’s use, as security for issuance of bills to
the Group’s suppliers, letters of credit and letters of
guarantee relating to the EPC contracts and the O&M
contracts signed with customers and lawsuit freezes
funds. Upon maturity of the letters of credit and letters
of guarantee, the deposits are released by the bank
and become available for general use by the Group
except the lawsuit freezes funds. Pledged bank
deposits of the Group carried interest at market rates
which ranging from 0.20% to 2.75% per annum as at
31 December 2023 (2022: from 0.00% to 2.75% per
annum,).

HWtat - BERBETHEARRITAERIELIRTH
BT HAEFEF - (40 LEEH
REFZHLHZE  FHEPCEA LM
BEERFAFEESFTHERE LA
15N RIEIRIRETIEEIR S 2 8F © fHis
FA R SEIR T BB - B R 7 AR
TTZERI A A5 (R R h i B2
S) FBIE—RRAi# - R2023F 12531
B XEBFDEIFRTFHIZEN T
0.20%22.75% (20224 : 77 F0.00%
F22.75%) BT FFIEKEE »
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED TIME DEPOSITS AND BANK
BALANCES (Continued)

27.

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

RERBEEZEYRCEREHNEN
KIRITRERR ()

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETTT
The above balances denominated in: LA TS T EHE -
- RMB — AR# 377,925 439,345
— United States dollar (“USD”) — %7 397 2,638
- Hong Kong dollar (“HKD") — AT 51,723 56,075
— Euro (“EUR") — BT 2,841 2,696
Total st 432,886 500,754

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Chinese Mainland’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Bank balances and cash of the Group comprise cash
held by the Group and bank balances that bear interest
at prevailing market rates ranging from 0.00% to 1.3%
per annum as at 31 December 2023 (2022: from 0.00%
to 1.3% per annum), with an original maturity of three
months or less.

ARBITAEBRARAREMER - BRE
B R BE B SN EE & Il R ) S A B - B EE
MNEEERTE  ANEEAEAERELETT
SMNEXRBHRITHARBHBSEME

REEBRTEKRERSBPEAEEREN
FFEIR e RIRITAE - R2023F12 A 31
A ZERITEHRIENT0.00%E1.3%
(20224 : N F0.00%E1.3%) HEITH
BEMEXFTBARIBAB A=A
"|? °
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28. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 28. EZERNREREMNRE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETTT
Bills payables EREE 202,231 287,494
Trade payables B S ERNRIA 915,149 846,746
Total st 1,117,380 1,134,240
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as E 5 ERT R IE N FET E i P 3R A HY R iR 3
at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice SHEZRESTAOT ¢
date, is as follows:
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
1 to 90 days 1290H 307,507 409,766
91 to 180 days 91&180H 280,152 265,540
181 to 365 days 181£365H 150,248 115,173
11to 2 years 1E24F 187,248 172,004
2 to 3 years 2E3F 96,393 57,154
Over 3 years HBid3F 95,832 114,603
Total st 1,117,380 1,134,240
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are B EWEIE R E 0 —BIR30E 90

normally settled on 30-90 day terms.

BIEEMEE -
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OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND 29.

ACCRUED EXPENSES

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

HttENRE  CSWZREREFFEX

2023 2022
2023 % 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

Accrued expenses JEETR X 132,072 110,890
Accrued payroll JEETTE 76,634 58,466
Accrued liabilities (note) [EsTBE (M) 61,766 50,076
Other tax payables E IR 50,654 78,251
Guarantee deposits from suppliers B HE B H R E 24,286 27,178
Others HAh 28,393 16,634
Total st 373,805 341,495

Note: Accrued liabilities mainly represent the disposal
expenses of the two landfills in Qinghai Bogi which are
accounted at present value, and the expected loss for
onerous contracts recorded when it is probable that

total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 30.

Wiet : JEFT B BE 5 & F 418 & B EE
BRI (KB EALR) U REFFEE
AN F] BEREIBAR B #I W as BB IR &
HYTERIEIR

=] II,J E{E

KR LTTY | J-T@ 31 December 1 January

2023 2022 2022

20234 20224 20224

12A31H 12A31H 1A1R
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREETT ARBTT

Construction services EIER

86,604 109,009 116,197

Contract liabilities represent advances received for
the provision of construction services. The decrease
in contract liabilities in 2023 was mainly due to the
increase of the completion of construction services.
(The decrease in contract liabilities in 2022 was mainly
due to the increase of the completion of construction
services.)

& K BB 15 B R R AR 7% AT R B B
° R2023F R HWAERYD - TEHANT
ﬁ)ZEI’J EERBIBIAAER - (R2022F 54
BERD - TEHRTTHH R E RSN
PREK =)

>¥r U>
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31.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. stES{ITREMMER
BORROWINGS
As at 31 December 2023 As at 31 December 2022
R2023%F12A318 R2022%F12A31H
Effective Effective
interest interest
(CICNC N ETTT NG N rate (%)  Maturity  RMB'000
ERA= ERFIE
(%) ARETT (%) FEA ARETR
Current il
Bank loans - unsecured RITER - EHA 3.20-5.50 2024 53,496 3.70 2023 24,000
Bank loans - secured RITER - BHEA 3.20 2024 23,565 2.80-3.95 2023 38,313
Current portion of long-term REERONHLS -
loans - secured BHEA 5.85-7.71 2024 41,884 5.85-7.71 2023 29,795
Total - current o — BN 118,945 92,108
Non-current JEEIH
Bank loans - secured RITES - BHA 3.20 2025 32,000 3.95 2024 20,000
Loans from other financial KEEMBEREEN
institutions - secured EF-EHE 5.85-7.71 2025-2027 65,333  5.85-7.71 2024-2026 62,029
Total - non-current a5 — JEBNHR 97,333 82,029
Total st 216,278 174,137
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
fRE BRI (4)

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. :ESTREMMERE)
BORROWINGS (Continued)

2023 2022
2023 % 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T

Analysed into: DA
Bank loans and overdrafts repayable: JEEENRITERRES :
Within one year —FRN 77,061 62,313
In the second year FoF 12,000 20,000
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=-FEFERF
(BREEEMTE) 20,000 =
Subtotal NEF 109,061 82,313
Other borrowings repayable: FEEEMEMBER
Within one year —FR 41,884 29,795
In the second year EF 34,284 31,702
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-FEFAF
(BREEREMSF) 31,049 30,327
Subtotal NEE 107,217 91,824
Total st 216,278 174,137
The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment BIHAFIA D ENME R B TS R8I (E R

dates set out in the borrowing agreements. HEf -
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31.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, borrowings from other
financial institutions of approximately RMB29,387,000
(2022: RMB47,431,000) were secured by Beijing
Bogi’s equity interests in Jinggangshan Bogi and the
service fee receivables under the Jinggangshan Boqi
service concession agreement; and of approximately
RMB77,830,000 (2022: RMB44,393,000) were secured
by Beijing Bogi's equity interests in Handan Bogi and
the service fee receivables under Handan Boqi service
concession agreement.

As at 31 December 2023, borrowings from banks of
approximately RMB43,000,000 (2022: RMB36,000,000)
were secured by the Group’s investment properties,
property, plant and equipment, and right-of-use
assets; borrowings from banks of approximately
RMB12,565,000 (2022: RMB22,313,000) was obtained
by discounting the notes receivables issued by the a
subsidiary of the Group to a bank.

Interest on bank and other borrowings denominated
in RMB at floating rates is calculated based on the
borrowing rates announced by the People’s Bank of
China. The effective interest rate bank borrowings are
charged at the prevailing market rates at 3.20%-7.71%
(2022: 2.80%-7.71%).

31.

FHERITREMMER (E)

M2023F12A31H » REH M EEE
B 5 R4 A R #29,387,0007T (20224
AR®47,431,0007T) At RIEF R H R
L 18 2y 19 IR A R 3 R L1 2 AR 7S A A 48
EHMBEETHEKRREEEEM : ML
AR#®77,830,0007T (20224 : AR
44,393,0007T) BIL RIEHF R HEE T
BRI A ETREFTEEHBEETH
FEW RS B 1EHE R o

MR2023F 128318 @ RITEFTHA
R#¥43,000,0007C (2022%F : AR¥
36,000,0007C) BAKBENIREDE - ¥
¥ BERRBUAREHEEEFER
BITIERH AR 12,565,000t (2022
£ AR¥22313,0007T) /& @AR K
SE R BARRRTEHOEKZE
RN o

AN REENZBIRTT R EMIE KT
BERFBRARBITAMHERFRAHE -
RITERNERFEIZI 20%E7.71%
(20224 : 2.80% & 7.71%) WIRITHIBE
FIRUTER o



32. DEFERRED TAX
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

The components of deferred tax assets/liabilities

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the year are as

follows:

Deferred tax assets

32.

e MR RR M (8D

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

IEFE R IR

ERAMBAARANERNECHBE
E/AEBDRFRNEHOT

EEBRAEEE

Losses Accrued
Impairment available  liabilities and
Allowance for of other for offsetting provision Depreciation
creditlosses ~ non-current  against future  for onerous Accrued offied  Right-of-use
and inventories assets  taxable profits contracts expenses Patents assets assels
EEFE Ab4RBEE UAGEERR  REESAR
it WHE ERBEANEE EHRERER Fitfix 5 EEEERE  RAEER
RVB'000 RB000 RMB'000 RB'000 RMB'000 RVB'000 RB'000 RMB'000
AEETR ARETR AEETR ARETR AGETR AE&TR ARETR AEETR
At 1 January 2022 vl 14381 1,581 - 2182 8,662 3945 1629 758 3,198
Efectofadopfonof AR &3
amendments o412 EEJE 108
(BiT5) 58 - - 5,00 - - b6 6341
A tdeay 202 RAREIAIA
(restated) (E7) 14381 1,581 - 18m 8,662 3945 162 1404 39,499
Creditedicharged) o TAHRAE)
proftor logs & AL - 127 385 791 (502) - 695 12498
At31 December 2022 H025 123318 17,133 1,581 127 8,262 16,633 3443 1629 2099 5997
Efectofadopfonof AR &3
amendmenis oA 12 EBJE10%
(BE)mpe - - - (750) - - i (492)
A tdaary 2023 RABEIAIA
(iesteted) (&) AR 1,581 1207 1502 16,63 3443 1629 237 515065
Crediedicharged) o TACHRE)
profitor loss 4 6,430 (1.217) 1754 351 (502) - 30 10372
A3t December 2028 RAO3E1281R 256 1,561 - 9,266 2210 204 1629 2687 187
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China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. FEIEFERRF (ZKR) R A F

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

32. EEBE(E)

Deferred tax liabilities BEEHEEE
Withholding tax Fair value
Deferred tax on the earnings adjustments
liabilities  anticipated to arising from
arising from  be distributed Accrued acquisition of
new leases by subsidiaries liabilities  a subsidiary Total
EHNEAR BB A R
FHEEEN  BIRNEBHH EENAR
EEHEEE R AR BERE #st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2022 M2022%1 718 - (23,149) - (5,793) (28,942)
Effect of adoption of R ekt
amendments to IAS 12 ERIE12%;
S HEE)
ez (646) - (5,695) - (6,341)
At 1 January 2022 20226
(restated) 1R18 (&31) (646) (23,149) (5,695) (5,793) (35,283)
(Charged)/credited to (nkg)/
profit or loss AR = (2,654) = 4,861 2,207
At 31 December 2022 120225
12A318 (646) (25,803) (5,695) (932) (33,076)
Effect of adoption of B e
amendments to IAS 12 ERBIZ12%
(7T H)
-7 (258) - 750 - 492
At 1 January 2023 120235
(restated) 1A18 (&%) (904) (25,803) (4,945) (932) (32,584)
Acquisition of a subsidiary  KE—RHNBAF - = = (320) (320)
Charged to profit or loss nheBE (3,169) (3,197) 395 157 (5,814)
At 31 December 2023 72023%
12A31H (4,073) (29,000) (4,550) (1,095) (38,718)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset in the statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of
the deferred tax balances of the Group for financial
reporting purposes:.

32.

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

IESERR ()

ELEBIAEE(E)

REIME ETELERBEERAED
FER IR R AL o AT BB 7% 8 &R
B M8 AN & B r R T IR RETED
#r

Net deferred tax assets recognised in the
consolidated statement of
financial position

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of
financial position

RERE MR KRR
ELERIAEEFE

RERE BN RIER A
BELERIAREFE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
(Restated)

(&%)

54,640 45 656
(31,481) (26,735)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of the following items:

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has unused tax
losses of RMB22,265,000 (2022: RMB12,532,000) that
are available for offsetting against future profits for
the consecutive five years and will expire between
2023 and 2027. The Group has no tax losses arising
in Chinese Mainland (2022: RMB8,109,000) on which
deferred tax assets have been recognised. The tax
losses arising in Chinese Mainland are available for a
maximum of five years to offset against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose.

The Group is liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Chinese
Mainland in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008. The applicable rate is 10% for the Group.

RERIAEEY Bl 518 B #ER -

M2023F12A31H  AEEHREAH
HEEARE22 265,007 (20224 © A
R#12,532,0007T) ' AJAREEEER
1 2R 2R FIN 5 7R 2023 FF £ 2027 4F £
MR - AEBUEEPRAEELTD
ML BERELEHBEEENTIEERE (2022
& AR¥8,109,0007T) ° £ B KREE
ERRIBEBRERS AFA BIERKHEMR
EEBBARNRRERTRT o

ANEE AR ER B KERK AN B R R R
2008F1 A1 BLAREAERNZFFTHIKAY
R BEMMNTBENT - EEARAEBENHES
10% °
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mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

32.

33.

34.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 32. EEBIE(E)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued) EEHESE (&)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group recognised the M2023F12H31H » AEBRTEASE T
relevant deferred tax liabilities of RMB29,000,000 (2022: B8 A R AT 78 B AR SRS IE B B FIFE R
RMB25,803,000) on earnings anticipated to be remitted HHERIEEFT1S T 8 B A R ¥ 29,000,000
by certain subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. At the gL (20224 : AR®25,803,0007T) ° 1A
end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of WMERR  YEBREEHIBAENNE
temporary differences associated with undistributed RARSERFEENERZEQTAA
earnings of subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities [K#1,635,138,0007T (20224 : AR
have not been recognised was RMB1,635,138,000 1,446,155,0007T) °

(2022: RMB1,446,155,000).

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION 33. WARKE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Payable for acquisition of a subsidiary WEEMTB R B ERE
(note 37) (H12£37) 958 =
SHARE CAPITAL 34. WA
Authorised EE
Number of Nominal value Share
shares per share capital
RO E SREE B
UsD uUsb
EyI eI
At 1 January 2022, R2022F1 /818 -
31 December 2022 and 2022F12 4318 &
31 December 2023 2023%F12 A31H 5,000,000,000 0.00001 50,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 34. BA&(E)
Issued (=55

2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETTT

Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
1,005,720,799 (2022: 1,005,720,799) 1,005,720,799/% (20224
ordinary shares at USD0.00001 each 1,005,720,799% ) &%
E{E0.00001 ZE LAY I AR 67 67
A summary of movements in the Company’s share KRB ESBENT -

capital is as follows:

Number of

shares in issue Share capital

ERITROEE &N

RMB’000

ARETIT

At 1 January 2022 202291 A1H 1,005,776,799 67

Shares repurchased and cancelled (note) © 8B KL 8mID (A7:E) (56,000) =
At 31 December 2022, 1 January R2022%F12/831H8 »

2023 and 31 December 2023 2023F1 A1 &

202312 H31H 1,005,720,799 67
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Issued (Continued)

Note: During 2022, the Company purchased its own ordinary

shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange as follows:

R (&)
BT (&)

WiaE - R20224%F - KR AIEEEHZAEL
HEBK - FHIEWT -

Number of Aggregate
ordinary shares consideration
Date of repurchase of HKD1.35 each Price per share paid
SREE
1.358 LM
BB A EBERHA BRER ENRERE
Highest Lowest
BB RIE
HKD HKD HKD'000
BT AT FET
31 March 2022 202293 A31H 56,000 1.32 1.32 74

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year (2022: nil).

RER ARAMBLARHMERE - H
SR AR FHEMR LT E S (20224 ¢
&) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a)

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Scheme 2020”) on 29 December 2020, i.e.
the date on which the Scheme 2020 was adopted
by resolution of the Shareholders at general
meeting (the “Adoption Date”). The purpose
of the Scheme 2020 is to enable the Group
to grant options to the eligible participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution to the
Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme 2020
include any eligible employee, any independent
non-executive director and chief executive (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company
or any subsidiary, any director (including
independent non-executive director) and chief
executive (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
any invested entity, any adviser (professional or
otherwise) or consultant to any area of business
or business development of any member of the
Group or any invested entity, any supplier of
goods or services to any member of the Group or
any invested entity, any customer of any member
of the Group or any invested entity, any person
or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to any member
of the Group or any invested entity; and any
shareholder of any member of the Group or any
invested entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any
invested entity. The Scheme 2020 shall be valid
and effective for a period of ten years from the
Adoption Date.

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

35. LIROR/EHMMTRK

(a)

R 47 A T &

RAEIR2020F 12 4298 ([ #
WA )R — B’ H RS
([2020F % 81]) - WEHB - 2020
FHEERREARS LERRRBR
HERIRM - 2020F 5T BB EEAE
ErmeERSmER L HE £
ARESHAEEEL BRI 2 HE)%
Bl - 20205t EIME BEEL2HE
HEE ANEERKEER  ARQF
s LA B B R R R T IB S FE AT
EZRERTRAB(EER L™
RA  FAEERETEENTAE
= (BEEYIINTES) RESTT
HBAB(EERLEWHA) : A&H
ERKE RS EAEIREEED
I EB SIS L ES RN AR
M (BEERHEMFE) BB
M S B R B QR S E %
BEEREIREE R IR T HLE
7 ANEBEAKE R R KA
REBERBNINER  MAKEMT
]k B A Bl Sk E I 1 18 & a8 iR it
e - PR R E A BT IR A
ATHELE  RAKEETMFKER
AR E B RO AR
s B AN B A A B A R SRl 1
BREBRHITENIFNEMAEE
A ° 2020 EHEI B ERA A BAE + 5
WA BFIRER T -
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mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

35.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of the Company’s shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Scheme 2020 must not
exceed 10% of the number of the Company’s
shares in issue as at the Adoption Date (which
were 1,007,106,799 shares) unless shareholders’
approval has been obtained, and which must
not exceed 30% of the total number of the
Company’s shares in issue from time to time (or
such other percentage as may be allowed under
the Listing Rules).

The maximum number of shares of the Company
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each eligible participant under
the Scheme 2020 or any other share option
schemes adopted by the Company (including
both exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company. Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company or any of their respective
associates, would result in the shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding)
to such person in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such grant: (a) representing
in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue;
and (b) having an aggregate value, based on
the closing price of the shares at the offer date
of each offer, in excess of HKD5 million; such
further grant of options must be approved by the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting

35.

DR B ERANR (&)

(a)

I3 FARERT & (42)

EITEARE 2020 F 51815 F &% L
WFTH M A e EITH AR A
BhsxmEB B @ THBRAKNAR
REMNBHERITRHEE (B
1,007,106,799 /%% 15 ) H110% -
HEE SR AL ERIBRIN - TR
BRT  FdRr&x=8E T EE8
BARNB TR E BITRMDEED
30% (sk_E MR B AT RE A SR A E A
B e

RER 1218 8 B3R - B4R %2020
FETEI R AR RER AR K (o] K b AR
MNEETEMEBREERREER
EREE (BREETE  BEHEK
MARITER EARE) BITHEmMBEITR
BFEITHROESE8E - TS
BANBEEITROBEMN1% o
F 48 5% LR A — SR PR G5
EARE R IR SRR R K& LU -

(RIDRAVNCIES -3 E 8% hvie 22 K
EFURSEEANTABREART
g BHERATIRBEZHER
HER(BREZA) T ZEA MM
NAECEBRE L BERNEE (2
BETE  EEHRFERTED
) BTERS BT RS TE?T
M - (a)RREEHITRNE
0.1%: M(b)ERSXAELHAEER
MW EERERASAS
BT AIARE - SRIEBEAR
NABREBRRAE LHLE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Any grant of options under the Scheme 2020 to
an independent non-executive director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company or any of their respective associates
(each as defined under the Listing Rules) must
be approved by the independent non-executive
directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who or whose associate is

the proposed grantee of the option).

The offer of a grant of share options may be
accepted within 21 days from the date of offer,
upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HKD1 in total by the grantee. The period within
which the options must be exercised will be
specified by the Company at the time of grant.
This period must expire no later than ten years
from the relevant date of grant. The board may
also provide restrictions on the exercise of
an option during the period an option may be
exercised.

The share options shall vest in four tranches on
the following vesting dates provided that the
vesting conditions applicable to such eligible
participant are satisfied:

° first 40% of the options are vested on the
one-year anniversary from the offer date;

° next 25% of the options are vested on the
two-year anniversary from the offer date;

° then 20% of the options are vested on the
three-year anniversary from the offer date;
and

° remaining 15% of the options are vested

on the four-year anniversary from the offer
date.

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

35. LRGAEMHNRE)

(a)

I3 FAREET & (4F)

RIZ20204F 51 & M AN R A& B
FHTEF  TBTBRABHTE
BRIWESBNEABEA (X
AMER R LA &L E AT
- AHRBMFNTES (TER
AEHEEBMBARRERERTE
MBI IENITES) #f -

FTERHRGOEBETBEZLA M
F21BA - BEABRAZINEHR1E
THREBAREFLAER - A
FITER AR BB AR TR LR
BE - ZHMEATEREEREL
HHifstm+E2EER -EFE
J5 AT pA HARE B T 17 9 HA RS R 9 R
R TTEHEIBR B o

Befn B AR A T ER B B B 0 Uit
ﬁ%*ﬁéiﬁk%#ﬁﬁAﬁﬂ

o BHHL40% B R 24 A HiiE
shm—RFERE

. RHL25% HiRE B 24 A HiE
HRmBERE

o HIXH20% BiE B B4 B A
HBEMm-RERE &

o BT 15% A 24 HEfR
u_l—/%llqﬁ g" = ©
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31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

35.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The subscription price in respect of each share
of the Company issued pursuant to the exercise
of options granted under the Scheme 2020 shall
be determined by the board and notified to an
eligible participant at the time of the grant of
the options and shall be at least the highest of
(i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation
sheets on the date of the board approving the
grant of option, which must be a business day
(“Date of Grant”); (ii) the average of the closing
price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the
Date of Grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s share.

There are no cash settlement alternatives.
The Group does not have a past practice of
cash settlement for these share options. The
Group accounts for the Scheme 2020 as an
equity-settled plan.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders
to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

35.

DR B ERANR (&)

(a)

I 3 FAREET &I (42)

FRIE 2020 FF 51 B K O AR 7T
EMmBETHNARBERENORE
B EHEFSET YRR HE
HRAAER2EE  MRABET
BIRUTERSE ()RBETES
e NAMER D BHEN A S (L
AREXEB) (RUEBAH)) EBX
P BB R R B WK
MmE (i) BERE BT R EE %
BEM e R RERMIINAR
AR EN TS K(ii)A
NEIRMEE -

BAANRSETEE - AEEB
A ERZFR D PRETREHE
HHED) - AEEHE2020F 51 &I1E
REDEEFTEIAR -

BOBEL IR TREAZFAERSE
HAEBRAE LRFHER -
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fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 35. LURBAREBHNSR(E)
(a) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (a) MRHPHARESTEI(E)
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the REAEHAR M ARITE 8 AR (0 BRRE Y
share options outstanding as at the end of the ITEERITERAT :
reporting period are as follows:
2023 2023 %
Exercise price
Number of options HKD per share Exercise period
THEE
HEHAE BRET THEH
3,120,000 1.51 7 April 2022 to 6 April 2031
2022F 4 A7HE2031F4 A6 H
5,512,500 1.88 28 June 2022 to 27 June 2031
20226 H28 HE 203146 H27H
8,632,500
2022 20224
Exercise price
Number of options HKD per share Exercise period
TEE
HEHE BRET 1T1EH
3,120,000 1.51 7 April 2022 to 6 April 2031
2022F 4 A7HE2031F4 A6 H
9,350,000 1.88 28 June 2022 to 27 June 2031
2022%F 6 H28 HE2031F6 H27H
12,470,000

The fair value of the share options granted
during the year ended 31 December 2021 was
RMB14,179,000, of which the Group recognised
a share option expense of RMB429,000 (2022:
RMB2,439,000) during the year ended 31
December 2023.

REBZE2021FE12831BILEE
BHORMDBEAABEBEAAR
#14,179,0007T © M AL B L
REE2023F12 A31 B ILFEHE
R D B R X AR % 429,0007T
(20224 : AR¥2,439,0007T) °
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mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

35.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options
granted during the year ended 31 December
2021 was estimated as at the date of grant using
a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were
granted. The following table lists the inputs to the
model used:

35.

DR B ERANR (&)

(a)

I3 FARERT & (42)

REZE2021F12A31BLFER
HH A EREENRDBE LR
EBEDIARZL BBRERAZBEENMG
5 WEFT RIR L ERRE A R FR R A
% o TRIRATEAEN A @A
1

7 April 2021

28 June 2021
2021F4H87H 202156 H28H

Dividend yield (%) AR 2R (%) 4.32 4.21
Expected volatility (%) TEHAR 18 (%) 61.62 61.57
Historical volatility (%) [ 2R 1R (%) 61.62 61.57
Risk-free interest rate (%) 2 R R K (%) 1.38 1.37
Expected life of options (year) TERTHARE B F H (4F) 10.00 10.00
Spot price (HKD per share) WRE (BRAET) 1.51 1.88
Exercise price (HKD per share) TEE (BB T) 1.51 1.88
The expected volatility reflects the assumption 8 HA S5 08 7 B FE SP SR 0@ AT B O Ak 2R

that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the
actual outcome. The spot price and the exercise
price are both the closing price of the Company’s

shares at the grant date.

Movements of the share options:

BEERRE  BEALIFFEBALR
MER - REMTEEMED /AN
RERMORE L BT E

B 15 B 2

2022
20224

At the beginning of the year REH] 12,470,000 14,220,000
Granted during the year FREH - =
Forfeited during the year FrE I (3,837,500) (1,750,000)
Expired during the year FREM = =
At the end of the year REFER 8,632,500 12,470,000
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Company
had 8,632,500 share options outstanding
under the Scheme 2020. The exercise in full
of the outstanding share options would, under
the present capital structure of the Company,
result in the issue of 8,632,500 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of RMB1,000 (2022: RMB1,000)
and share premium of RMB13,660,000 (2022:
RMB19,909,000) (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial
statements, the Company had 8,632,500 share
options outstanding under the Scheme 2020,
which represented approximately 0.86% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

Award Share Scheme

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share
Award Scheme (“the Scheme 2016") pursuant
to a resolution passed by the Directors on 15
April 2016, through which a total of 25,000,000
shares (“Awarded Shares”) at a par value of
USDO0.00001 each were issued to Acheson (the
“Trust”) on 11 May 2016, who will hold the
Awarded Shares for the benefit of the eligible
employees (“Selected Employees”) and facilitate
the purchase, holding and/or vesting of such
Awarded Shares as a trustee pursuant to the trust
deed (“Trust Deed”) signed by the Company.
The Trust was established pursuant to the Trust
Deed dated 2 September 2016 with retrospective
effect from 10 May 2016.

A management committee has been established
and authorised by the Directors to make all
determination and provide directions to the
Trustee in relation to the Scheme 2016 (the
‘Committee”). The Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme
is valid and effective for a period of ten years
from the date of adoption.

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

35. LRGAEMHNRE)

(a)

(b)

I3 FAREET & (4F)

RIREER - AR FHIE2020F 7
1B~ 458,632,500 M K IT1E
BIRR (D HARE o MR EITEZE
RITEMRMDEE - BIREARQ
RAIERERGERE  BEZENE
718,632,500 AR Rl EHEk - &
A REIMNE A AR ®1,0007T (2022
F: AR®1,000T) RRDEE
AR#13,660,0007T (20224 : A
R #19,909,0007T) (REF#1TH
) e

RABEREREBER » KRBT
2020F 518178 ~F8,632,50017 4
RATEHRG I - HERA QA
EHMEETIRGN40.86% ©

RERADTE

RARIREEER2016F4 158
BRAERRRNBERRAREEM
Wefn 22 BT & ([2016 FE 518 ) -
it - A ££25,000,000/% F % E &
0.00001 &R ([ R ERAD ])
M201645H 11 HE17FAcheson
([E5E)) HBUABERER (&
BRES ) WNEFHAERERMNIL
BEARRFEENETRE ([55F
RENDIEAZTAREEE - 58
%/ S EBHERERG - %5
TiREBEA2016F9 A2HIE
PE2016F5 A 10 H R EMAE5E
RS ©

EEZBe ([ZB8 ) 2EKIY
BEERER2016F5EI1EL —1)
RERAZFEAREREE - BRRQ
A3 & R BN ET B B SR B H
ERBtFEBERARMS -
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35.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Award Share Scheme (Continued)

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Selected Employees
are entitled to subscribe for the Awarded Shares
at the price of RMB0.85 per Awarded Share by
way of a loan provided by the Company. The
Awarded Shares shall vest in three tranches on
the following vesting dates provided that the
vesting conditions applicable to such Selected
Employee are satisfied:

(i) 50% on the date of listing of the
Company’s shares on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing” and “Listing Date”) (the “First
Vested Shares”), provided the Selected
Employees remain in service until the first
trading day following the first anniversary
of the Listing Date;

(ii) 25% on the first trading date following the
first anniversary of the Listing Date; and

(iii)  25% on the first trading date following the
second anniversary of the Listing Date.

Upon the date of Listing, the trustee will sell
the First Vested Shares under the instruction of
the Committee. The proceeds, after netting off
the loan borrowed by the respective Selected
Employees (“Net Proceeds”), 80% of which will
be paid to the Selected Employees. However,
if such Selected Employee terminates his
employment with the Group during the one-year
period after the Listing Date, the Net Proceeds
received should be repaid to the Company. The
remaining 20% of the Net Proceeds will be paid
provided that such Selected Employee continues
to serve the Company for one year after the
Listing Date. If the proceeds are less than the
amount of the loan borrowed, the Selected
Employee will still need to repay the loan to the
Company.

35.

DR B ERANR (&)

(b)

RER O 8 (E)

RIS KRBEEARRER
BRI AR 0.85 TTHI B R IAM
ARBEFRN T ARBEBRND -
HEROARNATNRERRY =4t
BB HEERERRNAREEE
B B R B 151 -

(i) 50% ) E2ED AR 10 I AR A B AR
NEBBMEXIMERA
AFEREMERB(LTIR
[EmA#]) FE ([EiHtEE
BRA])  AIREHRTR
MBI FTMHBE—E
FRE-—EAXZHANTEEH
5

(i)  25%MEEENR KB L HE
HE-—RAFRE—RR5H
BB X

(i)  25% KRB B L™ A
HE _AFRE-ERSA

= =2
55

RETHH  ZFEABERZESH
ERHEGHEBIRND - MEREEH
KBREBSENERR - /R
B ([FERIEFE]) M80% KT
REERE - A - HARBKEE
EBER EMAHRKR - FHRRLE
AEEWEFBARZ - AIE WA
SRIEFRERLTARA - AT
FIFENR T 20% KX TEE
ERES - HEEEKIEREANL
mHBR - FHRESERNRRE
B REE - WAASHREERD B
ABERTR  RIEREDSEAER
ARREEER -
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(b)
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2023F12H31H

35. LRGAEMHNRE)

201659H7H

Award Share Scheme (Continued) (b) HEBRMDETEI(E)
The expected vesting period for tranches (i) and EER OV PN ok b=
(ii) is one year after the Listing Date and the BHEI%% —&F > m(iii) X TEET SR
expected vesting period for tranche (iii) is two EHE A LT B RS -
years after the Listing Date.
On 7 September 2016, the Company granted R2016F9A7H » AAQARAIKT
23,170,000 Awarded Shares to the Selected 23,170,000 22 Eh A fn T A BE
Employees. The details of the Awarded Shares 8 - HE2016F12A31BILEE
granted for the year ended 31 December 2016 REREBROFENT
are as follows:
Number of Awarded Purchase price
Shares granted Grant date Expiry date (HKD)
BEE
RERBRONEE RZEBH & i B A (#7T)
23,170,000 7 September 2016 7 September 2026 0.85

202659 H7H

In accordance with the Trust deed entered into
between the Trust and the Company (“Trust
Deed”),
Trust. Therefore, the Trust is consolidated by

the Company has the control over the

the Group. Accordingly, the shares issued and
held by Acheson should be treated as treasury
shares and shown as separate amounts in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
In addition, finance costs and administration
expenses of the trust are recognised in profit or
loss of the Group.

BIBEFTRA R RFT KB TR
(MMEFERE]) ARRIEETER
ZHIE o Bt - FREBRAKBESE
ABR o At AchesonfTE1T &i%
B2 R0 EHERBEFRG I RER
EHE=SEHRTEFITEEE o It
Hh - ERER AR AR RITH A E
AEBMBEEFER -
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35.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Award Share Scheme (Continued)

The Group has determined the fair value of
the Awarded Shares based on the binominal
option-pricing model as of the grant date. The
valuation model requires the input of highly
subjective assumptions, including the entity
risk premium and the discount rate due to lack
of control, and changes in the subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value
estimate of the Awarded Shares.

35.

DR B ERANR (&)

(b)

RER O 8 (E)

AEBED N L BHRI —BEX |8
REBREABEZBBRNOALE
B ZbEEEATEFLSETH
REMEA - BIRERERRLE R
RZEHTER - BXERARR
)& BT 5 BE R AR () ) X S B R Y
BETERERTE °

7 September

2016
2016 9H7H

Weighted average grant date fair value BRmMEFEREBAREE
per share RMB1.94
AREA1.947T
Weighted average exercise price IEEFHITEE RMBO0.85
AR¥0.857T
Detailed forecast period EEFARERE 5 years
5%
Weighted average cost of capital In#EE 39 & AR AR 16.83%
Leveraged beta 1Eifbeta 1.04
Entity risk premium A e B b s B 0.5%
Discount rate due to lack of control R ol B 22 10%

The Company adopted the Supplementary
Scheme of the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme
(“Supplementary Scheme’) pursuant to a
resolution passed by the Directors on 28 August
2019, which authorises the chief executive
officer to complete the selection of grantees,
the allocation of shares and the signing of
agreements and other related work to grant the
shares withdrawn and had not been granted on 7
September 2016.

RNARIRIZEER2019F8 A28 H
BARRER KRB X RAEE
AT SR BT B 7 ar &l ([ 5
HE) BEFEITERABAEK
EARANEE - RO D EREIER
BB AR EAAEREIIE - LA
HR2016F9 A7HE MBI MAA
RERRG -
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 35. LURBAREBHNSR(E)
(b)  Award Share Scheme (Continued) (b) HEBRMDETEI(E)
Pursuant to the Supplementary Scheme, the RIBEHTTE CHRESGEE
Selected Employees are entitled to subscribe for EREREERD - ZERH AR
the Awarded Shares without a consideration. The THEBRHS ﬁﬁﬁt%% MEEE,
Awarded Shares shall vest in two tranches on the HAREHCHERENGERIE
following vesting dates provided that the vesting % -
conditions applicable to such Selected Employee
are satisfied:
(i) 60% on 30 June 2021, provided the (i) 60% 1 2021F6 A30H 5
Selected Employees remain in service until B ARELHERER
30 June 2022; 202246 A30 B A TS BE
B
(i) 40% on 30 June 2022. (i)  40% 7202296 A30H
E o
The expected vesting date for tranches (i) and (ii) F(HR(NIEWMIENFERRA
is 30 June 2022. 2022F6 A30H -
On 24 February 2021 and 31 March 2021, the R2021F2A24H % 202143 A
Company granted 3,100,000 and 1,040,000 318 + "2 FHFIEH 3,100,000
Awarded Shares to the Selected Employees, B& % 1,040,000 X BN AR 10 T 4 20
respectively. The details of the Awarded Shares RES - HE2023F12A31HI1E
granted for the year ended 31 December 2023 FEREOEBROFBAT :
are as follows:
Number of Awarded
Shares granted Grant date Expiry date Purchase price
RHEBRONEE g l=h [Eim B B BEE
3,100,000 24 February 2021 28 August 2029 -
2021F2 24 H 202948 A28 H
1,040,000 31 March 2021 28 August 2029 -
202143 A31H 20294F 8 A28 H
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35.

36.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 35. LURHAREBHNSR(E)
(b)  Award Share Scheme (Continued) (b) HEBRMETE(E)
The Group has determined the fair value of AEEBERRE BRI —EX |5
the Awarded Shares based on the binominal BREBRAETCRBRMHOAAE
option-pricing model as of the grant date, taking 1B - B at R H B P 6K BR 89 15
into account the terms and conditions upon which RRAEH o TRIIRAAERAZER
the options were granted. The following table lists K E 28 ABIE
the significant inputs to the model used:
24 February 31 March
2021 2021
20214 20214
2H24H 3H31H
Dividend yield (%) BB (%) 4.32 4.32
Expected volatility (%) TEHRR 1R (%) 61.92 61.68
Historical volatility (%) [ 2RI (%) 61.92 61.68
Risk-free interest rate (%) o2 3 B ) 5 (%) 1.10 1.30
Expected life of options (year) TEEHHARE B UF H () 10.00 10.00
Spot price (HKD per share) RE(FRET) 1.36 1.38
Movement of the Award Shares: BRI 1 ey &
2022
20224
At the beginning of the year REH] 6,752,100 7,537,000
Granted during the year FREH - =
Exercised during the year FATE - =
Forfeited during the year FREIL (621,900) (784,900)
At the end of the year RER 6,130,200 6,752,100
The Group did not recognised a shared-based RER - AEBEWESERQFED
payment expense of Award Shares (2022: B SEEN AR () 1 SR SR ED AR 19 89 LARR 15
RMB1,895,000) during the year in relation to the BEBMAZRAY (2022F : AR
Awarded Shares granted by the Company. 1,895,0007T) °
RESERVES 36. f#fE

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the

movements therein for the current and prior years are

presented in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity on page 256 of the financial statements.

AEBRALHAAEERBEFE LA
MEE - (e B R B 256 E M A R
BHENZS) -



37.

Annual Report 2023 F 1R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATION 37.

On 12 May 2023, the Group acquired a 51% interest in
Jiangsu Bogi at a total consideration of RMB12,441,000.
Jiangsu Boqi is engaged in the operation of distributed
photovoltaic power generation projects. The acquisition
was an important step of the Group to accelerate the
layout of the new energy business.

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

EBast

R2023F5 8120 - AEBIZRBREAR
#12,441,000 T I HIE T 51 %
o IHERREIMARREEEAN
BB ZWBAANEBEMRFLRER M
BREZHEKES °

Consideration transferred: FrEs (B -
RMB’000
AREFT
Cash R 11,260
Contingent consideration arrangement* AR E LT 1,500
Put-option** R Bk~ (319)
12,441
* Pursuant to the purchase agreement, the Group is * RIBBE a5 - A EBERE TUHEES

required to pay an additional amount of RMB 1,500,000
dependent on the amount of profit after tax of
Jiangsu Boqi during the 3-year period subsequent
to the acquisition. The fair value of such contingent
consideration amounted to RMB1,500,000 as at the
acquisition date and has been included in contingent
consideration on the consolidated statement of financial

position.

e Pursuant to the purchase agreement, the Group
has acquired a put-option and the fair value of
such put-option amounted to RMB319,000 as at the
acquisition date.

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling
interest in Jiangsu Bogi at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of Jiangsu Bogi’'s identifiable net
assets.

B fE] 9T 7% 18 27 B BR 12 T 2 47 -

F 1885 £ AR M 1,500,0007T ° R
WiERE - ZEARE LA EEZA
R ¥1,5600,0007T * WEGTALE T
MERBAEACBEA A

* WRIEFEE F A FEERBELTH
# - MRS RERMIE AN B
ERARE319,0007T -

AEECERRIFERER TG AR
AR EEMER DL - R ER L
B R IF R AR
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37. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 37. EXKEH(E)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities THBFRKERBNIENEERAR
of Jiangsu Bogqi as at the date of acquisition were as WAREBERAT :
follows:
Fair value
recognized on
acquisition
WS R RE R
AREHE
RMB’000
ARBTT
(Unaudited)
(REEEZ)
Property, plant and equipment M - WERRE 76,246
Other intangible assets HftpfmpEE 2,700
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEFEY 94
Debt instruments at fair value through other ERAREEFAEMEERED
comprehensive income BHITAE 300
Trade receivables g 5 e IE 2,068
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables TERIR - BE REMERGRIE 8,495
Total Assets BERTE 89,903
Trade payables and other payables B 5 (S 3RIE R E A FE T3 65,344
Deferred tax liabilities BERIARE 320
Total Liabilities BERRE 65,664
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BRARBEYIENIHENEEERTE 24,239
Less: Non-controlling interests Ve 2 g (11,877)
Add: Goodwill arising on acquisition o W E AR EE 79

Purchase consideration at fair value BAREEYEMNEENRE 12,441
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BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

The fair values of the trade receivables and other
receivables as at the date of acquisition amounted to
RMB2,068,000 and RMB15,000, respectively. The gross
contractual amounts of trade receivables and other
receivables were RMB2,068,000 and RMB15,000.

The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB379,000
for this acquisition. These transaction costs have been
expensed and are included in other expenses in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

As part of the purchase agreement, contingent
consideration is payable, which is dependent on the
amount of profit before tax of Jiangsu Bogi during
the 3-year period. The initial amount recognised
was RMB1,500,000 which was determined using the
discounted cash flow model and is within Level 3 fair
value measurement. The consideration is due for final
measurement and payment to the former shareholders
payable within the following 3 years. The management
has reassessed the fair value of the contingent
consideration as at 31 December 2023 and the amount
was RMB958,000. At the date of approval of these
financial statements, no further significant changes to
the consideration are expected.

Significant unobservable valuation inputs for the fair
value measurement of the contingent consideration are
as follows:

Projected net profit of Jiangsu Bogi in 2024
T #1825 2024 1) TROR & A )F 58

Projected net profit of Jiangsu Bogi in 2025
T #1825 2025 £F 1) T8ORI & F )5 58

Discount rate
A IR &

37.

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

EBast (&)

B 5 EWGRIE & H A EWGRE R W A
B AREBES R AARE2068,0007T
RARM15,000T - B EKFIERH
HEKRFENBRENCEINABARE
2,068,000 & A K #15,0007T °

AEBERHBRBEEESIIRAARE
379,0007T ° ZER S AKLE L HIW AT
AGEEBRRNEMEIA -

ERBEBRZEN -9  ERTWER
SF MM AT &IE & BV BR T A& A & 58 2K
THEARE - TERVNBESEAAR
#1,500,0007T © JHEAFRBRRER
WEBIRAABEFENEE - ZRE
ERT&IFANERKFTENL A FATAR
R BHEBDR2023F 12 A31 BEFHT
HHARENAAEBE  MEEAARE
958,0007T ° RAM &I ERE - 78
ARETEEE—SEH -

ZAREBNRABEFENEATAERR
WA -

RMB6,427,000
AR ¥6,427,0007C

RMB5,793,000
AR¥E5,793,0007T

10%

409



410

China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. FEIEFERRF (ZKR) R A F

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

37.

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 37. XEBE6t(E)
A significant increase/(decrease) in the net profit of TLERIE A M s AR BRI I, ORd) -
Jiangsu Bogi would result in a significant increase/ EEYFIARBEENRAABEKNE L
(decrease) in the fair value of the contingent (T Ek) - AR ERBEA (TBE) -
consideration liability. A significant increase/(decrease) SEHRIAREBEEENAABEKRNB T
in the discount rate would result in a significant B(EF) o
decrease/(increase) in the fair value of the contingent
consideration liability.
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the ERBEMRBARNBSRESTET -
acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows:
RMB’000
ARBET T
Cash consideration RENRE (11,260)
Cash and bank balances acquired WIS RIR & RIRTTEE R 94
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents FARBESFEARSREN
included in cash flows from ReERRESFEBYRLFE
investing activities (11,166)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included AL EHFEARSREN
in cash flows from operating activities W BB 32 5 B AR (379)
(11,545)

Since the acquisition, Jiangsu Bogi contributed
RMB5,334,000 to the Group’'s revenue and
RMB1,294,000 to the consolidated profit for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of
the year, the revenue from continuing operations of the
Group and the profit of the Group for the year would
have been RMB2,141,127,000 and RMB238,986,000,
respectively.

B U LA - IEIE RN E = 2023F 12
AMBLEFEHAEENRATRMARE
5,334,0007T * REGEFEERMARK
1,294,0007C °

BEREHTIRNFENELE - AZRBEAEER
BISEEB IR KA S B F R F BHE
DRIBARE2 141,127,000 R AR
238,986,0007T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 38. #4LeBE&REBRMFE
OF CASH FLOWS
(a)  Major non-cash transactions (@) EEHFRERS
During the year, the Group had non-cash RER  AEBRPLENHEER
additions to right-of-use assets and lease B MuaGMERERERSR
liabilities of RMB27,042,000 (2022: nil) and BEMFRSEMD B AARE
RMB27,042,000 (2022: nil), respectively, in 27,042,0007T (20224 : F) kA
respect of lease arrangements for office. R#27,042,0007T (20224 : &) o
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) REZBHELEMNEESD
activities
Lease
Borrowings liabilities
B HEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
At 1 January 2022 R2022F1H1H 165,965 38,284
Changes from financing cash flows RIEIR&HEE S (3,436) (1,722)
Interest expenses MERX 11,608 2,059
At 31 December 2022 2022412 A31H 174,137 38,621
New lease Mg - 27,042
The influence of non-cash FEHRERHHF L
transaction” 25,885
Changes from financing cash flows RIEREREEE) 2,918 =
Interest expenses MERX 13,338 707
Termination of leases LIFfRE = (39,102)
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12 8310 216,278 27,268

In 2023, the Group signed a supply chain
financial services cooperation agreement
with the China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd.
(“Minsheng Bank"), according to which the
Group’s supplier can transfer its accounts
receivable to Minsheng Bank within the Group'’s
credit limit of RMB50 Million granted by
Minsheng Bank. The Group would subsequently
repay the relevant amounts and interest to
Minsheng Bank. RMB25,885,000 was paid
directly by the Minsheng Bank to the Group’s
supplier in 2023 and the Group recognize a
borrowing of RMB25,885,000 correspondingly.

* R2023F  AEFEHRPER
ERITROERAR ([RER
T EBHERSRRBE S E
e - Bt - NREERMHER
AERAEEERERITETH
ARBSOBE TN EERE
WG H AR R T R AR
1T o REEFER KRR ERT
BEEESHERFE - 12023
F - RESITEERAEBM
Xt AR% 25,885,000
T MAKEEEERERA
FR#25,885,0007T °

411



412

China Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. FEIEFERRF (ZKR) R A F

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

38.

39.

40.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 38.

OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the
statement of cash flows is as follows:

RERERBRMWEE(E)

(c) WHEMNRERHARE

SFARERERANEERSR
BRI

2023 2022

2023 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTT

Within operating activities R EEEHN (11,310) (2,836)

Within financing activities FRVEEE) A = (1,722)

Total et (11,310) (4,558)
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 39. HARAE

As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, Jinggangshan Bogqi, a
subsidiary of the Group, as the lessee, entered into a
finance lease arrangement with CITIC Financial Leasing
Co., Ltd. (“CITIC Leasing”). Beijing Bogi pledged all its
equity interests in Jinggangshan Bogi and the service
fee receivables under the Jinggangshan Bogi service
concession agreement to CITIC Leasing to guarantee
its liabilities under the Jinggangshan Bogqgi Finance
Lease Agreement; and the details are included in note
31 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023, Handan Bogqi, a subsidiary of
the Group, as the lessee, entered into a finance lease
arrangement with Jiangsu Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.
(“Jiangsu Leasing”).
equity interests in Handan Bogi and the service fee

Beijing Boqgi pledged its 70%

receivables under Handan Boqi service concession
agreement to Jiangsu Leasing to guarantee its liabilities
under the Handan Bogi Finance Lease Agreement;
and the details are included in note 31 to the financial
statements.

40.

A2023F12A31 8 - AEFE W EE(AE
pNEE Y=L

AEEA

R2023%F12A31 0 » KREEKH B R A
FHEILIEST EREBEA)  BhEemM
EBRAR([HFEREDTURERER
o AREFREFENAMLUETNZ
R R HEILIE T RS T CEHER
THEKERGEERERTHEHESE - UE
RUEHEBEBETITHEML - MEAFE
BRI B IRERMIEES -

R2023F12A31H » XEERNKEBE A A
fsiEas (FAEMAAN)  BIGemBE
ERAR(IHBEEDFIYREHRER
o Ik REHFKERANBEETN70%
[ i 2 HO BB 19 Ay AR A5 e e i 1R s T T A JE
VRS ERER T IIHAE - LAUERHTE
BEEREAHERRE NNEEL  MBEMF
BN BRI -
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS (Continued) 40. EEERA(E)
As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s investment MN2023F 124310 "&EFBEBEBAAR
properties amounting to RMB8,095,000 were pledged #8,095,000 TR EMECERT - 1EA
for issuance of the borrowings from banks, and IRITE N B RAER - B IBER VB R
the details are included in note 31 to the financial FMIFE3T ©
statements.
As at 31 December 2023, the bank deposits amounting R2023F12A31H " BHARK
to RMB84,328,000 were pledged for issuance of bills 84,328,000 LW IRITIFRE KA - 1EA
to the Group’s suppliers, letters of credit and letters of MASEHERELRE  AHEARFERE
guarantee relating to the EPC contracts and the O&M FIHMEPCE A RER S HHERMKRER
contracts signed with the customers; and the details are EUFTYEER - BB N B WMERN T
included in note 27 to the financial statements. 27
As at 31 December 2023, Qinghai Boqi, a subsidiary of R2023F 12 A31H » KEBEKKEAR]
the Group, as the borrower, entered into a loan contract SEERE (ERERAN) BEFRITRNE
with Haixi Branch of Qinghai Bank Co., LTD. (“Bank RAREADT([FBRITDIIVERE
of Qinghai”). Qinghai Bogi mortgaged its leasehold o SEBFBERELHEAEDER
lands and owned properties to the Bank of Qinghai to BTYFEERIT EATEETERANE
guarantee the borrowing under the loan contract of TEREER -
Qinghai Bogqi.
COMMITMENTS 4. &
The Group had the following contractual commitments REBRREAREATELAE :
at the end of the reporting period:
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFIT
Contracted, but not provided for: EHENEESZT T
Property, plant and machinery WE - BB ks 106,340 19,656
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42.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 42. BEELIXRFRE&ER

BALANCES
(a) Relationship (a) B3R
Relationship with

Name of the companies the Group
YNSIER BEAREEHER
Yangxi Haibin Electric Power Development Co., Ltd. (“Yangxi Electric”) Note (i)
GrEEENERBRAR(BEED]) BEE ()
Chongging Chuanwei Petrochemical Engineering Company Limited

(“Chongging Chuanwei”) Note (i)
FRALCEE)IEEIHERAR([EE)I#]) e ()
Sinopec Shanghai Petrochemical Company Limited (“Sinopec Shanghai”) Note (i)
FRA LSRR IROBERAR ([RAELLE]) HfEE (i)
Sinopec Ningbo Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Sinopec Ningbo”) Note (i)
FRAERIREBRAR ([FARLER] BTEE ()
Sinopec Fifth Construction Co., Ltd. (“Sinopec Fifth Construction”) Note (i)
PREAOCEREZRBRAR([PARICERER]) HIEE (i)
China Bogi Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd.

(“Boqi Environmental Engineering”) Note (i)
PEEFREIEZEGRAR([BERRIE]) HIEE (i)
Sinopec Group Northwest Petroleum Branch (“Sinopec Northwest”) Note (i)
FEAHREIROERARAEILHES AE (FAEAIL) HfEE (i)
Beijing Bogi Environmental Technology Co., Ltd

(“Beijing Boqi Environmental”) Note (i)
IREFRABSRERAR ([LEREHFERRE]) B ()
Best Environmental Solutions Technology Co. Ltd.

(“Best Environmental Solutions”) Note (i)
Best Environmental Solutions Technology Co. Ltd.

([ Best Environmental Solutions |) okz30),
Richinfo Technology Co., Ltd. (“Richinfo”) Note (ii)
FAREROAERAR ([EHA]) Bz (i)
Jijiantou Shouyang Thermal Power Company Limited (“Shouyang Power”) Note (ii)
HERSHREAREEAR ([SERE]) Bz (i)
Han Chuan Long Yuan Note (iii)
E) IR Bt a2 (i)
Beijing Jiankun Nenghuan Technology Co., Ltd. (“dJiankun Nenghuan”) Note (iv)
IR HEERB R ER AR ([RHMEER]) Bt (iv)
Hainan Boyuan Zhongying Enterprise Management Partnership

(Limited Partnership) (“Boyuan Zhongying") Note (iv)
BREERTBRCEEESECE (AREE) ([RRA]) B (iv)
Wuxi Huadong Electric Power Equipment Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi Huadong") Note (v)

BEHMERENRBARAR (EEER])

Hiaz(v)



42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 42.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

BALANCES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Relationship (Continued)

Notes:

(i) A company controlled by a shareholder of

the Company who has the power to exercise

significant influence over the Company.

(ii) The Chief Executive Officer of the Company,

Mr. Zeng, has the power to exercise significant

influence over this company.

(ifi) An associate of the Group.

(iv) A company controlled by a key management

personnel of the company.

(v) A minority shareholder of the Group who has

great influence on the Group's subsidiary.

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

BELRS K& (E)
(a) BRGE)
Hrat -

(i) B AEERATREEXZE D
BRI AR ATIE#I B9 22 7] @

(ii) ARRAJTIKAEFH B XL BREE

EZANFTERERZET]

(i) ARFREE A ©

(iv)  HEREEEEEASEHA

AT

(v) HEEHWBERAFEEAZE
NE) KB —E L BRE

Amounts due from related parties (b) EREELRER

2023 2022

20234 20224

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

i3 AR¥T T ARBT T

Yangxi Electric SN (i) 325,019 264,632

Shouyang Power ) 82,751 76,683

Chongging Chuanwei EE)#% 5,937 24,752

Boyuan Zhongying BIRR& 1,461 1,447

Sinopec Northwest FA{EFLL 279 714

Bogi Environmental BHRRIRE

Engineering 60 -
Best Environmental Solutions Best Environmental

Solutions 10 9

Sinopec Ningbo A EEE R = 2,397

Han Chuan Long Yuan EIBER - 36

Total it 415,517 370,670
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B R R M ()

31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 42. BEAXEREH(EZ)
BALANCES (Continued)

(b)  Amounts due from related parties (Continued) (b) EWRERELREGE)

2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTT

Analysed for reporting purposes as:  #2FHABIEL T O

Current assets RENEE 334,620 232,545
Non-current assets ERBEE 80,897 138,125
Total wEt 415,517 370,670
Trade balances B R R 271,466 230,097
Non-trade balances IEE SR 144,051 140,573
Total 5 415,517 370,670
(i) Included in this amount is a non-trade (i) WS BT S BRI EY
nature receivable of RMB141,079,000 (2022: FEARK141,079,0005T (2022
AU UL, F : ARK138,125,0007) ©
On 28 August 2017, the Group entered into a R2017F8H28H @ X&EH
revised management service agreement with BIETTE BN F R
Guangdong Huaxia Electric Development Co., EHERERAFIREFE
Ltd., the parent of Yangxi Electric, and Yangxi U ARE AT SRS W
Electric to extend the O&M service term from 1 B REEIR B 2017F 1 A1
January 2017 to 31 December 2017 to a term HZ20174# 1231 HEEEE
from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2025 201741 H1HFEL20254 12
and require a deposit of RMB139,690,000, H31ARESL 1156 A B I
which was paid by the Group on 31 December 139,690.0007T - B 2D &
2017. The deposit carries interest at long- KEFR2017E12531 A%
term borrowing rates of the Group, which is ] o ZiEe 1o & F £ 12
unsecured and repayable at the end of the O&M R EEE AR B
service term. BRI 1 o
In 2023, the Group entered an equipment R2023%F » AEBEGFE T
maintenance project for 1#-6# unites of Yangxi AT 1-29 RIBHIR 1B
Power Plant with Yangxi Electric and a deposit #ERE  MAKEER2023
of RMB1,775,089 was paid by the Group on 10 FEA10AX [ EE AR
August 2023. The maintenance service term is 1,775,089 * #EIRFHIR 7
from 1 June 2023 to 31 July 2027, 2023%F6 /31022027731

H o



42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 42.

Annual Report 2023 F#§

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fRE ISR R MR ()

BALANCES (Continued)

(b)

Amounts due from related parties (Continued)

The balances other than the deposit paid to
Yangxi Electric mention above are all unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

The Group generally grants a credit period of
90 days to its related parties. An aging analysis
of the amounts due from related parties-trade
portion based on the invoice date, is as follows:

RELXS RER(E)

(b)

31 December 2023

202312 H31H

FEuR BB TS RO (&)

bt Eer (RN THEE DMK
BN REER 2R RARE

SKEF(EIR o

REE —RAHBETT & TI0KH
EEH - BREELFENE S

DIREE AR

AT

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTIT

1 to 90 days 1E90K 156,318 124,985
91 to 180 days 91E180K 13,551 80,109
181 to 365 days 181E 365K 83,703 11,936
1to 2 years 1224 17,894 13,067
2 to 3 years 2FE3F - -
Over 3 years 3FE - -
Total* HBET 271,466 230,097

* As at 31 December 2023, the difference
between the balance and current assets
was mainly caused by the non-trade nature
receivable of RMB66,519,000 which would
be refund in 2024.

* R2023F 1231 H « #ZHET
BEECHNEZTFZHR
HEZIEE R ENRTBAR K
66,519,0007T ( A R2024 F /&
ARE]) MEE °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(b)

Amounts due from related parties (Continued)

Movement in both lifetime ECL and 12-month ECL
that has been recognised for amounts due from
related parties for the year ended 31 December
2023 is as follows:

42.

RELXRS RER(E)

(b)

PR BRE S IR (&)

B E2023F12H31BLEEE ' B

R R E 5 SR IE 2 BiTEHA(E
EEERI2EAEREESENE
T -

RMB’000

ARBT T

At 1 January 2022 202241 H1H 8,496
Impairment of amounts due from JE U B8 58 75 SRIERUE

related parties 926

At 31 December 2022 and 2022912 A31H &

at 1 January 2023 2023%F1A1H 9,422
Impairment of amounts due from FE W B8 3 7 IR E

related parties 476

At 31 December 2023 MA2023F12831H 9,898

For non-trade balance, an impairment analysis is
performed at each reporting date by considering
expected credit losses, which are estimated by
applying a loss rate approach with reference to
the historical loss record of the Group. The loss
rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions,
as appropriate. The loss rate applied as at 31
December 2023 was 3.89% (2022: 4.80%).

For trade balance, an impairment analysis
is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns. The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at
the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

MBS EHMT - REEREA
HYERERBEEBEBNET
WEDN - MBEHEEBEER
SEAEBBEBRILENER
KR EEMET c BEXDEHE -
A S B 38 e A O, B2 389 SR R AR AR
B FEOR (@A) - R20235F 12 A
31HEAREIBRA3.89% (2022
& :4.80%) °

RESHEHRME > RNERE AR
RBEEEETREIN - UtE
BEHEEER - BEXDERAR
BUBBRRANZEEF D EE 5
MEHI A BETE - Lt ERREEE
MEER  B¥RELRN#RE B H
ABMAEBESMN - BERMRAR
RERLBERAIRRHEIE KA EE
£t o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(b)

Amounts due from related parties (Continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit
risk exposure on the Group’s amount due from

related parties — trade portion using a provision

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

42. BEARZ N (E)

(b)

FE Uk BB 5 RO ()
TREIIEABEREFEAREE
FENRRET ENE SO MEER
R E) B Y

matrix:
As at 31 December 2023 Ageing
R2023F12531H Riv
Less than
1 year Total
i k3 @t
Expected credit loss rate BHIEEEER 1.12% 6.25% - - -
Gross carrying amount  A8RE(E
(RMB'000) (AREF) 256,450 19,087 - - 275,537
Expected credit losses ~ BHIfEEEE
(RMB'000) (AR®EFT) 2,878 1,193 - - 4,071
As at 31 December 2022 Ageing
R2022F125317 fRix
Less than 1to 2 to Over
1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
PR1E 1826 2FE3F SFENRE et
Expected credit loss rate EHIEEEER 0.78% 4.43% = = =
Gross carrying amount  #BREE
(RMB'000) (AREF) 218,731 13,672 - - 232,403
Expected credit losses ~ BHIEEEE
(RMB'000) (AR&TT) 1,701 605 = = 2,306
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 42. BEAXER&EH(Z)
BALANCES (Continued)
(c) Amounts due to related parties (c) ERBEEARIE
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AR¥ET T
Wuxi Huadong mIER 37,051 =
Sinopec Fifth Construction PALERER 6,512 6,848
Bogi Environmental Engineering BHRERIRE 176 176
Richinfo FE - 225
Total HEt 43,739 7,249
The credit period granted by the related parties BEFRTHEERNFI0E90

ranges from 30 to 90 days. An aging analysis of

R BNEETFR(BHHEE) W

amounts due to related parties — trade nature is BREDITIAT
as follows:

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
1 to 90 days 1E290K 3,585 225
91 to 180 days 91 =180k 367 -
181 to 365 days 181E 365K 35,439 299
11to 2 years 15824 571 6,001
2 to 3 years 2E3F 3,725 548
over 3 years 3EPE 52 176
Total st 43,739 7,249




Annual Report 2023 F 3§ 421

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 42. BEAXREREH(EZ)

BALANCES (Continued)

(d) Prepayments for the acquisition of facilities (d)

Yangxi Electric

BT

WIBRE R TEA TR B
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREFT
bl 87,155 =

On 27 October 2023, the Group entered No. 1-2
Yangxi Facilities Asset Transfer of Desulfurization
and Denitrification Projects Agreement
(“Agreement”) with Guangdong Huaxia Electric
Development Co., Ltd. (“Guangdong Huaxia
Electric’) and Yangxi Electric, which has
become effective on 29 December 2023 since
the approval by the independent shareholders
of the Company at the extraordinary general
meeting. According to the Agreement, Beijing
Bogi shall acquire from Yangxi Electric No.
1-2 Yangxi Facilities (except for land) with a
consideration of RMB154.26 million (excluding
tax, being RMB174.31 million with tax included).
On 12 December 2023, Beijing Bogi paid
RMB87,155,000 to Yangxi Electric and this
prepayment are included in “Other non-current
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

N2023F10A27H - NEFEE
REFEHNERAR AT ([ERE
BEEH|) RBAENFILA1-25:5
R EEE AEERHS
(I=ZW=&]) - W2023F12 H29
HBEARRRE Y RRERRFRAR
e ERERER - BIBEZHE - 4t
RERTEMABAEE N KRE1-2555
AR (T HBRAN) - REAARE
15426 BB T (TEM - EMAA
AR®17431B8T) ° 20234
128128 - ERBFEREAE
HE A AR#87,155,0007 © Mtk
EEMNFECFALGEHHEAR LR
W[ EtIERBEE | -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 42. BEAXRZR&EH(Z)
BALANCES (Continued)
(e) Related party transactions (e) BEARS
2023 2022
2023 % 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
izt AR®T T AREFT
Yangxi Electric [SPaE N (i)
— O&M service — BHERRTE 237,078 178,143
— Water and electricity, — (578 E S YER A
labour, spare parts and KE BT 15
miscellaneous items charged HREEER
by Yangxi Electric 71,940 60,192
— Interest income — FEHBA 5,280 5,406
Shouyang Power SHERE (ii)
— EPC service — EPCHRT% 69,684 93,546
Chongging Chuanwei EE) 4 (iii)
— EPC service — EPCHARTE 7,618 5,947
Wuxi Huadong EHER (iv)
- Purchase of equipment —BEXRE 7,444 =
Sinopec Fifth Construction PR ERER (v)
— Purchase of construction — BBEELRG
service 2,664 200
Sinopec Northwest oAbl (vi)
— Water treatment service — KR IR AR TS 1,094 837
Jiankun Nenghuan fiztharIr
- Purchase of consulting —BEBHARE
service - (4,025)
Richinfo e
- Purchase of intangible assets — EE&EEEE - 345
— Purchase of service —BER® - 255

Notes:

(i) In December 2016 and January 2022 and
November 2023, the Group entered into several
management service agreements, pursuant
to which the Group provided O&M service to
Yangxi Electric, and RMB237,078,000 was
recognised as revenue during the year ended
31 December 2023 (2022: RMB178,143,000).
The Group also purchases water and electricity,
labour, space parts and miscellaneous items
from Yangxi Electric to support the O&M
service. During the year ended 31 December
2023, the Group purchased RMB71,940,000
(2022: RMB60,192,000) of water and electricity,
labour, space parts and miscellaneous items
from Yangxi Electric.

(1)

R2016F 124 ~ 2022F 1 A K
2023F 114 + XEBT 217
EERE G FM - AEE
G E R ERRE A’
FEFE2023F 12531 H I F/E
RN BARH237,078,000
JT (20224 178,143,000
L)  AEEIEBGHETE
BEKE BT  HHERBEE
BHEH  UTHERREE - #
F2023F12H31HIFFE »
FEFBEGEHENEE/AE
BT - HHERMEIFEEAARE
71,940,000 (2022F : AR
#60,192,0007T) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(e) Related party transactions (Continued)

(1)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

In December 2015, the Group entered into an
EPC service contract with Shouyang Power for
a total contract amount of RMB287,560,000,
of which RMB69,684,000 was recognised as
revenue during the year ended 31 December
2023 (2022: RMB93,546,000).

In September 2018, the Group entered into an
EPC service contract with Chongqing Chuanwei
for a total contract amount of RMB205,880,000,
of which RMB5,947,000 was recognised as
revenue during the year ended 31 December
2022,

The Group acquired a 51% interest in
Jiangsu Boqi on 12 May 2023, since when
Wuxi Huadong has become a related party
of the Group. In 2023, the Group purchased
equipment from Wuxi Huadong with a total
contract amount of RMB7,444,000 (2022: nil).

During the year 2023, the Group received
construction service from Sinopec Fifth
Construction for certain EPC contract of
RMB2,664,000 (2022: RMB200,000).

In 2021, the Group entered into a water
treatment service contract with Sinopec
Northeast, the service fee is calculated by
actual water treatment volume multiplied by
the unit price, of which RMB1,094,000 was
recognised as revenue during the year ended
31 December 2023 (2022: 837,000).

(f) Compensation of key management personnel

Key management compensation is detailed in

note 9 to the financial statements.

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

42. BEHIRFRESR(EZ)

(e)

()

BELRS (&)

(1)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

R20165F 12/ + A EFHHEZG
BRELIIVEPCIRBAX - 85
L EEABARK287,5660,000
gL P EFE2023F 124
31HIFFEERUANARK
69,684,0007T (2022%F - AR
#93,546,0005T) °

KR2018F9A » XEBHEEF
JIN#ETVEPCIRFE S 4T + A
LB ABARK205,880,000
T BEPEE2022F 124
31 H I FEEZKAARE
5,947,0007T) °

A EFR2023F5 5 12 A4
JTERIEZTH951%RIE + B I 5
HERL PR EEL BT E T -
R2023F - AEF I EHER
BERE BENZHERBAR
167,444,0007T (20224 : fE) °

RE2023FE - XEFGE T
EPCEHWEFAILERRER
IERERIRE  ©HEAARK
2,664,000 (2022F : ARK
200,000T) °

R20214%F  FAEFHEF AR
WETVKEEER)  REEF
TH 1R 1% BB i P2 2 T LA B (7
B E  HFEF2023F12
H31H I FEBEFRAARE
1,094,0007T (20224 : A R#
837,000T) °

FTEEE ASEHM

TEEEABHFWNFBENTBHR
FHIFE9 ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

43.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

2023

Financial assets

Financial

assets at fair
value through
profit or loss

43. REHEINEMIA
RBEHR SEeBRTAEMNEKREAEY

T

2023 F
THEE

Financial assets at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

BRREREA BAREET AR
BRfSRMEE PERENEREE
Designated
as such Financial
upon initial Debt Equity assets
recognition  investments  investments  amortised cost Total
RApRAR SREE
EeALmER BHRE RERE BHRR h)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR  ARETR  AR¥Txn ARETT AEETTR
Financial assets at fair value BRAEBETA
through profit or loss BENEREE 3,373 - - - 3,373
Equity investment at fair value BARBEALL
through other comprehensive FENERRERE
income (note 20) (Hi#20) - - 5,173 - 5,173
Debt investments at fair value BAREEG AL
through other FENERERRE
comprehensive income - 238,689 - - 238,689
Trade receivables E5RIGR - - - 1,181,509 1,181,509
Receivable under service hsETEE
concession arrangement ZH T RENE - - - 505,824 505,824
Amounts due from related parties [ElEE TR - - - 415,517 415,517
Financial assets included in STABME - BER
prepayments, deposits and et
other receivables CREE - - - 141,093 141,093
Long-term receivable REENGR - - - 35,752 35,752
Pledged time deposits and EERERERR
bank balances itk - - - 84,328 84,328
Cash and cash equivalents ReRELEED - - - 348,558 348,558
Total @it 3,373 238,689 5173 2,712,581 2,959,816
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MR RR M (8D

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43. ZRERESMNERMIA(E)

(Continued)
2023 (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Annual Report 2023 F#§

2023 F (&)
THEE

Financial
liabilities at fair Financial
value through liabilities at
profit or loss  amortised cost Total
BRAREETA REHMA
BRENSRMAE TENESREE #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AR®TR ARETR
Trade and bills payables EHENFIEK
ARES - 1,117,380 1,117,380
Financial liabilities included in other FHAEM BRI
payables, deposits received and Bz e RIER
accrued expenses AYMemasE - 184,347 184,347
Interest-bearing bank and other FHERITRAMMER
borrowings - 216,278 216,278
Amounts due to related parties eI REE A 2B = 43,739 43,739
Contingent consideration FARE 958 - 958
Total o 958 1,561,744 1,562,702
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43. RZERS-sWERMIA(E)

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of REEHR BRSRITANKEED
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting N (&)

period are as follows: (Continued)

2022 20224

Financial assets PHEE

Financial
assets at fair
value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at
fair value through other
comprehensive income

BRAABERTA BRAREBES AL
BREMEREE PENENEREE
Designated
as such Financial
upon initial Debt Equity assets
recognition investments investments  amortised cost Total
Nl PREE
BERLIER EBRE R E EERA &5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARBTR
Financial assets at fair value R AREETA
through profit or loss BERReREE 24,661 - - - 24,661
Equity investment at fair value  RALEBEFAEM
through other PEMGNRERE
comprehensive income - - 5,166 - 5,166
Debt investments at fair value &AL BE AL
through other 2ENENERRE
comprehensive income - 287,538 - 287,538
Trade receivables BHRMTE - - - 872,121 872,121
Receivable under service g e
concession arrangement ZH TR EW R = = = 541,767 541,767
Amounts due from related el @A TR
parties - - - 370,670 370,670
Financial assets included in ~ stABRFE - KR
prepayments, deposits and ~ E A ENFUAR
other receivables PREE - - - 114,951 114,951
Long-term receivable REEWE - - = 49,254 49,254
Pledged time deposits and ~ BHEATHEHR
bank balances RITHE - - - 98,266 98,266
Cash and cash equivalents ~ BERELEEY - - - 402,488 402,488
Total st 24,661 287,538 5,166 2,449 517 2,766,882
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

43. BREREINERMIA(E)

(Continued)
2022 (Continued) 20224 (&)
Financial liabilities EHEE
Financial
liabilities at fair Financial
value through liabilities at
profit or loss amortised cost Total
BAABERA RE AR
BENERERE HENSRAR Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETF T ARETF T
Trade and bills payables BHRENTIER
R R - 1,134,240 1,134,240
Financial liabilities included in other ST AEM BRI
payables, deposits received and BlES REst
accrued expenses RATMSREE - 154,701 154,701
Interest-bearing bank and other FERITREMER
borrowings - 174,137 174137
Lease liabilities MERE - 38,621 38,621
Amounts due to related parties JE & 7 3R - 7,249 7,249
Total @t - 1,508,948 1,508,948
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

44.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s

financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are

as follows:

44,

Carrying amounts
REE

2023
2023
RMB’000
AR®TR

AEBNSRHT A (HREEESEE AR
ERENERM T AR ZERAERAR
BEMT :

Fair values
DRERE

2022 2023 2022
2022 2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARET T ARETT

Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value RRABEFA

through profit or loss BRemEE 3,373 24,661 3,373 24,661
Equity investments designated at fair 1§ AR ALEE

value through other SAHMZEKREN

comprehensive income (note 20) IR E (Witz0) 5,173 5,166 5,173 5,166
Debt investments at BRAAEBHEFA

fair value through other Hitr2EKEm

comprehensive income EBERE 238,689 287,538 238,689 287,538
Amounts due from related FE Uk B3 77 50E —

parties - non-current RN 80,897 138,125 81,012 137,148
Receivable under service concession R CEZTHTH

arrangement — non-current FEYIE — JEED A 457,517 492,005 481,921 544,250
Long-term receivable REENGE 35,752 49,254 37,920 51,205
Total Bat 821,401 996,749 848,088 1,049,968
Financial liabilities tRER
Interest-bearing bank and TERITREMBER

other borrowings - non-current — 3EHER 97,333 82,029 95,936 81,267
Contingent consideration FARE 958 - 958 =
Total #at 98,291 82,029 96,894 81,267
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, the current portion of pledged
time deposits and bank balances, trade receivables,
current portion of amounts due from related parties,
current portion of receivables under service concession
arrangement, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, trade and bills
payables, financial liabilities included in other payables,
deposits received and accrued expenses, current
portion of amounts due to related parties and short-term
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings approximate
to their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term
maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The corporate finance team reports directly
to management. At each reporting date, the corporate
finance team analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by management. The valuation process and
results are discussed with management twice a year for
interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities
are included at the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:
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EMIAZAABERAABEER
(&)

EEEDHERELREEFEY  2HER
EHERMRITESGNAHED - E5HE
WkoR - AR RRE T AR BN RS - IR
T HF AT A8 2 2 BETR T FE W 3R TR O B B &6
2 FIAENFR - HE REA R YA
MEBMEE  BIRNREARENRE -
FEAEMBNRIE - EWIZE MER X
MERBE  BNEESTFENNHES
AR e BRIT R EMERZ AR EE
HHEEEEMES  TERAR/ZETAARN
AR -

UARKEMBEERENMHEHEREE
TRTAAABEAENRRIERF - ©
EREEGERAEEEER - RNEHmE
BE - cEREEGESMTEBTANER
EHVYEBTHEMRANEIRRARE
EHEREEMRIE BEEESFMA
At ERRERERNETHPERRFEN
e

SRHEAEREBNALBERENZS
(BHIHBHHERIN) H B ABEAT
BMSEAE - UTARRMEH AL EE
7oA R
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44.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The fair values of long-term receivable, the non-current
portion of amounts due from related parties and
receivable under service concession arrangement,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, other
unlisted investment designated at fair value through
profit or loss have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities. For these assets and liabilities
for which fair values are disclosed, the fair value
hierarchy is level 2.

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices. The fair values of unlisted equity
investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income have been estimated using the
most recent transaction price method with reference to
the recent transactions at 31 December 2023.

44,

EMIAZAABERAABEER
(&)

REAMEWRIE ~ R 5 TR IE R RS 4
FRAS L e BEIA T Y FE WK IE Y 3F BN AR 2D
D FTRBRITREMEFAREE/EA
REEFABENEMIELETRENDR
BE - HEAAEELER  EERR K&
TERER Y T AR 2 M X G IEF AR K
ReRBFHEMAE - MRERBELAAE
BENEERBEMNS  2ABESERE
e

LTRERENAABEIDRETSRE
MET - IBEAEAABEFAREMET
WHE EMRERENAABEDZE
HE2023F12A31BNRAR S © £
B HARZ 5B T AELET ©
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31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 44. &R TIAZ A ABERAAEBESER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy DNABEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value THRIRAEESRTAZ AABENE
measurement hierarchy of the Group's financial s
instruments:
Assets/liabilities measured at fair value: RANBEFENEE A :
Significant
Fair value Valuation technique unobservable
Fair value hierarchy and key input inputs
RERLR EXFUBE
AREE ABESH FEBAHE BAHE

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB’000 EaIYI=Yelod
ARETT PRI

Financial assets at fair RALEETA

21,607 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an N/A

value through profit ~ BZEM£7E F—%  active market. TiEmA
or loss (note 25) BE (Fritos) ERTEMRMEAE -
- Listed investment - ETRE

Financial assets at fair & AAEBFTA 3,054 3,054 Level 2 Discounted cash flow N/A
value through profit ~ BZEMER FZ#H  basedonthe future cash  NEMA
or loss (note 25) BE (Fiitos) flow of the financial
- Nominal - HENERE assets using a rate from

acquisition financial institution.

consideration BEEHEENRRR S
e FRAXEEREE
MHEBRNRETE o

Financial assets at fair &AL EBR A 319 = Level 3  Enterprise value allocation ~ N/A
value through profit ~ 1BZH &8 E£=#  based onthe enterprise @A
or loss (note 25) BE (fritos) equity value.

- Put-option — R EREREEEN
TEEEDR -

Debt instruments BOREBTA 238,680 287,538 Level 2 Discounted cash flow N/A
at fair value Hit2EKEmN Z=  Dbased on the future cash N
through other ERIR flow of the debt
comprehensive (Hit26) instruments using a rate
income (note 26) from financial institution.

REEETANFEES
nE - ERREER
MR RBLIR A

AkE
BEaneE o
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44.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Contingent
consideration
(note 33)

Equity investments
designated at fair
value through other
comprehensive
income (note 20)

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 44. @I BEAREERAABEER
(#&)
PABEBESER(E)
Significant
Fair value Valuation technique unobservable
Fair value hierarchy and key input inputs
RERLR EATAEE
AREE MEESE FERAHE BARE
2023 2022
2023F 2022
UK RMB'000
ARETT NS
FARE 958 = Level 3 Discounted cash flow Projected
(#1i£33) = method was used to profit before

capture the present tax and
value of the expected discount
future economic benefits rate
that will flow out of the ~ TERIBRBLAT
Group arising from the A &
contingent consideration BB %
arrangement in relation
to the following tranche
transaction of Jiangsu
Bogi acquisition, based
on an appropriate
discount rate.

ERERRERAE -
NIRER A BRI AR X R
HRESRERIAES
WEOT—#ZHH
IARERHENEHS
RAKERLARRK
BENRRE -

EEREANEE 5,173 5,166 Level 3 Most recent transaction N/A
FAEMEE F=#  price method with T
WRmRERE reference 1o the recent
(Fiit20) transactions.

BRHZSBRA%

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 for

both financial assets and financial liabilities (2022: nil).

RER F—REF_HIEWEX LB
Bt E=mEE  mMemEERERAEY
EmEAF MR E=FEL (2022%F :
') o
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include
equity and debt investments, trade receivables, other
receivables, receivable under service concession
arrangement, long-term receivable, amounts due
from related parties, pledged time deposits and bank
balances, cash and cash equivalents, trade and bills
payables, other payables, amounts due to related
parties, lease liabilities, contingent consideration,
interest bearing bank and other borrowings and
long-term payable. Details of the financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The Directors
manage and monitor these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank and other borrowings. The
Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate bank and other borrowings,
pledged time deposits and bank balances. It is the
Group’s policy to keep its bank and other borrowings,
pledged time deposits and bank balances at floating
rate of interests so as to minimise the fair value interest
rate risk. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of the Benchmark
Lending Rate of the People’s Bank of China.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the Directors monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.
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cRIEAKREERERBE

AEENFTZSMTITAREREREBE
B BHRYWEIE - A EYKIE - R
FRT g RHE TR EYEIE - REAEIEK
15 EREERFFIE  EERERTERK
RIS BHeRkReEEBY - BHEN
HIERENER EMEMNKIE - ENEA
ERHRIE HERE - IARE AR
TREMERUARRABRNRIE - %5¢
BMIEMFENEENTERE EHzZE
R T AEENRRSETSEER (F %=
R E¥EREREMEERR)  F8
R R E RS o BEMAKEEZS
R EEHINN T - EFEEREE
ZERR  NEREBESILEREE E
i

FIEER

AEBEBREBRITMEMBERE R E
BENXRER - AEBEITHEBRITREM
B - EHEHEMFERLRITEHREERE
EREMNERAR - AEENRESKER
TREMER  EEREHERRRITHE
BEREZENE  UFEREARER
MERER - AEENRERENXRARE
ZEFRPEARRBITEET KM KK
) o

AEE B AL EMAREPHEK - AT - &
EEEMNERR AT ERFERETE
RF =R -
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45.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for cash and
cash equivalents, pledged time deposits and bank
balances and variable rate bank and other borrowings
at the end of each reporting period and assumed that
the amount of liabilities outstanding at the end of each
reporting period was outstanding for the whole year.
A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’'s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group's
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2023
would have increased/decreased by RMB918,000
(2022: RMB1,388,000), respectively. This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its cash and cash equivalents and pledged time
deposits and bank balances and partially offset by the
impact from bank and other borrowings.

Currency risk

The Group has bank balances, prepayments, other
receivables, trade receivables and other payables
which are denominated in foreign currencies, mainly
HKD, USD and EUR, as at 31 December 2023 and
2022.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to foreign currency rates and
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
period end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.
A 5% increase or decrease is used when reporting
foreign currency rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents the Directors’ assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign currency
rates.

45.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. S @EARKREEEEZERBE (£)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis INEBUBE 5T
If RMB had been appreciated/depreciated 5% against MARKHINETE " BZES%BFRAE
the foreign currency and all other variables were held P BRREFIE - REBBEZE2023F
constant, the Group’s profit before tax for the year ended 12A31 AL FEMBRBAEFBR L
31 December 2023 would have decreased/increased AR 64200070 (2022F : AR
by RMB1,642,000 (2022: RMB1,729,000). This is mainly #1,729,0007T) c WX EHRAEEHT
attributable to the Group’s exposure to the foreign currency FeR20234F Kk 2022F 12 A 31 R HNEIRTT
bank balance as at 31 December 2023 and 2022. RV IE R E g o
Increase/
(decrease)
in RMB
exchange Increase/(decrease)
rate % in profit before tax
ARMEZL
FATEK)% BRBAIEEEMN CHD)
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET T IR
If RMB weakens against the USD W ARBHETRE (5) 143 132
If RMB strengthens against the USD i A R¥E S ETTFHE 5 (143) (132)
If RMB weakens against the HKD MARBEBTRE (5) 1,246 1,462
If RMB strengthens against the HKD A R 5B THHE 5 (1,246) (1,462)
If RMB weakens against the EUR i AR BT (E (5) 253 135
If RMB strengthens against the EUR i A R¥E S BT FHE 5 (253) (135)
Credit risk and impairment assessment EE8E B BEE S

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group. The Group'’s
credit risk exposures are primarily attributable to trade
receivables, contract assets, pledged time deposits and
bank balances, amounts due from related parties, other
receivables, long-term receivables, receivables under
service concession arrangement and debt instruments
at fair value through other comprehensive income.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with
its financial assets.

EERREASENHEFIRESNELE
BAMEBRAKEIMBIERNER - K&
EHENEERREEZRE B S EER
B ANEE  BERESERRRTE
B EURRETT R - HMEWEIR - K
HIEURIR ~ IRISHFRTRE L HE T B B MK
BUARZRARBEAAREBEEKEANE
BTAMES - AN EWERFA (EAEMA
mEEMEEERAKEE RS R EEN
FAHEERR
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45.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group performed impairment assessment for
financial assets and other items under ECL model.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses
an internal credit scoring system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers
are reviewed twice a year. Other monitoring procedures
are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. The Group only accepts
bills issued or guaranteed by reputable PRC banks
if trade receivables are settled by bills and therefore
the management of the Group considers the credit
risk arising from the endorsed or discounted bills is
insignificant. In this regard, the Directors consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced. The
Group is concentrated on one single counterparty for
the receivables under concession arrangement. The
Group has concentration of credit risk as 39% (2022:
39%) of the total trade receivables was due from the
Group’s five largest customers. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits and credit approvals. The Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model on these
balances and the applicable loss rates are disclosed
in notes 22, 23, 24, and 42. The credit risk of contract
assets is assessed based on the provision matrix within
lifetime ECL. For other receivables, the Directors make
periodic individual assessment on the recoverability
of other receivables based on historical settlement
records, past experience, and also quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. Movements of ECL for the
respective items were disclosed in the respective notes
to the consolidated financial statements.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Credit risk on pledged time deposits and bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are
reputable banks with high credit ratings assigned
by local or international credit agencies. The Group
assessed 12-month ECL for pledged time deposits
and bank balances by reference to information relating
to probability of default and loss given default of the
respective credit rating grades published by external
credit rating agencies. Based on the average loss rates,
the 12-month ECL on pledged time deposits and bank
balances is considered to be insignificant.

The Group’s credit risk grading framework comprises
the following categories:
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CREMEEEEREEK (&)

FE Rk RO E RS (&)

BHREERERFRERITEROE T
REWTREREEREBEL TR EEEN
MEVIRTT - AR EFRREHRNERR
RER - AEESEEHEORBEIELE
BEBERINPEETREBEAMER
EEFAREENER - HEEAEHRFK
RRTHEBRET12EARREEBERFT
flr - RIBFFHEBEEE - FHCERERE
REBITHESHN12{EA AFRREEBERR
RTERK -

AEBNEERRIRERBEATE
Al

Basis for recognising

Internal credit rating Description ECL
RS E R B BRAANCEEBENER
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default 12-month ECL
iV HF T amEERE 1218 ARHEEEE
Doubtful There has been a significant increase in credit  Lifetime ECL-not credit-
risk since initial recognition impaired
TNHEE BYRHERAREERREZE L7t 2 HRREEEE —
BEERE
In default There is evidence indicating that the asset is Lifetime ECL-credit-
credit-impaired impaired
EH BEBETNZEELREERE HITEHEEEE -
HREERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is ~ Amount is written off
in severe financial difficulty and the Group
has no realistic prospect of recovery
i sH BEBRRNEBARNEREN KRN TURR B M

AAREEHEERRL EERRE
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. S @EREERAEREE (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) S8R EBESEE(Z)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the TRIAVWNAEBGHEERASNEERE
Group's financial assets and contract assets, which are BHEEEETEEENEERE

subject to ECL assessment:

As at 31 December 2023 R20234F12531H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs

128 A
FERE 2HRHEEER

Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-RR E-RER EZRR L F % o
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTRT AR¥TR AR%TR AR%TR

Debt instruments at fair value ~ ZAREEF AEM
through other comprehensive 2 EKzH

income EBIA 238,689 - - - 238,689
Long-term receivable KA 37,141 - - - 37,141
Contract assets BHNEE - - - 381,189 381,189
Trade receivables ECl e - - - 1,249,480 1,249,480
Amounts due from related W T IR

parties 144,051 - - 271,466 415,517
Receivables under service PRI S B T HE T /)

concession arrangement YR 514,172 - - = 514,172

Financial assets included in s ABHIE &k

prepayments, deposits and H At MEEm

other receivables TREE 146,801 - - - 146,801
Pledged time deposits and EERATHFHR

bank balances - not yet past ~ $R{T4E R — KB

due 84,328 - - - 84,328
Cash and cash equivalents -  B&RIEEZEY
not yet past due — MRS H 348,558 - - - 348,558

Total et 1,513,740 =

1,902,135 3,415,875
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45. S @EARKREEEEZERBE (£)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) B8R M NEBESE (&)
As at 31 December 2022 R2022F12531H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12[EAEH
EEESB rHRSEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
EF-R& FRER F-RE LA A Bt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETE ARETE ARETI ARETR
Debt instruments at fair value R A EE AL
through other comprehensive  2ENZEMNEKTA
income 287,538 - - - 287,538
Long-term receivable RERYEE 51,748 = = = 51,748
Contract assets AHEE - - - 440,867 440,867
Trade receivables B 5 ENGE - - = 918,149 918,149
Amounts due from related FEU B & 7 R
parties 147,689 - - 232,403 380,092
Receivables under service RS RHEE R TR
concession arrangement FEUFIR 546,869 = = = 546,869
Financial assets included in ~ FTATBNHE - K&k
prepayments, deposits and b EYEIER
other receivables SRMEE 120,772 = = = 120,772
Pledged time deposits and EEATHESR
bank balances - not yet past  $R17&# — HAR L
due 98,266 - - - 98,266
Cash and cash equivalents -  BE& RRESHEY -
not yet past due 180 7K 460 ER 402,488 = = = 402,488
Total T 1,655,370 - - 1,591,419 3,246,789
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45.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

There has been no change in the estimation technique
or significant assumptions made throughout the year
ended 31 December 2023.

The Group writes off trade receivables and contract
assets when there is information indicating that the
debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor
has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the Directors, who have established an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework
for the management of the Group’'s short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by
maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and
reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

45.

THEAREEEBERBEK(E)

FERBRREERTL(E)

REE2023F 12831 BIEFER » 145t

8 &R BB A B B = B 75 IR 2 &
EEFRIE A WO R - AR RIMEEZ
BHRUHARANEE (PIREBA
WERIEAWERFR)

RBESRR

RBETRAREEITHARFEETRKA
B MEFCELEENRPESRARE
BRE UNEAKEEH  fHEEH
B2 LRBESEERTE - AEEEEHE
FAROMHE  RITBE RFEERE
B BEREEERARERRSREN
REBHECREERBEZIMBRET
EEmERRBDESAR -



45.

Annual Report 2023 F#§

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. The tables include both interest and principal
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest
rate curves at the end of the reporting period. The
contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on
which the Group may be required to pay.

45.

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

THEAREERRRBEK(E)

RBESRR(E)

TRFAVNAEBEITESRABENTGBRE
WE e TRDBRESRABENAURAS
MEBERAEE R EANKHNZTE IR
e XBEENERAERERE - HH
ERBEHMNE - RURSHEREREH
REOMEEHLR - SODHADREAEHE
AXNRFHHEE -

Within
1 year or
ondemand 1to5years Over5 years Total
—£R5
REXR —Z5HE AEHUE @t
31 December 2023 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2023%12531A AR#TRT AREBTRT AR¥Tr AR%T:R
Lease liabilities HERE 5,630 25,054 - 30,684
Interest-bearing bank and FHESRITREMER
other borrowings 125,085 102,583 - 227,668
Trade and bills payables B HRNFIERENRE 1,117,380 - - 1,117,380
Financial liabilities included ATAH M REMFRIR -
in other payables, deposits B S RS
received and accrued HAxmeman
expenses 184,347 - - 184,347
Amounts due to related parties  JE{TBE# 5 7B 43,739 = = 43,739
Total @st 1,476,181 127,637 - 1,603,818
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31 December 2023
2023F 12 H31H

45.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45.
AND POLICIES (Continued)

THEAREEEBERBEK(E)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRAM (&)
Within
1 year or
ondemand 1to5vyears Over5 years Total
—FNK
BRER —Eh¥ AENE st
31 December 2022 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
20224125314 ARBTFT AR®TT ARBETT AR®TR
Lease liabilities HERE 5,384 21,328 11,838 38,550
Interest-bearing bank and FERITRAMBER
other borrowings 98,061 86,327 - 184,388
Trade and bills payables BHRNFIEARENER 1,134,240 - - 1,134,240
Financial liabilities included ATAH MR FRIE -
in other payables, BlIES REFTHS R
deposits received and FRAE
accrued expenses 154,701 - - 154,701
Amounts due to related JENBRER A
parties 7,249 - - 7,249
Total st 1,399,635 107,655 11,838 1,519,128
Capital risk management ERERERE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged during the
current year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, pledged
time deposits and bank balances and cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
parent, comprising share capital, treasury shares and
reserves.

AEEHEERNETEE  UERAKH
SERIHEERSELEEERE AR
BRBLCEBRBRATE  BRRAER
REH o NEEHEERBENAFERE

JGEA

= °

AEEzEARBR;BRITREME
F o CERAEHMERERTEHREASR
ReEFEMARTRAIER ARG RE
(BREERA - By i) AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group uses different measures including an
adjusted net debt-to-equity ratio to monitor its capital.
Net debt is calculated as Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position, less cash and bank
deposits. Total capital is calculated as equity holders’
funds (i.e., total equity attributable to owners of the
parent), as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The ratios as at the end of the

reporting periods were as follows:

45.

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

THEAREERRRBEK(E)

EXEBER(E)

AEBEFERTRAFERSR (BRKHBF
BREEERLL ) REZFEER  FEE
Tz A BN RN BRITRE
EFRRE RBTFERMAE - BER
Tt E REE MBI R RS RE
ANEE (B RAHEAEARERED) - 1©
WEHRNLXTRANT

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B st AR%T T ARBT T
Interest-bearing bank and other FHERITREMIER
borrowings 31 216,278 174,137
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B BHeRBESEEY (348,558) (402,488)
Pledged time deposits and bank ERRE BT SRR
balances IRITHE R (84,328) (98,266)
Net debt FEB (216,608) (326,617)
Total equity attributable to owners of &2 BIHH A ML B
the parent = 3,047,471 2,834,503
Adjusted net debt-to-equity ratio KRR E TS
ez b & (7%) (12%)
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31 December 2023
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46.

TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, unmatured notes receivables
amounting to RMB48,849,000 (2022: RMB53,287,000)
issued by certain listed banks were endorsed
to suppliers and no (2022: nil) unmatured notes
receivables issued by certain listed banks were
discounted to banks. In the opinion of the Directors,
the Group has transferred the significant risks and
rewards relating to these notes receivables, and the
Group’s obligations to the corresponding counterparties
were discharged in accordance with the commercial
practice in PRC and the risk of default in payment of
the endorsed and discounted notes receivables is low
because all these are issued and guaranteed by the
reputable PRC banks. As a result, the relevant assets
and liabilities were derecognised on the consolidated
financial statements. The maximum exposure to
the Group that may result from the default of these
endorsed and discounted notes receivables at the end
of the reporting period is represented by their carrying
amounts.

46.

HZE2023%12A31H » HF LHR1TEH
TEEARI NS E A AR 48,849,000
7T (20224 : AR¥53,287,0007T) A&
WREBEERMHEREE  MBERETE
MIRTTETE MR EWZERAIREE
R17(2022F : &) - EERA - A&H
EEEEUZSRREBRNERNR R LE
- MASEEHBEEEFHIHEEERIE
PR EEOIERER - BEREREEEY
A EEANERERITHEITRIER  WE
NEBSERBANEREENENRBR
K- -Eit BRAEERBBECDEGRANE
MERAKRIERER - AEBRRERAZ
EEEERUBRNENERENMATN
BARBEIEZERENREE -
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TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

In addition, the following are the Group’s notes
receivables that were transferred to banks or suppliers
by discounting or endorsing the notes receivables
on a full recourse basis as at 31 December 2023. As
the Group has not transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards relating to these notes receivables,
the full carrying amount of the notes receivables
are continuously recognised and the cash received
upon the discount and the effect of endorsement are
recorded as a collateralised bank borrowing (see note
31) and trade payables (see note 28). These notes
receivables are carried at fair value through other
comprehensive income in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as the overall business
model is to hold to collect contractual cash flows and to
sell.

2023
20235
Notes ES
receivable receivable
discounted to endorsed to
banks suppliers
ERRTHAN ERiEEEEN
L UES EYZE
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET T AE®T R
Carrying amount of BEBEERAR
transferred assets - 49,473
Carrying amount of FEaERRE
associated liabilities - (49,473)

Net position ] - =

46.

fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

TMEEER (&)

AN - AT AR EER 2023412 A31H
ERBERENER LRSS ERKE
BEMEEERITHERERE - ARAKE
WEEB L EERERNEADS AR K
B3k WEREENEEEDESER
R MARKRRANReREENTET
ERABEMRTER (RIS RESE
5/3E (RHIEE28) - AN ASEEMNEEER
EERARBZERREEARBA LR
EREREE  ZERUEBREQAAEEA
AZHEBERAEBRNGE BB RE
HIER o

2022
2000F
Notes Notes
receivable receivable
discounted to endorsed to
Total banks suppliers Total
ERETHRSN EREEEEEN
it EHER EUZE it
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT AESBTTR N S
49,473 - 46,461 46,461
(49,473) - (46,461) (46,461)
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mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
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47.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 27 October 2023, Beijing Bogi entered into No. 1-2
Yangxi Facilities Asset Transfer of Desulfurisation and
Denitrification Projects Agreement (“Agreement”) with
Guangdong Huaxia Electric Development Co., Ltd.
(“Guangdong Huaxia Electric’) and Yangxi Electric ,
which became effective on 29 December 2023 since
the approval by the independent shareholders of
the Company at the extraordinary general meeting.
According to the Agreement, Beijing Bogi shall acquire
from Yangxi Electric No. 1-2 Yangxi Facilities (except
for land) with a consideration of RMB154.26 million
(excluding tax, being RMB174.31 million with tax
included). The delivery was completed on 5 February
2024 since Yangxi Electric have received the entire
consideration and completed the asset delivery
procedures in accordance with the Agreement. Upon
completion of the acquisition, the O&M services
in relation to No. 1-2 Yangxi Facilities provided by
Beijing Bogi shall be terminated and Beijing Bogi shall
be responsible for the operation, maintenance and
management of the acquired assets.

On 6 February 2024, the Group and Richinfo signed
an agreement to establish Beijing Caigi New Energy
Technology Co., LTD (“Bogi Caigqi”), which is engaged
in the photovoltaic power generation business. The
Group and Richinfo held 40% and 60% of the equity
interests in Bogqi Caiqi, respectively. The Group has
invested in Bogi Caiqi to further expand its market
share of the photovoltaic power generation business
with a cash consideration of RMB4,000,000 and no
cash consideration has been paid before the reporting
date.

47.

BREHERER

2023410 A27H L RETHEERE
EENEEERAR([EREEE L) &
F% P8 B 1151 32 1-2 5% 5 78 5% o6 AR i B Al 18
BEEEZDE ([ZHBR]) - WwR2023
F12H298 BAR GBI BRI
RIRE EBERER - BEZHE - bR
EA MG E D WEE1-25RE ki (=
HBERIN) - REABARME154.26 B & T (T
EF EHAAARKI7431EHER) °
MRBREHNERREFRELERIEZ
MEREREERIRER  BEXIER
20242 ASH MK « W EIATHIE -
It REFF1-25R AR RN ESR
BETERLE mMitRESEaEMKREE
ERNEE  EEREE -

MR2024F2 68 + NEEEF AR W
AR EARBEERNIL RS
FRERRIERAR ([LmEH]) - A&
BHEEADRFEILRETHN40%K60%
B - AEBIRERIERES  UE—F
BAKREBFEEBOTHEEEX  BeR
EA AR 40000007 MAHRE BE
Al A IRESNRE -
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fRE ISR R MR ()

31 December 2023
2023F12H31H

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 48.

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of
the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

Annual Report 2023 F 1R

R R R

BRAARARBERRNPBARRNERZE

BT :

PLIPX] 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARETIT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BRE KRB 9 59
Amounts due from subsidiaries N EPNGIE e 190,990 154,990
Investments in subsidiaries RIBARRE 1,242,145 1,240,899
Total non-current assets IERBEELLE 1,433,144 1,395,948
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and FERFIE - Re Rk
other receivables H th i Wk IE 10,374 9,649
Financial assets at fair value RABEAEBRD
through profit or loss TREE - 21,608
Amounts due from subsidiaries R ENGIESE 25,144 23,871
Bank balances and cash IRITEEBRNIR S 56,982 100,104
Total current assets RBEERE 92,500 155,232
Current liabilities REBaE
Trade payables B S ER5RIE - 620
Other payables, deposits received and  Efh B FIE
accrued expenses Bl s KM EAFEY 13,335 14,567
Total current liabilities BB EARRE 13,335 15,187
Net current assets mBEEFE 79,165 140,045
Net assets BEFE 1,512,309 1,535,993
Capital and reserves EARR#E
Share capital (N 67 67
Treasury shares EF R 4)) (1)
Other reserves (Note) HAitwf# s (Ma2) 1,512,243 1,535,927
1,512,309 1,535,993
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mRE ISR M ()

31 December 2023
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 48.
COMPANY (Continued)

AT BRRE (F)

BRAARARMERRNPBARRNERZE
BT (&)

Information about the statement of financial position of
the Company at the end of the reporting period is as

follows: (Continued)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

et - ARBRBZBRNT

Share Merger Other  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
AR R E R EftE HAtrfe RitE#R st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTRE AR¥TR AR%TR AR®BTRE AR%TrR
At 1 January 2022 R2022F1/1H 1,523,435 371,500 (130,310) (103,096) 1,661,529
Loss and total comprehensive FAEER
loss for the year ZHEFBRE - - - (66,055) (66,055)
Final 2021 dividend declared BEEIR2021 F KBRS - - = (63,821) (63,821)
Repurchase and cancellation of BB K8 E @Ak
ordinary shares (60) - - - (60)
Share-based payments PABR (R AR 30 4,334 = = = 4,334
At 31 December 2022 and R2022F12A31A K
1 January 2023 2023F1A1H 1,527,709 371,500 (130,310) (232,972) 1,535,927
Loss and total comprehensive FREER
loss for the year THEEBRE - - - 3,539 3,539
Final 2022 dividend declared BEIR2022F REE B - - - (27,652) (27,652)
Repurchase and cancellation of B[] J iF 84 & A%
ordinary shares - - - - -
Share-based payments PABR 2 BEFET R 429 - - - 429
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12 318 1,528,138 371,500  (130,310) (257,085) 1,512,243
49. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 49. HIEHFOMAE

B IR O N2024F3 o2 B EES= &
IR ET)EE -

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2024.
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